
 

 
 
MEETING: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION PANEL 
  
DATE: Friday 15th July, 2022 

  
TIME: 10.00 am 

  
VENUE: REMOTE 

  
 
DECISION MAKER: PUBLIC ENGAGEMENT AND CONSULTATION 

PANEL 

  
 Councillor Lappin 

Councillor Byrom 
Councillor Grace 

Councillor Shaw 
 

 

 
 COMMITTEE OFFICER: Jayne Vincent 

Consultation, Engagement and 
Performance Officer 

 Telephone: 0151 934 3840 

 Fax:  
 E-mail: Jayne.vincentl@sefton.gov.uk 

 

The Cabinet is responsible for making what are known as Key Decisions, 
which will be notified on the Forward Plan.  Items marked with an * on the 
agenda involve Key Decisions 

A key decision, as defined in the Council’s Constitution, is: - 
● any Executive decision that is not in the Annual Revenue Budget and 

Capital Programme approved by the Council and which requires a gross 
budget expenditure, saving or virement of more than £100,000 or more 
than 2% of a Departmental budget, whichever is the greater 

● any Executive decision where the outcome will have a significant impact 
on a significant number of people living or working in two or more Wards 

 
 

If you have any special needs that may require arrangements to 
facilitate your attendance at this meeting, please contact the 

Committee Officer named above, who will endeavour to assist. 

 

Public Document Pack



A G E N D A 
 
Items marked with an * involve key decisions 
 

 Item 

No. 

Subject/Author(s) Wards Affected  

  

  1.   Welcome and Apologies 

 

  

  2.   Declarations of Interest   

  Members are requested at a meeting where a 
disclosable pecuniary interest or personal 

interest arises, which is not already included in 
their Register of Members' Interests, to declare 
any interests that relate to an item on the 

agenda. 
 

Where a Member discloses a Disclosable 
Pecuniary Interest, he/she must withdraw from 
the meeting room, including from the public 

gallery, during the whole consideration of any 
item of business in which he/she has an 

interest, except where he/she is permitted to 
remain as a result of a grant of a dispensation. 
 

Where a Member discloses a personal interest 
he/she must seek advice from the Monitoring 

Officer or staff member representing the 
Monitoring Officer to determine whether the 
Member should withdraw from the meeting 

room, including from the public gallery, during 
the whole consideration of any item of business 

in which he/she has an interest or whether the 
Member can remain in the meeting or remain in 
the meeting and vote on the relevant decision. 

 

  

  3.   Minutes of Meeting held on Friday 27th May 
2022 

 

 (Pages 5 - 
12) 

  4.   Matters Arising 

 
  

  5.   National Trust Formby Community 

Involvement Plan - presentation 

 

  

  6.   Sefton Economic Strategy 2022 - 2023 

 
 (Pages 13 - 

58) 

  7.   Land Commission and Old Roan and 

Waterloo Community Engagement - 
withdrawn 

 

  

  8.   0-19 Commissioning Service Feedback and  (Pages 59 - 



Evaluation Report 

 
94) 

  9.   Feedback and Evaluation Report - Adult 

Substance Use services 

 

 (Pages 95 - 

98) 

  10.   Re commission of young people and 
family's substance use service. 

 

 (Pages 99 - 
140) 

  11.   Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 
and Consultation Activity - Climate 

Emergency Engagement Plan 

 

 (Pages 141 - 
182) 

  12.   Proposal to undertake Public Engagement 

and Consultation Activity - Monitoring & 
Evaluation of Active Travel Tranche 1 
Routes in Southport and Bootle 

 

 (Pages 183 - 

292) 

  13.   Any Other Business 

 
  

  14.   Date of next meeting - Friday, 9th September 

10.00am - 12.00 noon, Bootle Town Hall 

 

  

 



This page is intentionally left blank



1 
 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 

Meeting held on Monday 27th May 2022 
Remote Meeting 

 
Present:  
Cllr Paulette Lappin (Chair) 
Cllr Leslie Byrom (CBE) (Victoria Ward)  
Cllr Jan Grace BA (Hons) MRes PGDip SRN (Victoria Ward) 
Diane Blair, Healthwatch Sefton 
Debbie Appleton – Merseyside Fire & Rescue Service 
Dr Mike Homfray – VCF Sector and Equalities Partnership 
Lyn Cooke, Head of Communications and Engagement, both CCGs 
Keith Molloy – Service Manager, Regeneration 
Simon Burnett – Head of Communities 
Helen Birrell – Development Manager 
Beatrice Wheatley – FMG Consulting 
Pippa McHaffie – Commissioning Officer 
Elena Lloyd – Corporate Communications Manager 
Ollie Cowan – Communications Officer 
Jayne Vincent - Consultation & Engagement Lead, Sefton MBC 
John McDonald – Chair, Friends of Orrell Mount Park 
Hayley Warbrick – Resident of Orrell Mount 
 
Apologies: 
Georgia Ribbens – Young Advisor Lead for Sefton CVS 
Nigel Bellamy – VCF Sector representative, Sefton CVS 
Jackie Sutton – Merseyside Fire and Rescue service 
 

The report presented to the Public Consultation and Engagement Panel can be 

found here: 16th May 2022 - Consultation and Engagement Panel  

 

 

Action 

1. Welcome and Apologies 

Apologies: Nigel Bellamy, Georgia Ribbons and Jackie Sutton 

Chair reminded the attendees that the purpose of the Consultation 
and Engagement Panel is to look at the process of consultation and 
engagement and not the subject matter and welcomes constructive 
comments regarding all proposals which aim to make consultations 
better. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3

https://modgov.sefton.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=498&MId=10864


2 
 

2. Declarations of Interest 

No declarations of any disclosable pecuniary interests or personal 
interests were received. 

 

3. Minutes of the Previous Meeting  

That the Minutes of the meeting held on 16th May 2022 are a true 
and proper record. 

 

4. Matters Arising  

Jayne Vincent informed the Consultation and Engagement Panel 
that she had contacted Cllr Dutton and passed on the thanks from 
the Panel for her involvement. 

Jayne Vincent also reported that she had shared a copy of the 
minutes with Mark Shaw.  

 

5. Feedback and Evaluation report on the Crosby Regeneration 
consultation – Keith Molloy. 

Consultation was carried out in connection with proposals - 
Highways, Parking and accommodation works linked to Green Car 
Park Redevelopment, Crosby between 22nd September – 7th 
November 2021. 

The proposals within the consultation are linked to the Council’s 
wider ambitions and objectives set out within the approved Crosby 
Investment Strategy, the Sefton Local Plan and associated Crosby 
Supplementary Planning Document (SPD). 

Keith Malloy briefed panel on the consultation process that started 
whilst covid restrictions were still in place.  They had a survey on 
the Your Sefton Your Say consultation hub, a virtual stakeholder 
workshop and as covid restrictions lifted, a public meeting at St. 
Lukes Church, Crosby. Sefton CVS provided support with the 
engagement events. 

The report includes the ley findings from the survey which included: 

• 50% of respondents visit Crosby centre at least once a week.  

• 70% of respondents wanted to increase longer stays within 
the village.  

• Some challenges noted with existing library.  

• Transport concerns on car parking were raised. 

Face to face sessions also gained similar feedback.  

Moving forward a further levelling up fund bid (Round 2) for Crosby 
will be made.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 6

Agenda Item 3



3 
 

Jayne Vincent asked Keith about putting some feedback on the 
consultation hub and that she was pleased to hear that there would 
be extra feedback at future engagement sessions. 

Jayne also asked if there were any further changes to future 
engagement processes?  

Keith acknowledged the restrictions covid had placed on the 
engagement and that there is a desire to engage better for Stage 
2, including with young people.  They would work with Sefton CVS 
and the Sefton Young Advisors to look at how they can increase 
youth engagement.  

Jayne mentioned that Sefton CVS are setting up a Strategic 
Steering Group for Youth Voice and will keep him informed. 

Cllr Lappin thanked Keith for his report. 

 

 

 

 

 

Keith Molloy 

 

Jayne Vincent 

 

 

 Item 6 – Proposal to undertake public engagement and 

consultation activity. 

Orrell Mount Park Masterplan consultation – Simon Burnett, 

Helen Birrell and Beatrice Wheatley (FMG consulting). 

Simon Burnett introduced the report and welcomed Helen Birrell 

and Beatrice Wheatley to also contribute. Simon outlined that the 

proposed consultation was requested by the wider community and 

that the consultation is a much wider Masterplan for the site. 

Helen Birrell briefed the Panel on how the consultation would be 
held. Noted that FMG Consulting will lead the consultation for 
impartiality. 
 
The consultation will take place between the 30th May and the 
22nd July and will consist of a survey, stakeholder events, 
information on the Council’s website and social media.  There will 
also be a Q&A document and an information booklet that is in 
easy read.  There will be hard copy versions as well as easy read 
materials. 
 
Beatrice Wheatley shared a demonstration of the online survey to 
the Panel. The data captured will be both qualitative and 
quantitative. 
 
Mike Homfray asked about stakeholder engagement sessions. 
Mike asked to clarify if the consultation will produce a definitive list 
of stakeholders to ensure maximum participation.  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3



4 
 

Mike thought that the questionnaire was a good length – not too 
many questions. He also asked what issues the consultation will 
explore? Mike believed that the drop-ins may not work and would 
advise to contact specific groups directly. 

Simon Burnett responded to say that the drop ins are open 

sessions for anybody to pose questions not already answered in 

the consultation Q&A document. Simon clarified that there will be 

no structured interviews and sessions will be informal. There will 

also be scheduled meetings with key stakeholders to compliment 

this. The aim is to get feedback from a wider group as possible. 

Helen Birrell confirmed there is a wide scoping list of organisations 

and groups that will be engaged with as part of the consultation.  

Jayne Vincent queried that question 5 and 6 on questionnaire may 

not be in the correct order or structure. Helen & Beatrice 

confirmed that the data protection lead has looked at the question 

order but will review based on feedback. 

John McDonald of Friends of Orrell Mount Park thanked the Panel 

for inviting him. He requested to read out a statement. John 

McDonald thanked Sefton Council for ‘listening to the group’ and 

holding a ‘proper consultation’ 

Cllr Lappin stated to John McDonald that his statement did not 
address the consultation process and instead focused on the 
history of the project. The Chair said there would be an exception 
made but requested that he move to any comments on the 
consultation. 
 
John McDonald said that the concerns are that decisions have 
already been made and he referred to an Instagram post made 
regarding the JC23 Foundation. John McDonald said the group 
do not feel they can trust the council on this consultation. 
 
Cllr Lappin reiterated the ask of John McDonald to talk about the 
consultation process. John McDonald noted there is no proposal 
to consult with scientists or academics “who have looked at 
detrimental effects to children’s health”.  
 
John McDonald would like to know if other scientists or 
academics will be consulted. Also noted there are no proposals to 
consult with the Fields in Trust organisation. 
 
John McDonald believes two months is ‘woefully inadequate’ and 
time should be given for the campaign group to seek legal advice. 
He proposes that the consultation does not commence on May 30 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



5 
 

and the Friends of Orrell Mount group are asked to contribute 
towards how the consultation is held. 
 
Chair confirmed that the 8-week timeline for consultation is well 
within government guidelines and details of the intention to  
consult was published. 
 
Simon Burnett was invited by Chair to respond. 
 
Simon Burnett replied that the environmental impact and green 
space sufficiency was factored into the planning application 
process. 
 
The Local Government organisation has taken the national 
position from Department for Culture, Media and Sport and the 
Football Foundation over safety research into 3G pitches. The 
Council are influenced by those findings and conclusions have 
stated that these pitches are safe. 
 
John McDonald responded to say that the data predates 2016 
and opposing data has been made post 2016. The Chair asked 
John McDonald to email relevant information regarding this to 
Simon Burnett. 
 
Cllr Lappin thanked everyone for their comments and welcomes a 
full feedback report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Simon Burnett 

 

7. Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and 

Consultation Activity – 

Independent Review of Domiciliary Care provision across 

Sefton (Pippa McHaffie, Sefton Council, Diane Blair, 

Healthwatch Sefton) 

Pippa McHaffie introduced the report. Healthwatch Sefton and 

Sefton Council are working in collaboration to survey around 80 

service users receiving Sefton Council commissioned Domiciliary 

Care. 

Sefton Council currently commissions Domiciliary Care for around 

1,800 within the Borough from approximately 38 Providers. 

Sefton Council’s current commissioning arrangements are due to 

expire in Autumn 2022 with the Council looking to commence new 

arrangements. The new arrangements will be informed by 

different strands of work including regional and national best 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



6 
 

practice, feedback from Adult Social Care, Provider engagement, 

and the Service User survey by Healthwatch Sefton. 

Pippa McHaffie and Diane Blair explained that the engagement 

looks to capture qualitative data. 

The consultation is anticipated commence in June although exact 

timescales and length of consultation are yet to be confirmed as it 

will depend on the level of responses from the contacted Service 

Users. However, it is currently anticipated that it will take 2 – 3 

months. 

Healthwatch Sefton and Sefton Council have worked together to 

draw up a list of questions that will be asked to a small subset of 

people receiving care.  They will receive a letter about the 

consultation and a copy of the questions before the consultation 

starts, to have the information beforehand and to decide if they 

want to take part. 

Cllr Lappin welcomed the engagement as an excellent piece of 

work. 

Cllr Grace asked if there are any prior case studies or similar 

surveys to take influence from? 

Jayne responded that there is the national adult social care survey 

and carers survey, but these are not telephone surveys. 

 Jayne also welcomed the adaptation of materials and the equality 

impact assessment of the process. 

Debbie Appleton asked if a home fire safety check question could 

be added to engagement process to help Merseyside Fire and 

Rescue Service understand whether the targeted cohort of people 

are having a safety check? 

Pippa and Diane said that they would look at this and that it would 

be possible and general signposting would be available. 

Cllr Lappin said she was pleased to see that there are 

connections being made. 

Cllr Lappin thanked Pippa and Diane for their report and asked to 

return with a feedback report. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Pippa McHaffie 

and Diane Blair 

 

 

Pippa McHaffie 

and Diane Blair 

 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



7 
 

6. Date of next meeting -  

Friday 15th July, 10.00 a.m. Venue – Remote via Microsoft Teams. 

 

 

 

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3



This page is intentionally left blank



Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 15th July 2022 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

– Sefton Economic Strategy 2022/23 
 
Report of:  Stuart Barnes (Head of Economic Growth & Housing)/ Mike Mullin 

(Service Manager-Business Support & Investment) 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To advise and receive feedback from the Panel on the update of the 

Sefton Economic Strategy consultation document  
 
 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
 2.2 Members and panel will recall the last production of the Sefton 

Economic Strategy in 2018/19 which followed two major pieces of 
work in 2017/18- (i) Local Economic Assessment; the building blocks 
and evidence base for the strategy and (ii) Economic Framework 
which provided the strategic direction. 

 
 2.3      The final piece of work was delegated to Cabinet Member 

Regeneration & Skills who approved the Sefton Economic Strategy 
Action Plan in December 2019. Panel members may recall the 
extensive consultation work which led to this between March and May 
2018 and the subsequent presentation to panel on 26th November 
2018 

 
 2.4 The delivery of the Sefton Economic Strategy Action Plan was 

interrupted by the Covid-19 outbreak in March 2020 and its 
subsequent strains resulting in a two- year pandemic which has 
impacted on Sefton’s economy, communities, residents, and 
businesses. During this time, the Council responded by repurposing 
the strategy to focus on new emerging priorities resulting in the 
production of the Sefton Strategic Recovery Plan (November 2020), 

 
 2.5     Progress against delivery has been reported to Overview & Scrutiny 

(Regeneration) Committee in March and November 2021 
 
 
 

Page 13

Agenda Item 6



 
 
3. Sefton Economic Strategy 2022/23 
 
 3.1 There is a clear need to update, refresh and, where applicable, repurpose 

the Sefton Economic Strategy, with a specific focus on recovery following the 
pandemic. This is detailed work which will be undertaken by the Economic 
Growth & Housing service, and co-ordinated by InvestSefton. 

 
 3.2 To support this activity Mickledore Consultants were appointed to produce 

both the update of the strategy and two investment prospectus documents 
for Bootle and Southport which they had previously completed during Covid 
to assist with attracting new inward investment. The first stage work has 
focussed on the production and assessment of the economic the evidence 
base which is now complete following discussions with the Council’s 
economy cell, which comprises a wide range of services from across the 
council. 

 
3.3 Mickledore have produced the attached slide deck (Annex A) for consultation 

purposes, including a series of questions for consultees (Annex B) These 
have been translated into an easy-to-read guide and questionnaire (Annex C). 
The four key strategic themes have been identified as follows: 

 
 Employment and opportunities for work 
 Business Growth & Investment 
 Social inclusion and access for all 
 Regenerated places 
 

 
          3.4 To ensure that the initial key findings and strategic themes outlined in Annex A 

are fit for purpose the Council is now embarking on a wide range of both 
internal and external consultation. To support the communication plan, an 
Equalities Impact Assessment (Annex D) has been produced with support 
from the Council’s Consultation and Engagement Lead. This work will be led 
by InvestSefton and supported by officers within the wider Economic Growth 
and Housing service. 

 
4.    The Consultation 
 
 4.1 The Communication plan has been produced to support the engagement and 

consultation process which starts on 14 July 2022 and ends 12 August 2022. 
The plan can be summarised as follows: 

 
  

External Methodology 
Sefton businesses 
/Investors/Developers 
Marketing Southport 
Southport Town Deal 
 

Sefton MBC website 
On- line-Your Sefton Your Say 
Electronic mailing lists (2500+ 
InvestSefton) 
Investsefton.com 
Sefton Economic Forum event 14 
July 
Online focus groups 

Page 14

Agenda Item 6



 
Professional intermediaries & 
business networks e.g  
-Chambers of Commerce 
-Southport BID 
-Federation Small Businesses 
 

Sefton MBC website 
On-line -Your Sefton Your Say 
Sefton Economic Forum event 14 
July 
Face to face meetings/briefings 
 

Liverpool City Region 
 
-Combined Authority 
-Chief Executives 
-Local Enterprise Partnership & 
Sector boards 
-Employment & Skills Board 
-Investment Board 
-Growth Platform 
-Local Authorities 

LCR Growth Directors 
LCR Operations Group 
On-line -Your Sefton Your Say 

Members of the public 
Sefton Council for Voluntary Services 
People First Merseyside 
Equal Voice 
Merseyside In Trust 
Migrant Workers Sefton Community 
 Young People 
Sefton Partnership for Older Citizens 
Sefton in Mind 
Sefton at work clients 
Sefton Council’s staff networks 
Carers and Sefton Carers Centre 

Sefton MBC website 
On-line- Your Sefton Your Say 
Focus groups (where applicable) 
Young Advisors 
 

Housing Associations 
FE Colleges/HE sector contacts 
Local Media 

Sefton MBC website 
On-line 
Sefton Economic Forum 14 July 

Internal Methodology 
Elected Members 
Parishes 
Senior Leadership Board 
Growth Programme Board 
Council services 
 

Cabinet meetings 
Cabinet Members briefings 
Council 
Consultation briefings 
Yammer 
Sefton Economy Cell 
Corporate Communications 
 

 
 
4.2  The aim of the consultation exercise is to capture views, concerns, and 

suggestions from all stakeholders in the process. This findings from the 
consultation will be assessed and, where appropriate, used to help inform 
the final Sefton Economic Strategy and its associated Action Plan.  

 
4.3  A similar exercise in 2017/18 resulted in 189 detailed responses-a 45 % 

increase on the 2014 Economic strategy. A questionnaire (both on-line and 
hard copy) has been designed to capture data and comments to help provide 
feedback and consensus on key objectives and support the council in terms 
of prioritising services, which will be important given the prevailing economic 
climate and resource issues. Information and the survey have also been 

Page 15

Agenda Item 6



produced in an easy read version.  The information and survey can also be 
available in other formats and languages upon request. 

 
4.3  The interim Equality Impact Assessment has identified several protected 

groups that may have been affected by the economic downturn by covid and 
who may be disproportionately affected. The consultation and engagement 
process identifies methods to engage these groups to gauge their views on 
the themes and receive feedback. Barriers to engagement have been 
identified and addressed in the communications plan with support from the 
Council’s Consultation & Engagement Lead. This includes focus group 
sessions with a range of  

 
 
5.      Reporting and Publishing the Findings 
    
 
   5.1     The key findings will be assessed upon completion of the consultation which 

ends    on 12th August. 2022. The feedback and data will help inform the final 
Sefton Economic Strategy which will be circulated to all respondents for final 
comment before being presented for approval by Cabinet on 6th September. 
Upon approval the Sefton Economic Strategy will be published and launch 
shortly thereafter. 

 
5.2 The findings of the consultation will be shared with stakeholders who have taken 

part in the consultation and will also be published on the Your Sefton Your Say 
Consultation Hub.  Information will also be available in easy read. 

 
 
 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 
 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report (LD 27/6/2022) and has no comments to 
make. 

 
7. Recommendations 
 
 
 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Review the draft Sefton Economic Strategy consultation 

document and questionnaire for public consultation 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

Page 16

Agenda Item 6



REPORT:

Economic Strategy 

Consultation

SEFTON COUNCIL| JUNE 2022

P
age 17

A
genda Item

 6



INTRODUCTION

Sefton Council has appointed Mickledore to provide refresh 
of the Economic Strategy for the area post Covid-19. Sefton 
approved an Economic Strategy in 2018 but since that date 
the impacts on the economy have been severe. Mickledore
undertook a review of the impacts of Covid-19 in 2020 and 
the actions which could be undertaken. This document picks 
out the economic datasets considered most important in 
describing the Sefton economy in 2022 and the themes 
against which a strategy could be developed.

Consultees are requested to:

1. Consider whether they believe that the key data findings 
are the most important indicators for the economy.

2. Whether the summary narrative starts to draw out the 
key aspects of the economic position.

3. Whether the 4 themes identified at the end of the 
document are the correct themes against which a 
strategy and action plan may be framed.

2

P
age 18

A
genda Item

 6



MODERATE PERFORMANCE

At a LA level, Sefton records economic data which is 
generally favourable compared to the NW Region although 
slightly less so nationally.

The headline figures illustrate that at a macro level Sefton 
may be broadly comparable with its peers but the data 
requires further and more detailed analysis in order to draw 
out priorities for an Economic Strategy.

3

Variable Sefton NW 
England

National 
(GB)

Economically active (Dec 2021) 77.4% 76.5% 78.4%

Percentage households workless (Dec 2020) 15.8% 15.5% 13.6%

Percentage employed as managers or professionals (Dec 2021) 33.2% 32.1% 34.2%

Qualified NVQ4 or above (2021) 39.1% 38.5% 43.5%

Gross weekly pay for residents (2021) £586.7 £578 £613.1

Claimant count (out of work benefits) working age population (2022) 4.3% 4.4% 3.9%

Selected core economic statistics- Sefton

Source: Nomis collation of ONS Sources

P
age 19

A
genda Item

 6



INCOME DISPARITY 4

▪ Whilst at an average level Sefton may appear 
to be an area of average economic 
performance there are areas of deprivation.

▪ Deprivation is measured in a number of ways 
illustrated at a local level (Lower Level Super 
Output Areas) by the Indices of Multiple 
Deprivation.

▪ When income is considered, Sefton has a 
number of areas where income is in the lowest 
10% in England and a few in the highest 10%.

▪ LSOAs typically contain the same amount of 
people and as a result the large shaded area to 
the North of the Borough contains a similar 
number of people as the more densely 
populated areas.

▪ Even these figures mask the scale of 
deprivation. One area of Bootle is now ranked 
as the 28th most deprived in terms of income 
across England (out of 32,844 areas) and its 
ranking is falling (ranked 197th in 2007).

▪ Income deprivation is not only a serious 
issue at an individual / family level – a 
concentration of low levels of income 
undermines the entire local economy.

Key
Boundaries show 
Lower Level Super 
Output Areas 
(LSOAs)
▪ Red = most 

deprived 10% in 
England

▪ Blue = least 
deprived 10% in 
England

Source: Indices of Multiple Deprivation 2019 (DLUHC)

Map of areas of Income Deprivation - Sefton

All areas have 
similar 
population. Size 
of this area 
reflects low 
population 
density NOT a 
higher 
proportion of 
deprivation

P
age 20

A
genda Item

 6



BUSINESS ACTIVITY 5

0
10
20
30
40
50
60
70

Kn
ow

sl
ey

 (r
an

k 
36

5)

Li
ve

rp
oo

l (
ra

nk
 3

36
)

St
. H

el
en

s 
(ra

nk
 3

31
)

H
al

to
n 

(ra
nk

 3
25

)

Se
fto

n 
(ra

nk
 3

00
)

W
irr

al
 (r

an
k 

29
2)

Av
er

ag
e

Bu
si

ne
ss

 u
ni

ts
 p

er
 1

,0
00

 w
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 
pe

op
le

9.92
10.72

9.59 9.45 9.96
9.13

6.92 7.06 6.93 6.91
7.64 7.18

0.00

2.00

4.00

6.00

8.00

10.00

12.00

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020Bu
si

ne
ss

 s
ta

rt-
up

s 
pe

r 1
,0

00
 w

or
ki

ng
 

ag
e 

pe
op

le

England Sefton

Business Density (business units / 1,000 working 
age residents) – rank out of 374 Local Authorities)

Business Start-ups (business units / 1,000 working 
age residents)

Source: ONS Business Count Data

▪ The LCR has a low level of business density – the 
highest ranked Local Authority in the City Region is 
ranked 292 out of 374 Local Authorities.

▪ The average number of businesses is 66 per 1,000 
working age people but in Sefton the number is 49.

▪ Sefton has continuously and significantly created 
fewer businesses than England as a whole. The 
gap was the narrowest in 2020 although even in this 
year Sefton created 21% fewer businesses per 
working age person than England.

▪ In the majority of Wards within Sefton, the 
proportion of public sector employment is higher 
than the average for England (see overleaf).

▪ In 3 Wards within Sefton the proportion of 
employees employed by the public sector is >50% 
(Ford, Derby & Sudell covering areas of Bootle and 
Maghull).

▪ Public sector has been an important employment 
generator in Sefton.

▪ Year-on-year under-performance in business 
creation is undermining the wealth creation 
potential in the area.

P
age 21

A
genda Item

 6



BUSINESS ACTIVITY 6

Ward Percentage of employment public sector

Ford 61.9
Derby 60.5
Sudell 57.1
Kew 39.9
St Oswald 38.4
Linacre 38.3
Manor 30.6
Sefton Average 24.6
Ainsdale 23.6
Birkdale 23.0
Harington 22.6
Litherland 19.1
Meols 18.4
Park 17.3
Church 17.3
England Average 16.8
Blundellsands 15.8
Netherton and Orrell 14.5
Cambridge 13.8
Victoria 10.7
Duke's 10.5
Molyneux 10.4
Ravenmeols 7.2
Norwood 4.7

Higher propensity for 
public sector employment 
than average

Lower propensity for 
public sector employment 
than average

P
age 22

A
genda Item

 6



OUT COMMUTING 7

▪ In common with many LCR Local Authorities, Sefton 
has high levels of out-commuting.

▪ 46% of working residents earned their income from 
outside the Borough at the 2011 census

▪ This data will be up-dated in 2022.
▪ Rail data (overleaf) suggests increasing out-

commuting during the period.
▪ Out-commuting fell dramatically during the 

pandemic.
▪ Pandemic work patterns provides the possibility of a 

reset.
▪ There is the potential for a reset in working 

patterns post pandemic increasing earning and 
retained spending in the area.

Percentage

Knowsley 65%

St. Helens 52%

Sefton 46%

Halton 46%

Wirral 37%

Liverpool 30%

Net commuting flows Sefton (>100)

Percentage out-commuting LCR

Source: Census 2011

P
age 23

A
genda Item

 6



OUT COMMUTING 8

Selected Sefton rail station usage time series

Southport station usage

Combined Bootle station usage (New Strand / Oriel 
Road)

Maghull Station usage

Source: Office of Road and Rail 

P
age 24

A
genda Item

 6



SECURING A WORKFORCE IN THE FUTURE 9

93
94
95
96
97
98
99

100
101
102
103
104

In
de

x 
(2

02
1=

10
0)

England Sefton

153,000
154,000
155,000
156,000
157,000
158,000
159,000
160,000
161,000
162,000
163,000

W
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 p
op

ul
at

io
n

▪ Media commentary describes the ageing population 
at a national level.

▪ The issue will be more acute in Sefton with 
projections suggesting a decline of 5,663 in people 
aged 16-64 (still used as a proxy for ‘working age’ 

despite changing retirements ages). This represents 
a shrinkage of 3.5% at a time when those in need of 
adult social care is likely to increase.

▪ The scale of change is expected to be greater in 
Sefton than in England as a whole.

▪ Estimates beyond 2038 (when the situation is 
expected to ease) are somewhat speculative since 
the population that will be within the working age 
group by this date have not yet been born.

▪ Economic development policies of the next 
decade are likely to include a focus on the 
attraction and retention of talent. 

Projected population aged 16-64 time series 2020-2042

Index of projected change in population aged 16-64 for 
Sefton and England

Source: ONS Population projections

P
age 25

A
genda Item

 6



WORKFORCE AND SKILLS AVAILABILITY 10

0

10,000

20,000

30,000

40,000

50,000

60,000

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

W
or

ki
ng

 a
ge

 p
op

ul
at

io
n

NVQ 4+ NVQ 1 or lower

0

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021Pe
rc

en
t w

or
ki

ng
 a

ge
 p

op
ul

at
io

n

Sefton England

Working age population skills achievement

Proportion of working age population with no skills

Source: Annual Population Survey

▪ Skill levels in Sefton have been improving.
▪ The number of people of working age in Sefton 

achieving NVQ level 4 and above has been 
increasing whilst the number of people with no skills 
has been declining.

▪ Sefton and England are comparable in terms of the 
proportion of the working age population with no 
skills.

▪ According to experimental ONS data the area is 
mid-ranked in terms of the workforce at risk of a 
loss of employment due to automation (129th of 354 
Authorities ranked).

▪ Sefton has out-performed the national picture when 
claimant count levels are considered with a less 
pronounced impact of Covid-19 on out of work 
benefits and a more rapid recovery than England as 
a whole

▪ At a Sefton wide level skills and employment 
data can be viewed in a positive light although, 
as ever, the average figures mask areas of 
severe deprivation.

P
age 26

A
genda Item

 6



WORKFORCE AND SKILLS AVAILABILITY 11

7,715

5,575
4,705 4,325 4,340

5,400
6,215

11,945
10,755

7,045

2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

0
20
40
60
80

100
120
140
160
180
200

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021 2022

In
de

x 
of

 c
la

im
an

t c
ou

nt
 

(2
01

3=
10

0)

Sefton England

Total out of work claimant count Sefton

Total out of work claimant count Sefton v England index (2012=100)

Source: ONS Claimant Count Data

P
age 27

A
genda Item

 6



ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT & PLACE 12

6.0
5.8

6.3 6.2

6.6 6.6 6.5 6.6 6.5
6.8

4.8
4.7 4.8

4.9 5.0
5.1 5.0 5.1

5.0

5.5

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 2020 2021

M
ed

ia
n 

ho
us

e 
pr

ic
e 

to
 m

ed
ia

n 
sa

la
rie

s
Sefton LCR Average (excl. Sefton)

Ha B1 B2 Small Scale B8

Sefton 24.2 15.0 9.5

LCR (plus West 
Lancashire)

235.7 437.3 118.2

Estimated employment Land Need (based on completions) 2012-37

Source: GL Hearn SHELMA for LCR 2018 

Housing Affordability ratio – Sefton & LCR 

Source: Housing data DLUHC

▪ Economic development is increasingly about place 
– employment and a living environment at the 
confluence of transport routes and growth creates a 
critical mass of activity generates ideas and 
opportunity.

▪ Sefton has a strong demand for new housing 
provision and the house price affordability is lower 
than elsewhere in the LCR as a whole (although 
recently affordability is slightly ahead of Wirral at a 
Local Authority level).

▪ Recent employment land studies also suggest that 
there is a shortfall of available land against current 
demand.

▪ There is a clear need for additional housing 
provision and to create a mixed variety of 
properties including both affordable properties 
in areas of high demand and more aspirational 
housing in areas of income deprivation.

▪ There is a need to provide employment land but 
with a focus on land which can accommodate 
higher employment density space especially 
where higher value employment can be created.

P
age 28

A
genda Item

 6



DISPARITIES WITHIN SEFTON

▪ When setting out an economic narrative for Sefton it is 
important that the story of the Borough is told in sections.

▪ At a Local Authority level, for many economic measures, 
average performance is unremarkable but this masks 
fundamental issues.

▪ When data is presented at a Sefton level the case for 
intervention is often lost.

▪ Sefton has some areas (Lower Level Super Output 
Areas) in the 10% least deprived in the country – but 
double the average proportion in the most deprived. 
These are generally (but not exclusively) in the south of 
the Borough.

▪ On average measures – such as resident income, Sefton 
records average resident incomes (2021) at 3% higher 
than the NW average.

▪ Data and interventions can be more strongly aligned 
to the requirements of place. Sefton is not a one size 
fits all Authority but nor is it as simple as a north / 
south split.

13

0

5

10

15

20

25

1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10

Pe
rc

en
ta

ge

Decile of deprivation (1 most deprived 10%; 10 least deprived 10%)

The distribution of deprivation in Sefton – percentages of areas in 
different levels of deprivation. Map shows Sefton areas in the 
10% most deprived in England

P
age 29

A
genda Item

 6



RECOMMENDED THEMES 

View are sought on the key findings, other ideas of those 
reviewing the data and the key themes against which it is 
proposed that the Economic Strategy is framed.

These key themes are:
▪ Employment and opportunities for work
▪ Business Growth & Investment
▪ Social inclusion and access for all
▪ Regenerated places

14

P
age 30

A
genda Item

 6



CONTACT 15

Mickledore Ltd.

Nigel Wilcock
Director

nwilcock@regionaldevelopment.co.uk
01925 837679
07747 085400

Unit 207 
The Base

Dallam Lane
Warrington 
WA2 7NG

P
age 31

A
genda Item

 6

mailto:nwilcock@regionaldevelopment.co.uk


 
  

 

 

 Have your say on the Draft Sefton Economic Strategy 2022/23 

 

 

yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk 

 

 

Page 32

Agenda Item 6



 
Tell us what you think 
 
Introduction  
 
Sefton Council is seeking views on the draft evidence base that will help the production of 
a new Sefton Economic Strategy.  

Comments made here will inform a refreshed and re-purposed Sefton Economic Strategy. 

Sefton Council has appointed Mickledore to provide a refresh of the Economic Strategy for 
the area post Covid-19. Sefton approved an Economic Strategy in 2018/19 but since that 
date the impacts on the economy have been severe. Mickledore undertook a review of the 
impacts of Covid-19 in 2020 and the actions which could be undertaken. This document 
picks out the economic information considered most important in describing the Sefton 
economy in 2022 and the themes against which a strategy could be developed. 

Strategic economic growth is also a key part of the Sefton 2030 Vision and core purpose. 
The new Sefton Economic Strategy 2022/23 will be used to help engage our many 
stakeholders into collective and collaborative action to provide emergency support to our 
residents, communities, and businesses. 

 
What is this questionnaire for? 
 

We are now seeking your views on the Sefton Economic Strategy Consultation document 
and its key findings. We would be grateful if you could spend a few minutes completing 
this short questionnaire.   

Please read a copy of the draft Sefton Economic Strategy before completing the 
questions.  If you do not have a copy of the strategy, please email 
mike.mullin@sefton.gov.uk 

 
When will the consultation start and end? 
 
The consultation period will start on 15th July 2022 and will last for 4 weeks, finishing on 
12th August 2022. 
 

 
How to get involved 
 
To give us your views, please complete this survey or you can complete it online at 
https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/ 
 
Copies of this consultation document are available in other formats such as large print, 
audio, easy read, etc. on request.  To request this service please call 0151 934 3733. 
 

Page 33

Agenda Item 6

https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/
https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/


If you would like help to give us your comments or fill in the questionnaire, please phone 
0151 934 3733 between 10.00am – 3.00pm. 
 
 
What we will do with your feedback 
 
The information you provide will be looked at and may form part of the Sefton Economic 
Strategy, which we will share with people who have taken part in the consultation.  A 
report will go to Cabinet on the 6th September for them to consider.  Information will also 
be put on the Your Sefton Your Say consultation hub. 
 
Please return this questionnaire to: 
 
Response Forms should be received by the Council no later than 5.00pm on Friday 12th 
August 2022 
 
Hard copy forms should be sent to: 
 
Jayne Vincent 
Strategic Support 
Magdalen House 
30 Trinity Road, Bootle, Merseyside L20 3NJ 
 
Or emailed to investsefton@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 
Privacy Notice – Sefton Economic Strategy 
Consultation 2022/23 
We thank you for participating in this consultation and we value your contribution. 

The categories of this information that we collect, process, hold and share include: 
 
We are collecting personal identifiers as part of this survey which includes IP address. This 
is so we can ensure only one response is received per consultee Following validation of 
the data the IP addresses and full names will be deleted.  The addresses and postcodes 
will be retained until the data has been fully analysed and a full report completed.   

 
Why we collect and use this information 
 
The information you provide will help the Council to develop the Sefton Economic Strategy 
to help improve the economic conditions of Sefton’s residents, communities and 
businesses. We are collecting your contact details so we can keep you informed of the 
strategy development and if you have said that you would like to contribute towards the 
strategy. We will publish the results of the consultation on the Sefton Council Website 
including a summary of questions/comments received and any responses given.  All 
responses will be anonymised. If you would like to receive a copy please email 
yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk or telephone 0151 934 3733. 
 
 

Page 34

Agenda Item 6

mailto:yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk


Storing this information  
 
Any personal information that you provide to the Council as part of this consultation will be 
handled and used in compliance with the principles of the UK General Data Protection 
Regulation. Regardless of whether it is electronic or on paper it will be stored and 
processed securely and deleted within 2 years.    
 
The lawful basis upon which we use this data: 
 

Sefton Council is developing an Economic Strategy to help improve the economic 
conditions of Sefton’s residents, communities and businesses. This work directly supports 
the Council’s Sefton 2030 vision and aligns with the UK Government’s Local Democracy 
Economic Development and Construction Act 2009 

Article 6 of the UK General Data Protection Regulation 

6(1)(e) – The processing is necessary for the performance of a task carried out in the 
public interest or in the exercise of official authority vested in the controller. 

Sefton Council  

The Council also asks equality monitoring questions to help it comply with the Equality Act 
2010 to help us understand who is responding to the survey and to help us ensure that 
there is equality of opportunity for protected groups of people. 

Confidentiality of data: 

Your contributions will be anonymised on receipt and your comments will then be used for 
research and consultation purposes. Your identity and contact details will not be published 
by us at any stage without your consent. 

Who we share this information with: 

Your personal data will not be shared with any external organisations. Analysis or reports 
arising from the consultation will contain anonymised data. 

Your personal data is not transferred outside of the UK 

Requesting access to your personal data 

You have the right, in certain circumstances to: 

- Object to processing of personal data that is likely to cause, or is causing damage 
or distress 

- Prevent processing for the purposes of direct marketing 
- Object to decisions being taken by automated means 
- In certain circumstances, have inaccurate personal data rectified, blocked, erased 

or destroyed; and 

The right to lodge a complaint with the supervisory authority (the Information 
Commissioner’s Office) 

Withdraw consent for the processing where consent is the lawful basis 
Page 35

Agenda Item 6



To make a request for your personal information or to exercise any of your rights as set 
out above, please complete the Individual’s Rights Form found at the following link on our 
website or call 0345 140 0845 

Privacy policy (sefton.gov.uk) 

For more information about this Privacy Notice, please contact: 

investsefton@sefton.gov.uk 

The contact for this consultation is: 

Economic Growth & Housing, InvestSefton, Magdalen House, Trinity Road, Bootle 
Merseyside, L20 3NJ 
E-mail: investsefton@sefton.gov.uk Telephone: 0151 934 3452 
 
Data Protection Officer 

Sefton Council’s Data Protection Officer can be contacted at:E-mail: 
ino.information@sefton.gov.uk Telephone: 0345 140 0845 

 
 
  

Page 36

Agenda Item 6

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/miscellaneous-pages/privacy-policy.aspx
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/miscellaneous-pages/privacy-policy.aspx
mailto:investsefton@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:investsefton@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:investsefton@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:investsefton@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:ino.information@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:ino.information@sefton.gov.uk


About You 
 

1. Please tell us which best describes you. 
A local business  
A Developer/Investor  
An organisation  
A member of the public who lives in Sefton  
A member of the public who does not live in 
Sefton, but visits the borough 

 

Other (please tell us) 
 

The Four Themes 
2. Do you agree or disagree that Employment and Opportunities for work should 

be a theme for the Sefton Economic Strategy? 
 

Strongly Agree  
Agree  
Disagree  
Strongly disagree  

  

3. Do you agree or disagree that Business Growth and Investment for should be a 
theme for the Sefton Economic Strategy? 

 
Strongly Agree  
Agree  
Disagree  
Strongly disagree  

 

4. Do you agree or disagree that Social Inclusion and access for all should be a 
theme for the Sefton Economic Strategy? 

 
Strongly Agree  
Agree  
Disagree  
Strongly disagree  

 
 

5. Do you agree or disagree that Regenerated Places should be a theme for the 
Sefton Economic Strategy? 

 
Strongly Agree  
Agree  
Disagree  
Strongly disagree  

 
 
 
 
 
 Page 37

Agenda Item 6



6. Do you agree or disagree that the key data findings in the document are the 
most important for the economy in Sefton? 

 
Strongly Agree  
Agree  
Disagree  
Strongly disagree  

 

7. Please use the box below to provide any comments you have on the proposed 
four themes and the key data findings. 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Key issues 
8. On a scale of 1-5, with 1 being low and 5 being high, please tell us to what 

extent do you rank the importance of the areas as identified as Key issues for 
Sefton. 

    Low   High 
Key issues 1 2 3 4 5 
More local businesses and social businesses 
that help people and communities 

     

People and businesses investing their time and 
money in Sefton 

     

Sefton is a place where people want to work 
and supporting people who live in Sefton into 
work and being trained to get better jobs. 

     

Have houses that people can afford and a mix 
of different housing 

     

Develop land and buildings for employment 
 

     

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 38

Agenda Item 6



9. Please use the box below for any comments you have on the key issues. 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
Keeping informed and involved 
 
In accordance with the information at the beginning of the questionnaire in the ‘Privacy 
Notice’ 
 

10. Do you want to be kept informed about the Sefton Economic Strategy? 
 

    Yes 
 

No 
 

11. Would you or your organisation like to contribute towards the development and 
delivery of the Sefton Economic Strategy? 

 
Yes 

 
No 

 

12. If you have ticked YES to the above, please provide your contact details below: 
 

Name  
Organisation name  
Email address  
Postcode of 
business or 
organisation (if 
applicable) 

 

 

THANK YOU 
 

If you are a member of the public, please consider 
answering the equality monitoring questions below. 
 
 
 
 

 

Page 39

Agenda Item 6



You do not have to complete the next few questions if you do not want to, and 
you can answer as much or as little as you wish.   The Council asks these 
questions to help us comply with the Equality Act 2010 to help us understand 
who is responding to the survey and to help us ensure that there is equality of 
opportunity for protected groups of people. 
 
All contributions will be anonymised on receipt.  You have the right to ask for 
any personal information to be destroyed and you can withdraw your consent 
at any time. 
 
Do you agree or disagree to provide your details in accordance with the 
Privacy Notice? 
 

Yes  No  

 
How old are you? 

 
Under 18 

  
18-29 

  
30-39 

  
40-49 

 

50-59  60-69  70-79  80-84  

85+        

 
 
 Are you  
 

Male   Female  Prefer not to say  

 
 
People are planning to, started to or have changed their sex are protected by 
the Equalities Law Act. 

Are you planning to, started to, or have changed your sex?  This is 
called gender reassignment. 

Yes  No  Prefer not to say  
 

 
If you answered Yes to question 3.   

Do you currently live as the sex you were given when you were born?  

Yes  No  Prefer not to say  
 

Page 40

Agenda Item 6



If you do not live as the sex you were given at birth, are you? 

Yes  No  Prefer not to say  
 

How would you describe your sexual orientation? 
 

Heterosexual  Bisexual  

Gay  Lesbian  

I identify differently  Prefer not to say  

 
 
 
Disability: Do you have any of the following (please tick all that apply): 
 

Physical Impairment  Visual Impairment  

Learning Difficulty  Hearing Impairment/deaf  

Learning Disability  Long term illness that 
affects your daily activity 

 

Autism/Asperger’s  Dementia  

Mental Health condition  Prefer not to say  

 
 
 
 
 Please read the following statement … 
 
 
 
 If you have ticked any of the boxes above, or you have cancer, diabetes 

or HIV this would be classed as ‘disability’ under the legislation.  Do you 
consider yourself to be ‘disabled’? 

 
Yes  No  Prefer not to say  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Other disability 

Page 41

Agenda Item 6



What is your religion or belief?  
 
 

No religion or belief  Christian  

Hindu  Muslim  

Jewish  Sikh  

Prefer not to say    

Other – please specify     

 
 
 
Race and ethnicity – do you identify as …. 
 

Prefer not to say  

 
White 

English, Welsh, Scottish, 
Northern Irish, British 

 Irish  

Gypsy or Irish Traveller  Roma  

Polish  Portuguese  

Latvian    

Other White background    

 
Mixed/Multiple ethnic Groups 

White and Black 
Caribbean 

 White and Black African  

White and Asian  Other mixed ethnic 
background 

 

 
Asian or Asian British 

Indian  Pakistani  

Bangladeshi  Chinese  

Other Asian Background    

 

 

Page 42

Agenda Item 6



  
Black/African/Caribbean/Black British 
 

African    

Other Black background 
 

   

 
Another Ethnic group 

Arab  Other ethnic background 
 

 

 
  
 

Page 43

Agenda Item 6



Draft Sefton Economic Strategy Consultation  
 

 

An Economic Strategy is a plan 
that looks at the business and 
employment needs of an area 
and sets out what the Council 
will do to meet these needs. 

 

Sefton Council has a Sefton 
Economic Strategy but work on 
this changed because of the 
COVID-19 pandemic. 

 

Now that we are recovering 
from the pandemic, we need to 
look again at the Economic Plan 
for Sefton again to make sure: 

• The information is correct 
and important for Sefton 

• Whether the four themes 
are the correct themes  

 
 
 
 
 

We collect lots of information to 
help develop the plan: 

• How many people are in 
work? 

• How many people do not 
work? 

• How many people work as 
managers? 

• How many people have an 
NVQ4 or above? 

Easy 
Read 

Page 44

Agenda Item 6



 

• How much people get paid 
a week? 

• How many people are on 
benefits? 

 
 
 
 

There are areas of Sefton where 
there are more people who do 
not work and if they work the 
money, they get for the work 
they do, is less than other areas 
of the borough.  One of the 
areas is Bootle. Another area is 
part of Southport. 
 

 Sefton is part of the Liverpool 
City Region.  The Liverpool City 
Region is an area that also 
covers, Knowsley, Halton, 
St.Helens, Liverpool and the 
Wirral. 
 
 

 

 
 
The Liverpool City Region works 
together to create jobs, have 
easier transport links, and 
organise  
events. 
 

 

Page 45

Agenda Item 6



 

In Sefton there are not as many 
businesses as other parts of the 
Liverpool City Region and of 
England. We need to create and 
develop more businesses. 
 
 

 

 
• Lots of people in Sefton work 

for Sefton Council 
• Health 
• Schools 
• The Fire Service  
• The Police 

 
 

 
 
Lots of people who live in Sefton 
travel outside of Sefton to go to 
work. 

 

 
During the pandemic, lots of 
people worked at home more. 
 
 
 
 

Page 46

Agenda Item 6



 
 

 
The way people work has 
changed, and this will have to 
be looked at. 

 

A lot of older people live in 
Sefton. This means that there is 
likely to be less working age 
people (aged 16 – 64) in the 
future. 

 

 

 
 
The need for adult social care 
will be higher. 

 

 

In Sefton, there will be a need to 
attract people to work in Sefton 
and to keep them as members 
of staff. 

Page 47

Agenda Item 6



 

 
 
More people in Sefton are 
learning new work-related skills. 

 

 

 
 
There are more people aged 16 
– 64 years, who have got an 
NVQ4 and above. 

 

 
 
There are some areas of Sefton 
where people are not as skilled 
as other areas of the borough. 

 

 

 
 
The number of people getting 
unemployment benefits now is 
lower than during the covid-19 
pandemic. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 48

Agenda Item 6



 

 
Transport routes in Sefton help 
people with getting to work. 

 

There is a demand for housing 
that people can afford in Sefton.  

 
 

There is a lack of land for 
building houses though. 

 
 
 
 
 

From the information above, we 
think that the four main themes 
for the Sefton Economic Strategy 
are: 

• Employment and 
opportunities for work 

• Business Growth and 
Investment 

• Social inclusion and access 
for all (where individuals and 
groups can take part in the 
area where they live) 

Page 49

Agenda Item 6



 

• Regenerated places (to 
improve the places where 
people live) 

 
 

 
This consultation would like your 
feedback on this and any other 
ideas you might have for 
themes. 

 

You can take part in this 
consultation by completing this 
survey form and sending it back 
to :investsefton@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 
 
 

 

 
You can also go online to 
yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk 
and complete the survey online. 
 
 

Page 50

Agenda Item 6

mailto:yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:yourseftonyoursay@sefton.gov.uk


 

 
 
If you need help to complete the 
survey, please contact  
Mike Mullin-07927 787436 
 
 

 

 

 
If you need the survey in a 
different way, such as large print 
or audio, please telephone 
07927 787436 and we will send 
you a copy. 

 

The consultation starts on the 14th 
July and ends on the 12th August 
2022. 

 

Page 51

Agenda Item 6



 Interim Equality Analysis Report – Sefton 
Economic Strategy-Consultation 2022 
 
The Sefton Economic Strategy (SES) 2022 is an update, refresh and re-purposing of SES 
2019. It also builds on the work of the Sefton Strategic Recovery Plan (Economy) 
produced in May 2021 and sets out the Council’s Economic priorities to help lead the 
recovery process from the COVID-19 pandemic. The plan will set our Sefton’s strategic 
priorities for: 
 

1. Employment and opportunities for work 
2. Business Growth & Investment 
3. Social inclusion and access for all 
4. Regenerated places 

 
The strategy consultation document provides an economic evidence base which looks all 
aspects of the Sefton economy including trends for business, employment, and the wider 
borough economy. The strategy will form the basis of an economic framework and 
associated action plans for delivering specific projects and programmes. This will be 
achieved by working collectively and collaboratively with partners and stakeholders, 
which intend to create positive outcomes for individuals and communities.   
Ramifications of Proposal:  
 
The whole population of Sefton will be affected.  Economic impacts affect all people who 
live, work, visit and study in the borough. 
 
The Sefton Economic Strategy will set both a framework and associated activity plans 
purpose is to help ensure that our priorities and delivery is effective across the whole of 
the borough.   
 
The strategy does highlight that there are potentially groups of people who have been 
particularly impacted by the economic downturn mostly attributed to the effects of the 
Covid-19 pandemic but also including long-standing issues that have affected the 
economy: 
 

• People who work in the Hospitality Leisure , Healthcare and town centre Retail 
sectors  

• Lower skilled and lower paid (because of the employment opportunities in the 
industries affected) 

• Female members of the workforce 
• People who are long-term unemployed or furthest away from the labour market 
• People who have been lost their jobs as a result of the pandemic  
• People with disabilities or health conditions affecting their ability to engage with 

the labour market 
 
 
Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally 
affected in comparison to others?  
 
Age The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy 

(Employment & Access to work) are likely to have a 

Page 52

Agenda Item 6



positive impact on individuals and communities with 
regards to the protected characteristic of age, with 
specific initiatives included to support younger people.  

We also recognise that older people seeking 
employment may be affected and we have put in place 
some provision to ensure they have access to 
assistance 

A potential barrier may be access to and the availability 
of information about the Strategy and  any planned 
actions/activities arising from it. Any marketing of these 
initiatives may need to be targeted to ensure that 
demographics are aware of these initiatives and can 
access the opportunities available. 

Disability (physical, 
visual, hearing, learning 
disabilities and mental 
health) 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy are 
likely to have a positive impact on individuals and 
communities with regards to the protected characteristic 
of disability. 

Any specific initiatives included within the Strategy 
action plan will support people with disabilities and 
should create a positive impact on this characteristic. 

People with disabilities or long-term conditions face 
much higher levels of worklessness than others.  A 
potential barrier may be access to and the availability of 
information about the Strategy and any planned 
actions/activities arising from it. This includes people 
with learning disabilities or learning difficulties who may 
require additional support to appreciate what 
opportunities are available.  Having information in 
accessible formats will help to ensure being able to 
access the opportunities.  Involving the support of 
Advocacy Groups can also help with the engagement of 
the recovery approach. 

 
People who have lost their jobs as a result of COVID-
19may also be experiencing poor mental health and the 
impact of COVID-19 is likely to increase the demand for 
mental health services.  People who have been 
displaced in this way may experience a lack of 
confidence about returning to the workplace or to a new 
area of work outside their experience The training 
schemes can support this, as can guidance and support 
to employers on creating proactive approaches to risk 
assessment for staff, including physical and mental 

Page 53

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

Carers 

health  which can support the return to 
work/employment. 
 
We recognise that poor mental health can affect 
significant numbers of people of any age and any 
background(evidenced by the reported increase among  
young people – and we expect that all activity arising 
from this Strategy will reflect this changing landscape 
and incorporate  additional measures to address this.  
 

During COVID and the subsequent lockdowns the 
Carers Centre have reported that it has been extremely 
difficult for some carers to the people they care for to 
have respite or to pursue employment or training. This 
may continue as we enter the recovery period as the 
people who they care for may require more care and 
support, leaving carers with reduced time to access 
training and employment opportunities and return to 
work/workforce.  Working with the Sefton Carers Centre 
will help to understand further the needs of carers and 
share the support available. 

Gender Reassignment  The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy are 
likely to have a positive impact on individuals and 
communities with regards to the protected characteristic 
of gender reassignment. 

A potential barrier may be access to and availability of 
relevant information on national and local support for 
gender-reassignment, both within the Council and other 
organisations (employers).  Therefore, additional 
monitoring of this protected characteristic may be 
required.  

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy will 
provide positive impacts for all members of the 
community and fully includes individuals within the 
protected characteristic of marriage and civil 
partnership.  We will promote equality and diversity in 
recruitment with all employers we work with. 

Race 

 

 

 

The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy  are 
likely to have a positive impact on individuals and 
communities with regards to the protected characteristic 
of race, however the following should be considered: 

• A potential negative impact may occur for 
individuals/communities where English is not 
their first or second language and therefore 

Page 54

Agenda Item 6



 

 

 

Gypsy & Romany 
Travellers 

 

Migrant workers 

 

 

 

Asylum Seekers and 
Refugees 

 

 

 

inadvertently lack engagement with the recovery 
approach and may need support to understand 
national/ local guidance. 

• Largely mobile population and some of the 
population may have lower literacy levels and 
less access to education - who are more likely to 
miss information about the recovery and training 
and employment opportunities.  

• Migrant workers being furloughed during the 
lockdown have been anxious about income 
levels and statutory sick pay incomes and 
haven’t been informed by their employers of the 
Government guidance and shielding rights1 

• There may be concerns around the impact in 
immigration status. 

Where appropriate information in appropriate 
languages and in accessible formats can be available 
to mitigate and barriers. 

Work with employers to ensure that they have access to  
up to date, relevant  Government Guidance equalities 
and promote opportunities for all Sefton communities  

The Council and partners will ensure communication is 
effective, clear and where appropriate translated in 
other languages.  They will also work closely with 
trusted organisations and individuals, in a culturally 
appropriate and sensitive way to ensure that recovery is 
experienced across all of Sefton. 

• Irish Community Care http://iccm.org.uk/contact/ 
• Sefton CVS BME Community Development 

Project 
• Migrant Workers Sefton Community Charity 

Religion and Belief 
(includes no belief) 

The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy will 
provide positive impacts for all members of the 
community and fully includes individuals within the 
protected characteristic of religion and belief. 

Sex  The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy are 
likely to have a positive impact on individuals and 
communities with regards to the protected characteristic 
of sex. 

 
1 BME Community Development Worker Report – CVS - 2020 

Page 55

Agenda Item 6

http://iccm.org.uk/contact/


A potential barrier may be access to and the availability 
of information about the Strategy and any planned 
actions/activities arising from it. Any marketing of these 
initiatives may need to be targeted to ensure that both 
men and women (including those furthest away from 
the labour market) are aware of these initiatives and 
can access the opportunities available. 

We recognise there are some sectors of our labour 
market where employment of males or females 
dominate and there is unequal representation of the 
sexes, both across the workforce and within managerial 
structures. We aim to ensure that all our activity will 
promote equality of access and opportunity and will 
take relevant action to encourage more diverse 
recruitment and progression wherever possible. 

.  

Sexual Orientation The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy are 
likely to have a positive impact on individuals and 
communities with regards to the protected characteristic 
of sexual orientation. 

A potential barrier may be access to and availability of 
relevant information on national and local information 
on sexual orientation, both within the Council and other 
organisations (employers).  Therefore, additional 
monitoring of this protected characteristic may be 
required. 

The Strategy will be delivered in the context of the work 
undertaken by the Council and its partners related to 
the NAVAJO standard of access for all LGBTQi plus 
groups 

Pregnancy and Maternity  The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy will 
provide positive impacts for all members of the 
community and fully includes individuals within the 
protected characteristic pregnancy and maternity. 

 

We will ensure that employers are signposted to 
relevant sources of information and support, so they are 
aware of best practice in this area. We will also provide 
guidance and signposting for individual community 
members on their rights in relation to pregnancy and 
maternity in the context of employment and training. 

Page 56

Agenda Item 6



  

Consultation: 
 
 
 
Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will be met? 
 
The Equality Act 2010 requires that those subject to the Equality Duty must, in the 
exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to: 

1. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and other conduct 
prohibited by the Act. 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 
characteristic and those who do not. 

3. Foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and 
those who do not. 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves: 

• Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their protected 
characteristics. 

• Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where these are 
different from the needs of other people. 

•   Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in other   
activities where their participation is disproportionately low. 

 
 
The objectives of the Sefton Economic Strategy will provide positive impacts for all 
individuals and communities. 

The Sefton Economic Strategy aims to create inclusive communities and foster good 
community relations, building aspiration and confidence. 

Key initiatives within the approach are focused on involving communities, giving them a 
voice and supporting them to be involved in decision-making. Therefore, this is likely to be 
a further positive impact on individuals and communities with regards to community 
cohesion. 

A potential barrier may be access to and the availability of information about the Strategy 
and any planned actions/activities arising from it and having information in accessible 
formats will help to ensure them  being able to access the opportunities.  Involving the 
support of Sefton@work, the Carers Centre, Advocacy Groups and VCF Networks can also 
help with the engagement of the recovery approach. 

Sefton Council (and Sefton@Work) will work collaboratively with communities, businesses, 
educators and training providers to ensure that it grows its workforce with the right skills, 

Page 57

Agenda Item 6



from those furthest away from the labour market to those most recently displaced due to 
the pandemic and provide training and apprenticeship opportunities for transitional careers 
and new skill development. 
 
Sefton Council will drive and promote Social Value through procurement, both as a Council 
and through shared values with our partners and investors to help create equality of 
opportunity. 
 
Information will be available in accessible formats and alternative languages, where 
appropriate, to mitigate any barriers where information needs to be in different ways so it 
can be understood and therefore inadvertently lack engagement with the Recovery 
approach. 
 
Partnership working is important to the recovery and the Sefton Economic Strategy builds 
on the strong, well-established partner relationships in Sefton, to further develop local 
initiatives for wider social good.  These strong relationships will help foster good relations 
between individuals and communities, helping to create awareness of the programme and 
specific initiatives so that they are accessible to all. 
 
 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & Council? 
 
Include details of any mitigating action and ongoing monitoring to address any of the 
equality impacts highlighted above 
 

• Further consultations and engagement with individual characteristics will take place 
as part of the ongoing development and individual work programmes. 

 
• Equality Impact Assessments will also be undertaken, if appropriate, on the 

individual elements of the work programmes.  They will seek to mitigate any 
adverse impact to any of the protected groups. 
 

•   Engage with key partners to further understand the issues and mitigations of 
protected groups, for example People First, Sefton CVS BME Community 
Development Project, Migrant Workers Sefton Community Charity,, Equal Voice 
(BME) Network, Sefton Carers Centre, Embrace Network and In Trust Merseyside  
 

•  Further consideration of the marketing and communications needed for the Sefton 
Economic Strategy will be accessible and targeted, where appropriate. 
 

•    Continue to promote access to learning from our emerging evidence and best 
practice across the system.   
  

•   All actions will be overseen and monitored by the Economy Cell  and 
Senior/Executive management of the Council. 

 
 
 

 

Page 58

Agenda Item 6



Page 1 of 9 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 15th July 2022 
 
Title: Feedback and Evaluation report – 0-19 Commissioning Consultation 
 
Report of:  Julie Murray – Julie.Murray@sefton.gov.uk 
 Natalie Ashworth – Natalie.Ashworth@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To provide feedback on the consultation carried out in relation to the 0-19 

Healthy Child Programme Commission. 
 
 1.2 The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports 

in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation 
and will consider: - 

 
• How the activity was carried out. 

 
• the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process. 

 
• The number of people who took part and the costs of the different 

methods of getting them involved.  
 

• How successful different methods were at getting the views of people 
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people and 
people with disabilities. 
 

• How the results will be fed back to the public; and 
 

• How will the results influence policies and service plans. 
 
 

2.      Name of Issue you were Consulting On 
 
 2.1 Sefton’s Public Health Team commission delivery of the 0-19 Healthy 

Child Programme.  This programme includes provision delivered by the 
School Nursing Service, Health Visitor Service and Nursery Nurses, who 
help to address the health and wellbeing needs of our children and young 
people both in a universal and targeted manner, alongside delivering other 
functions such as health checks and immunisations.   

 
2.2  Currently provided by Merseycare NHS Trust (previously Northwest   

Boroughs Healthcare Trust), the service specification incorporates local 
need based on the JSNA, Equality Impact Assessment (completed as part 
of the procurement process) and wider rich health data sources. Although 
not an ongoing requirement, built into the specification was a continuing 

Page 59

Agenda Item 8



Page 2 of 9 

commitment to include regular consultation and engagement to ensure 
that families were given the opportunity to give their views and thoughts 
on the service and as such shape and improve future delivery. Resultantly 
the service is not just addressing local need based on data and evidence, 
but considering feedback on what children, young people and families 
actually want to see included as part of the provision. 
 

2.3     The service includes delivery of some mandated elements as outlined in 
the Health Child Programme and governed by the Office of Health 
Improvement and Disparities (OHID). The inclusion of further and regular 
consultation and engagement, which is then implemented through 
improvements in delivery, ensures that the service meets any changing 
demands faced by services users. Most recent examples include the 
impact of COVD in children and young people, and the increased need to 
address mental wellbeing. 

 
3. The Consultation Process 
 
 3.1 Alongside the Smoking Consultation that has previously been fed back, 

the 0-19 consultation involved 2 separate consultation and engagement 
components: 
 
i) 0-19 Consultation Survey Target audience – families and partners 

working with children and young people. 
 

This involved development of an online questionnaire, with a target 
audience of families and partners working with children and young 
people, links to which were advertised online and through social media 
for families to access, as well as being circulated to partners. The 
survey included a series of questions to gather the views of families and 
partners of the School Nursing and Health Visitor Services, including 
their awareness of the services, feedback on its strength and feedback 
on what could be done better (see Annex A). The survey was available 
for a set duration and responses were themed, as outlined below. 
 

ii) 0-19 Consultation with Young People: Target audience – specific 
focus on young people. 
 
This part of the consultation was commissioned through Sefton’s 
Young Advisors, who delivered a more focussed piece of work 
specifically with young people. A detailed series of questions were 
youth proofed and then posed to gather the views of young people 
around the School Nursing and Health Visitor Service, with a 
methodology that included interactive group sessions with young 
people through schools to provoke discussion, as well as an online 
survey that was widely shared through social media platforms. The 
online survey was available for a set duration and responses were 
themed, as outlined below. Annex B includes a copy of the final report. 
 

 

Page 60

Agenda Item 8



Page 3 of 9 

4. Summary of the Consultation Results 
 

 4.1 0-19 Consultation Survey: Target audience – families and partners 
working with children and young people. 

 
Background  
The findings summarise the responses from the young people, families 
and partners on their experience of the 0-19 Healthy Child Programme. 
The survey received the following breakdown of responses:   
• Young person: 2  
• Parent or carer: 55  
• Other people who work alongside the service: 11  
 
Engagement Findings  
• 44.1% were unaware of the school nurse service  
• 64.7% had not used the school nurse service, 29.4% had, 5.9% were 

unsure  
 

The qualitative data showed that:  
• Participants found the health visiting service was good at:  

- Providing advice  
- Supporting first time parents  
 

• Health visitors could support children and families better by:  
- Increasing access to Health Visitors  
- Improving communication   
- Working with other professionals  

 
• Participants found the school nurses service was good at:  

- Signposting to other services  
 

• School Nurses could support children and families better by:  
- Improving accessibility  
- Advertising services better  

 
Recommendations   
• The report recommends that there could be improvements to 

accessing Health Visitors and School Nurses  
• Communication from Health Visitors could be improved  
• Improve the promotion of services from school nurses with young 

people  
 

i) 0-19 Consultation with Young People: Target audience – specific 
focus on young people. 

 
Background  
Sefton Young Advisers led engagement sessions with students from 27 
schools across Sefton, in addition to their being 68 responses to the 
online survey.  

 

Page 61

Agenda Item 8



Page 4 of 9 

Engagement Findings – School Nurse Service  
• 59% of students were aware the school had a nurse, the remaining 

41% were unaware  
• 45% of students had used the school nurse before, the remaining 

55% had not  
• 37% of students did not find having a school nurse useful, the 

remaining 63% found them useful. Some comments from students 
indicated uncertainty of the full school nursing offer  

 
Recommendations  
• Increased promotion of the school nursing offer (what is included and 

when can it be accessed) and improvement in visibility for the school 
nurses was the overall theme of the consultation  

 
Engagement Findings – Health Visitors   
• 37% of students had heard of the health visitor service, with the 

remaining 63% being unaware of the service  
• Young people were asked how good they feel the Health Visitor 

Service was, they reported:  
- 79% of young people said they were not sure  
- 12% said good  
- 5% said very good  
- 2% said it was not so good  
- 2% said they were indifferent  

  
• Whilst the main proportion of students were unaware of the service, 

63% were happy that they had the service available to them  
• The main feedback was for this service to be more engaged with 

young people  
 
Recommendations  
• It is recommended that the Health Visitor service increase their 

visibility with young people and promote their offer  
 

Implementation of findings: 
As is clear from the findings of both consultation components, the main 
feedback for both the School Nursing and Health Visiting Service was 
around visibility, accessibility, and awareness of the support available. 
Shortly after completion of the consultation, the Healthy Child 
Programme and its delivery was heavily impacted on by COVID-19. All 
face-to-face delivery was ceased in both services (which primarily 
involves access through schools and home visits) and the roles of the 
staff employed on the service were temporarily varied in order to help 
with the COVID-19 response, whilst supporting those children and 
young people most in need. As a result, and as the service has only 
this academic year managed to focus on business as usual, the findings 
therefore are still applicable and are in the process of being addressed.  
 
 
 

Page 62

Agenda Item 8



Page 5 of 9 

5. Feedback 
 
 5.1 The findings have not been fed back on an individual basis for a couple of 

reasons. As this piece of work forms part of a series of consultation and 
engagement exercises (further detail outlined in section 7), it will be 
revisited on a regular basis (once the service has fully returned to business 
as usual and had the opportunity to implement the findings), which will 
again allow children, young people, families, and stakeholders the 
opportunity to feedback their views using a similar series of questions. 
Additionally, and as referenced previously, there has not been sufficient 
time to implement the findings yet because the services shortly after 
became a huge part of the COVID-19 response.   

 
6. Future engagement 
 
 6.1 This piece of work forms part of an ongoing series of consultation and 

engagement exercises as part of the 0-19 Healthy Child Programme 
provision, as outlined below: 

 
  Engagement through 0-19 Service:  

i) The 0-19 Healthy Child Programme continuously carry out consultation 
and engagement on a routine basis as part of their service provision. 
As an example, in May 2022, Merseycare NHS Trust introduced a text 
messaging service known as ‘ChatHealth’. Aimed at children and 
young people aged 11-19 years, the service allows for anonymous text 
messages to be sent to the School Nurse Team regarding any health 
concerns they may have, which provides the team with the opportunity 
to respond with information, advice, guidance, signposting on to local 
services, or, if identity is shared, follow up for more serious concerns. 
The data collected through this function will also allow the service to 
look at any trends in terms of themes that may evolve, raised by directly 
by children and young people, and as such adapt their provision to suit 
need. 

ii) The current model of delivery of the Healthy Child Programme 
incorporates the ‘4-5-6’ approach for Health Visiting and School 
Nursing. Included within this as part of the School Nurse Service are 
time frames throughout the life course where a health needs 
assessment is carried out to capture the health needs of children and 
young people, done so in the form of a health survey at reception, year 
6, year 9 and year 11. For this academic year (2021-22), a newly 
devised digital ‘Health Survey’ for children aged 13-14 years was 
developed, which was launched on 13th June 2022. Data from this 
survey, which is completed directly by young people, will be analysed 
to look at themes, trends, and ultimately the needs of our young people, 
and will again be incorporated and addressed through service delivery. 
 

Engagement through Sefton’s Public Health Service: 
iii) Following an approved extension period, the 0-19 Healthy Child 

Programme contract is due to be re-commissioned. As part of this 
exercise, commissioners are in the process of analysing and drawing 

Page 63

Agenda Item 8



Page 6 of 9 

on a wide range of recent consultation and engagement pieces carried 
out with children and young people across various service areas within 
Sefton. This exercise will allow for any trends or themes already 
captured that are appropriate to the 0-19 service delivery to be 
included, enriching the evidence used to analyse local need and 
ensuring that it is the most up to date. The evidence reflecting local 
need will then be fed into the service specification, both from a data 
perspective and service user viewpoint, ensuring that the service is 
developed to address any changing service demands. 

iv) As part of this procurement exercise, once a draft specification is 
designed, as outlined above, Public Health Commissioners also intend 
to plan a series of consultation and engagement exercises with partners 
and stakeholders that work with children and young people, including 
Social Care, SEND, Safeguarding, Early Help, the voluntary sector, and 
colleagues through the wider health system. In doing so, feedback from 
professionals working with children and young people will also be 
incorporated to help shape the final specification.    

 
7. Recommendations 
 

 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to 
 

a) Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms 
 
  b)  Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and 

Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be 
uploaded onto the Consultation Hub. 

 
  c) Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update 

the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result 
of the consultation feedback. 

.  

Page 64

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 7 of 9 
 

 

 
Annex A: 0-19 Consultation Questionnaire  
 
0-19 Consultation  
Sefton Council is looking at 0-19 Health services provided in Sefton, and they would 
really like to know what you think about them.   
The 0-19 team has school nurses, health visitors, and nursery nurses. They can help 
you with any health questions or worries you have. They also carry out health checks 
and provide immunisations for children and young people.   
You may not have used these services knowingly, but it is important that when you do 
need help, you know how to get it.   
  
  
School Nursing Survey  
Tell us what you think.  
 
Sefton Council is looking at the School Nursing Service provided in Sefton Schools, 
and they would really like to know what you think about it.  
 
School nurses are there to help you, and all children and young people in Sefton, to 
be healthy and happy.  
 
Every school in Sefton has a school nurse and everybody in your school can ask to 
see them if you have any health questions or worries.  
You can also talk to your nurse if you are worried about other things, or you don’t feel 
safe.  
 
Sefton Council always want to make services for children and young people even 
better and we need your help.  
 
We want to know what you think about your School Nursing Service so we have put 
together a really short survey that we would like you to fill in.    
You can fill in the questions below and give this to the person who gave you this form 
or you can fill it in online at:  ---------------------------------- (insert link here)  
 
Questions  
1. What do you know about your School Nurse Service?  
 

 
 

2. What is good about your School Nurse Service?  

Page 65

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 8 of 9 

 
 
 
3. What could school nurses do better to help young people and families  
 

 
 
Health Visiting  
Health Visitors are there to help you and your children to be healthy and happy.   
Towards the end of your pregnancy your health visitor will meet with you, often in your 
home, as you prepare for your baby to arrive. You can ask any questions and talk 
about any worries you have. Once you baby is born, the health visitor will stay in 
contact and visit you again several times until your child is ready for nursery. They will 
check that mum and baby are healthy and developing well.   
 
Sefton Council always want you to make services for children and young people so 
we have put together a really short survey that we would like you to fill in.   
You can fill in the questions below and give this to the person who gave you this form 
or you can fill it in online at:   
 
Questions  
4. What do you know about your Health Visiting Service?  
 

 
  
 

5. What is good about your Health Visiting Service?  

Page 66

Agenda Item 8



 

Page 9 of 9 

  
6. What could Health Visitors do better to help young people and families  
 
 

 
  
 Annex B: 0-19 Consultation Report (through Sefton Young Advisors) with 
Young People 
 
 

Page 67

Agenda Item 8



 1 

0-19 Health Services 

Consultation 

School Nurses and Health Visitors 

December 2019 

Page 68

Agenda Item 8



 2 

Who are Sefton Young Advisors? Pg 3 

What were we asked to do? Pg 4 

Methodology Pg 5 

Questions that we asked Pg 6 

Results Pg 7 to 22 

Conclusion and Recommendations Pg 23 to 24 

Who did we consult with? Pg 25 

Appendix 1 Pg 26 to 27 

 

 

 

CONTENTS 

Page 69

Agenda Item 8



 3 

Who are  

Sefton Young  

Advisors? 

Young Advisors are young people aged between 15-22 who work in partnership with com-

munity leaders and decision makers to enable the voices of young people to be heard in 

community life.  

 

Young Advisors are trained and employed agents of social action.  Their role is to guide and 

support local organisations – local authorities, housing associations, CCGs, the Voluntary, 

Community and Faith sector and other local partners on what it is like for a young person 

to live, work, learn and play in their neighbourhood.  They speak out for young people, 

making sure their thoughts and feelings are considered in decisions that affect them and 

work closely with adults to support them on how best to engage with young people. Young 

Advisor teams across the UK are commissioned by organisations to support them to    

better engage with, and involve young people.  We make sure young people are being given 

the chance to be involved in decision making and influencing change.  

 

The Sefton Young Advisor team is made up of 11 young people from across the Sefton bor-

ough.  The team has won local and national awards and has worked in partnership with 

many organisations including; LSCB (Local Safeguarding Children’s Board), Sefton Council, 

NHS, E-ON, Edge Hill University and NCS. To view examples of our work please visit our 

website — https://youngadvisors.org.uk/sefton  

 

Page 70

Agenda Item 8

https://youngadvisors.org.uk/sefton


 4 

What were we 

asked to do? 

Public Health is looking at 0-19 Health Services provided in Sefton and they commis-

sioned Sefton Young Advisors to curate and deliver a fun, engaging consultation that 

would get Sefton’s young people to share and feedback their opinions and ultimately ass-

es what young people know about their 0-19 health services, with a specific focus on 

School Nurses and Health Visitors. 

The 0-19 team has school nurses, health visitors, and nursery nurses. They can help 

young people with any health questions or worries that they have. They also carry out 

health checks and provide immunisations for children and young people.  

 

 

Page 71

Agenda Item 8



 5 

Methodology 
Sefton Young Advisors decided to use a multi-pronged approach towards this consultation 

in order to get meaningful, quality data; both qualitative and quantitative. Particular care and 

attention was given to ensure that the resources used were youth-friendly and user friend-

ly so young people of all ages would be able to use them fully.   

 

Techniques used to gather data were: 

 An interactive session 

 An online survey 

 

The team planned an interactive session plan for groups of young people with a key aim to 

provoke discussion between participants and get honest answers and feedback about the 0

-19 health services. The session was planned around the questions the team youth proofed.  

 

To reach the highest number of young people possible, Sefton Young Advisors used an 

online survey that was widely shared across multiple Social Media platforms.  Members of 

the team shared the survey amongst their personal and school networks and other  

contacts. Targeted groups included a Muslim group, LGBTQ+ youth group, SEND young 

people, CAMHS service users and young people from disadvantaged backgrounds.  All of 

which we consulted either through the face to face session, or through the online survey.  

 

In the online survey, the team asked 9 questions on School Nurses and 7 questions on 

Health Visitors and the Health Visiting Service. Our survey targeted young people who live 

in Sefton and we received 68 responses.  These responses varied and were spread pretty 

even across the borough.  

 

 

 

Page 72

Agenda Item 8



 6 

Questions we asked 
The questions we asked both online and through our face to face engagement 

were: 

 

School Nursing 

1. What school/college do/did you go to? 

2. Did you know that your school has/had a nurse? 

3. How did you know that your school has/had a nurse? 

4. What else do/did you know about your school nurse? 

5. Where can/could you meet with your school nurse? 

6. What times/days are/was your school nurse available to see you? 

7. What do/did you like about your school nurse? 

8. Do/did you find having a school nurse helpful? 

9. What can/could school nurses do better to help you? 

 

Health Visitors  

1. Have you heard of the Health Visiting Service? 

2. What do you know about the Health Visiting Service? 

3. Have you ever had access to A Health Visitor and/or the Health Visiting Service?  

4. How good do you feel The Health Visiting Service is?  

5. Why do you feel this? 

6. Do you like that you have Health Visitors/The Health Visiting Service available to you? 

7. What could Health Visitors do better to help you and your family? 

Page 73

Agenda Item 8



 7 

Q1:  What school/college do/did you go to?    

The young people who we consulted with attended the following schools and colleges: 

 
 

 Carmel College     

 Chesterfield High School 

 Christ the King High School 

 Deyes High School 

 Greenbank High School 

 Newfield School 

 St Marys College 

 Savio Salesian College 

 Tarleton High School  

 Hugh Baird College  

 St Michaels High School 

 Hatton Hill Primary School  

 Litherland High School 

 Liverpool Life Sciences UTC 

 KGV College 

 Fazakerley High School  

 

 

 South Sefton Sixth Form College 

 Formby Sixth Form  

 Range High School  

 Kings Leadership Academy Haw-

thornes 

 Meols Cop High School 

 Runshaw College 

 Birkdale High School 

 Our Lady of Walsingham Primary 

School 

 Crosby High School 

 Presfield High School 

 St Marys Primary School 

  

Page 74

Agenda Item 8



 8 

Q2: Did you know that your school has/

had a nurse? 

Our results tell us that 59% of young people surveyed know that their school has/had a 

nurse. This is the majority of the young people. However, 41% of the young people didn’t 

know that their school has/had a nurse. This is two fifths of the young people which is a 

considerable amount. This suggests that school nurses aren’t necessarily visible enough to 

young people. 

YES
59%

NO
41%

Page 75

Agenda Item 8



 9 

Q3: Have you ever used your school nurse? 

Our results tell us that less than half of young people have used their school nurse, with 

45% of them stating that they had never been to their school nurse. Whilst 55% of young 

people which is the majority of the young people we consulted with had never used 

their school nurse.  

Some comments that arose when asking the young people these questions were: 

“We don’t even know what she can be used for other than giving us a plaster” 

“She only sends people home if they have period pains” 

This gives us the impression that whilst a lot of young people know why their school 

would have a school nurse, they don’t necessarily know what support she can offer 

them. 

YES
45%

NO
55%

Page 76

Agenda Item 8



 10 

Q4: Do you find having a school nurse 

helpful?   

 

YES
63%

NO
37%

From this chart, you can see that 63% of the young people we consulted with said that 

they found having a school nurse helpful, whilst 37% said that they don’t find having a 

school nurse helpful. What we realised when asking this question, was similarly to ques-

tion 3, most young people didn’t understand what their school nurse could support 

them with or how they could go to her/him for a wide range of issues, so that confusion 

about what their nurse is there for looks to us like it fed into the answers to this ques-

tion and the feedback and answers from it.  

Page 77

Agenda Item 8



 11 

Q5: How did you know that your school 

has/had a nurse? 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 We found out in assembly 

 She introduced herself and talked to us about what she did 

 School newsletter 

 Our head teacher told us on the first day 

 I went to her for period pains 

 It’s on the timetable that she comes in at lunch 

 My mum told me 

 We got told that if we had trouble, we could see the nurse on a Tuesday 

 There was a poster in the office and I spent a lot of time there 

 I fainted in school and she came and provided first aid 

 I fell and cut my knee once 

 Through sixth form progress leader 

 Told by a friend 

 Teachers referred to her all the time 

 I was in care and she visited me 

 Induction Meeting 

 I didn’t know  

 I was never told 

 

 

Page 78

Agenda Item 8



 12 

Q6: Where can/could you meet your school 

nurse? 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 Prayer room 

 Her office 

 Medical room 

 I don’t know 

 In a pre-arranged classroom 

 Find out from the office staff 

 Pastoral care 

 Ask at the front desk  

 Wellbeing Room 

 Have to make an appointment at the office 

 Nurses office 

 School hall 

 

Our results suggest that a lot of young people know where to meet their school 

nurse and that there are a wide variety of places in each school that young people 

can meet with them. 

 

Page 79

Agenda Item 8



 13 

Q7: What times/days are/were they available 

to see you? 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 Every Wednesday 

 Every Thursday 

 Most days 

 Unsure 

 Never there 

 Anytime 

 Not sure 

 All day 

 I don’t know 

 Wednesday lunch 

 Friday’s 

 Once a week but not sure 

 Not too sure, I just ask at the office  

 Wednesday’s only 

 Tuesday lunch 

 Once a week 1 hour 

 Tuesday 

 Monday lunch 

 Monday and Friday 

 

Page 80

Agenda Item 8



 14 

Q7: What do you like about your school 

nurse? 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 She’s friendly 

 Nice and reassuring 

 She is nice 

 She is nice and friendly 

 I didn’t like her 

 Helpful 

 Caring 

 Comfortable to speak to 

 She visited vulnerable people 

 

Page 81

Agenda Item 8



 15 

Q7: What else do/did you know about your 

school nurse? 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 You can talk to her about anything 

 She’s not very nice 

 She is around once a week 

 I don’t know 

 She occasionally does an assembly 

 She came in on Wednesday’s and she was normally ‘too busy’ and pretty bad 

 She has a box of sanitary products that girls can use  

 She has her own office for one to one chats 

 She has blonde hair 

 We have 2 of them 

 Mrs Montgomery and she is blonde 

 She is like a counsellor  

 Her name is Emma, she is tall and skinny and has auburn hair 

 They weren't available all the time 

 She sometimes holds a clinic 

 She’s a brunette woman 

Page 82

Agenda Item 8



 16 

Q7: What can/could your school nurse do 

better to help you? 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 Promote it more 

 Have more supplies 

 Be nice 

 They are fine 

 Be explicit with the services that are offered, and what days they’re on 

 Nothing 

 Be more known in college 

 Make more people know that there is a school nurse available 

 Nothing, they’re good 

 Tell us why she is there, like what other support she can give us 

 Let us know what she is there to do 

 Be there more than one day a week and just at lunch time 

 Check on individual people and make sure they are okay an fine instead of them 

going to her or him. 

 Have better equipment than a few plasters in stock 

 Short drop-ins for every student to discuss general/physical/mental health 

 Be more present 

 Interact with students and get more familiar  

 Be more accessible 

 

 

Page 83

Agenda Item 8



 17 

Q8: Have you heard of The Health Visiting 

Service?  

Our results tell us that  63% of young people surveyed haven’t heard of The Health Visiting 

Service and that 37% of them have. This shows that the majority of young people haven’t 

heard of it. This suggests that The Health Visiting Service isn’t nearly as visible to young 

people as it could be. 

YES
37%

NO
63%

Page 84

Agenda Item 8



 18 

Q9: What do you know about The Health 

Visiting Service?   

 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 Nothing 

 They visit babies 

 They support new mums and babies 

 I think my sister had one when she was pregnant  

 They come in to do your needles 

 They look after families 

 Women with children 

 

Our results suggest that some young people know a lot about the Health Visiting Ser-

vice, but this is not widespread. 

 

Page 85

Agenda Item 8



 19 

Q10: How good do you feel The Health Visiting 

Service is?  

When we asked young people how good they feel The Health Visiting Service is, the vast 

majority (79%) weren’t sure. This is likely because not many young people have heard 

about The Health Visiting Service (see Q8). The young people who did have a view on 

how good the Health Visiting Service is mostly answered “Good”. 

VERY GOOD
5%

GOOD
12%

INDIFFERENT
2%

NOT SO 
GOOD

2%I'M NOT SURE
79%

Page 86

Agenda Item 8



 20 

Q11: Why do you feel this?   

 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 They seem nice 

 I don’t use the service 

 Only my sister has used it  

 I don’t get to meet them until after Christmas but I know its important  

 I don’t know enough about the service 

 I have never heard of the service 

 

Our results suggest that a lot of young people don’t have thoughts on The Health Visit-

ing Service because they don’t have enough knowledge about it. 

 

 

Page 87

Agenda Item 8



 21 

Q12: Do you like that you have Health Visi-

tors and The Health Visiting Service available 

to you?  

63% of the young people we surveyed stated that they like that they have Health Visitors 

and The Health Visiting service available to them, and 37% said they don’t like it. This sug-

gests that young people are positive about the Health Visiting service. 

YES
63%

NO
37%

Page 88

Agenda Item 8



 22 

Q13: What could Health Visitors/The Health 

Visiting Service do better to help you and 

your family?   

 

Some of the most common answers we got in regards to this question were: 

 

 Be more known to us 

 Make sure we know about the health visitors 

 Make people aware of what it is and what they do 

 Be more visible 

 Young people should find out at school in PSHE lessons as it is useful to know 

when you grow up  

 

Our results suggest that young people overwhelmingly care about The Health Visiting 

Service being more visible to young people. 

 

 

Page 89

Agenda Item 8



 23 

Conclusion and 

Recommendations  

From our results we conclude that:  

 Roughly three thirds of young people surveyed know that their school has/had 

a nurse. Two thirds don’t. 

 Just under half of young people surveyed have used their school nurse. 

 The majority of young people surveyed find having a school nurse helpful. 

 Young people found out that they had a nurse in a variety of different ways. 

 Young people can access their school nurse in a variety of different places, de-

pending on the school. The times and days on which they can access them also 

vary by school. 

 Young people overwhelmingly feel positively about school nurses. 

 The majority of the young people surveyed have not heard of The Health Vis-

iting Service. 

 Some young people know lots about the Health Visiting Service but this is not 

widespread. 

 The majority of young people who have views on The Health Visiting Service 

stated that it is “Good”. 

 The vast majority of young people surveyed like that they have Health Visitors 

and a Health Visiting Service available to them. 

 

Page 90

Agenda Item 8



 24 

Conclusion and 

Recommendations  

From our results we recommend that:  

 The Health Visiting Service works to become more visible to young people. 

 School nurses work to become more visible to young people. 

 School nurses have more of a presence in schools. 

 School nurses are specific about what they offer and where young people can 

access them. 

Page 91

Agenda Item 8



 25 

Who did we consult with? 

As well as using the online survey, we consulted with a number of local groups with a face 

to face consultation. Those groups were: 

 Sing Plus  

 Netherton Park  

 CAMHelionS  

 Youth and Community Partnership  

 The Vibe  

 The Mix  

 Parenting 2000 Crosby  

 Parenting 2000 Juniors  

 Parenting 2000 Southport  

 S.P.A.C.E  

 Brunswick Youth and Community Centre  

 Buddy Up Southport  

 Buddy Up Crosby  

 

Some of these groups are open-access and some are targeted. Examples of the targeted 

groups we consulted with included a Muslim group who meet in Sing Plus, Buddy Up 

(SEND) and CAMHelionS (CAMHS service-users). 

Page 92

Agenda Item 8



 26 

Appendix 1 

Here is the session plan we used:  

TIME ACTIVITY DESCRIPTION RESOURCES 

    

  
5 mins 

  
Welcome and 
introductions. 

  
Introduce ourselves, tell them a 

bit about ourselves! 

  

  
Sign in Sheet 

  

  

  
  

5 mins 

  
  

Give general 
information. 

  

  
  

Give general information about 
the Nursing Survey – background 

information 

  
  
  

Start with School Nurses 

  

  
  

See Infor-
mation sheet 

  
  
10 mins 

  
  

Vote with your 
Feet 

  
  
Start with the 3 YES/NO questions. Ask 
young people to answer the questions 

by standing next to which ever card 
(YES/NO). 

  

 – Did you know your school has 
a nurse? 

– Have you ever used your 
school nurse? 

– Do you find having a school 
nurse helpful? 

  

  
  
  

YES Paper 

NO Paper on 
either side of 

the room 

Page 93

Agenda Item 8



 27 

 

  
  
  
  
  
  
  
  
25 mins 

  
  
  
  
  

  
Shapes N Walls 

  
  
 

  
Hand out packs in brown enve-
lopes.  Each shape in the enve-

lope assigns to a question. When 
you ask a question, they need to 
write down their answer on the 
assigned shape, go find the flip-

chart with the matching question 
and place it on. 

  
When all flipchart is full of the 
assigned shape, take pictures 

and put all shapes away in enve-
lopes to be cleaned. 

  
DIAMOND – 

How did you know that your 
school has/had a nurse? 

  
RECTANGLE – 

Where can/could you meet your 
school nurse? 

  
STAR – 

What times/days are/were they 
available to see you? 

  
CIRCLE – 

What do you like about your 
school nurse? 

  
HEART – 

What else do/did you know 
about your school nurse? 

  
TRIANGLE – 

What can/could your school 
nurse do better to help you? 

  

  
  
  
  
  
  

  
  
  

Brown Enve-
lopes 

  
Pieces of flip-
chart with the 
questions in 
the middle 
(put around 
the room or 
lay on the 

floor) 

  
  

Page 94

Agenda Item 8



Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 15th July 2022 
 
Title: Feedback and Evaluation report – Re-procurement of Community Adult 

Substance Use Assessment, Treatment and Recovery Service 
 
Report of:  Julie Tierney Julie.Tierney@sefton.gov.uk 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To provide feedback on the consultation for the re-procurement of 

community adult substance use assessment, treatment and recovery 
services.  

 
 
 1.2 The Panel have agreed to appraise the Feedback and Evaluation Reports 

in accordance with the standards of public engagement and consultation 
and will consider: - 

 
• How the activity was carried out; 

 
• the opinions of the people taking part on how they found the process; 

 
• The number of people who took part and the costs of the different 

methods of getting them involved;  
 

• How successful different methods were at getting the views of people 
who are not normally heard, for example, children, young people and 
people with disabilities; 
 

• How the results will be fed back to the public; and 
 

• How will the results influence policies and service plans. 
 
 

2.      Name of Issue you were Consulting On 
 
  2.1 The service contract held by Mersey Care NHS Trust from 2017 expired 

on 31st March 2022. Cabinet granted permission to re-procure the 
service during 2021/22. The new service contract was for 
commencement on 1/4/22. This is not a new service; the existing service 
had been in place for 5yrs and it was considered important to consult 
with key people within the substance use treatment and recovery 
system.  

 
 

Page 95

Agenda Item 9

mailto:Julie.Tierney@sefton.gov.uk


  
3. The Consultation Process 
 

3.1    For different stakeholders, different methods of engagement were    
required. This included telephone interviews and electronic surveys 
targeted at particular audiences to provide useful feedback. The 
engagement was carried out during Covid 19 lockdown, this limited the 
types of methodology adopted. 

  
3.2 Structured telephone interviews were chosen as a method of 

engagement for service users. Twenty one people volunteered to 
participate and all were contacted. Interviews were held between 15th 
and 26th February.  There were a mix of service users represented all 
received either drug or alcohol support.  

 
3.3 Due to the pandemic and lockdown, electronic surveys were 

considered as the best method of engagement. Separate surveys were 
designed for service staff, GPs, Pharmacists and partners. Surveys 
were designed specifically for each of these audiences and key themes 
and responses are reported below.  

        

4. Summary of the Consultation Results 
 

4.1 The main themes of engagement were around awareness of service,   
feedback of referral process, quality of service, any gaps in service, any 
barriers, and stigma. 

4.2 On the whole respondents were positive about the local service 
provision and particularly the key workers. The responses were 
themed, and suggestions included: 

 
• There needs to be more awareness of support on offer from the service and 

better promotion. 
 
• There were some barriers and stigma to accessing the service for some 

people that need support. 
 
• Community co- location in other venues may help create wider access.  
 
• Service is very focused on medical/clinical support needs to be wider. Also, 

there is a need to improve access to mental health support. 
 
• Lack of group sessions and peer led support in service and wider holistic 

support model was identified as being needed this links to the demand for a 
more support for Mental Health after care/ recovery support.   

 

Page 96

Agenda Item 9



• Improved service site hubs particularly in Bootle,  
 
• The need for more outreach work in the community for those who find it 

difficult to engage,  
 
• Better communication between service and pharmacies delivering shared 

care. E.g., contact available out of hours and more formal communication 
around medications. 
 

     How we have responded to the feedback: 
 
• We have planned a stakeholder engagement event and service user day. 

There will be promotion of the service via social media and in local 
neighbourhoods e.g. pharmacies, GPs, and community venues. 

 
• The highly valued key worker model will be retained within the new service 
 
• Site improvements in both Bootle and Southport. 
 
• To offer an alternative to the main service sites, there will be satellites in the 

community in more generic venues to widen access and address stigma.  
 
• There will be an enhanced outreach service to facilitate engagement with 

more vulnerable cohorts and those reluctant to engage with the service. 
 
• A strengthening and a much larger peer led support model and more holistic 

engagement. A volunteer model to engage residents in service delivery. 
 
• An extension of psychology and counselling support in- house services. 
 
• Strengthening of links with pharmacies to improve communications including 

electronic systems and contact out of hours. 
 
 
5. Feedback 
 
 5.1 Feedback on responses and actions was published on the council’s 

consultation hub. 
 
6. Future engagement 
 

6.1      The outcome of the re-procurement resulted in a change of service 
provider to Change, Grow, Live (CGL). In the service there are 
suggestion boxes set up in reception to anonymously post and raise any 
issues and the Sefton Care Opinion site is also live. Care opinion is a 
website serving all Change, Grow, Live (CGL) services and many NHS 
and other third sector providers – it provides a digital way to leave 
feedback on care services and peoples experiences of them. 
https://www.careopinion.org.uk/info/about 

Page 97

Agenda Item 9

https://gbr01.safelinks.protection.outlook.com/?url=https%3A%2F%2Fwww.careopinion.org.uk%2Finfo%2Fabout&data=05%7C01%7CJulie.Tierney%40sefton.gov.uk%7Ce7b8e8e2943348e54eb408da31bc3625%7Cbf3a3387dc954c7d940e49cc2fc9d4f1%7C0%7C0%7C637876983193028106%7CUnknown%7CTWFpbGZsb3d8eyJWIjoiMC4wLjAwMDAiLCJQIjoiV2luMzIiLCJBTiI6Ik1haWwiLCJXVCI6Mn0%3D%7C3000%7C%7C%7C&sdata=FzNNWQKEJ2nxm6ajnA4uM3kEPSqdRYsbrlIwW54CxLI%3D&reserved=0


 
6.2 We will also via contract review meetings and reports have a mechanism 

for monitoring any complaints and compliments received in the quarter. 
As the service is embedded, we will look to build on the above and 
establish more methods of engagement with service users to ensure 
they have a voice in how the service is delivered and developed.  

 
 
7. Recommendations 
 

 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel are recommended to 
 
  a) Note the contents of the report and feedback and evaluation forms 
 
  b)  Request that lead officers provide the Public Engagement and 

Consultation Team with the results and reports so that they can be 
uploaded onto the Consultation Hub. 

 
  c) Request that lead officer’s report to a future Panel meeting to update 

the panel as to any additional changes that have occurred as a result 
of the consultation feedback. 

Page 98

Agenda Item 9



Item 10 
 

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 15th July 2022 
 
Title:           Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 
                    - Consultation on Young People & Families Substance Use Service 
 
  
Report of:  Public Health Lead Substance Use and Sexual Health 

 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the recommissioning of Young People & 
Families Substance Use Service 

 
 
2. Background 
 

 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is 
to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Name of Issue you are Consulting on 
 

3.1   The current contract for the Young People & Families Substance Use       
Service expires on 31st March 2023. A paper is going to Cabinet on 
23/06/22 to request permission to re-procure the service during 
2022/23. 

                   
  3.2 Public Health will be undertaking a commissioning process which 

involves stakeholder engagement. This is not a new service, the 
findings from the consultation and engagement undertaken are 
intended to inform any modifications required to the service 
specification. As part of this process, it is intended to consult with 
service users, in order to ascertain how we may improve the service 
provided, also to engage with other partners to understand better the 
referral pathways, what works well and any gaps in the service 
provision. 

                    
                                      

4.    The Consultation 
 

4.1   We aim to assess the perceptions of current service users surrounding 
their experience with this service. Also, to review key parts of the referral 
pathway by engagement with partners. From this we will ascertain if 
there are any positive improvements that can be made to the service 
prior to the re-procurement. We aim to:  

 

Page 99

Agenda Item 10



2 

 

• To ensure that service users and service providers are involved and can 
inform modifications to the existing service specification. 

• To ensure that any new service provision meets the needs of local 
residents and enhances their recovery.  

• To ensure that partners are involved and can inform any modifications 
to the existing service specification. 

 
 

Key methods that will be used to consult and engage.  
 

The Young People & Families substance use service is a specialised 
service which is designed for people in Sefton with problematic use of 
alcohol or drugs. Some of these clients could be considered vulnerable 
due to the nature of their needs and circumstances. Therefore, it is 
important that participation is on a voluntary basis and thought is given to 
how this is managed. Contact will be via either telephone, surveys or 
focus groups. In discussion with the current service the proposed 
methodology will be: 

 

• Telephone interviews with service users who have given permission to 
be contacted via their key worker. The plan is to carryout 10 - 20 young 
people interviews, 10-20 family interviews, although this will be subject 
to service users agreeing to participate. 

           

• Young People and family service user surveys completed by those 
attending services or who be contacted electronically by the service. 
Additional surveys will be sent to: 

 
o Current service provider staff surveys 
 
o Partners and school surveys 

 

• Focus groups carried out with non-service user Young People from 
north, south and central in borough. 

 
Please see Appendix 1 Communication Plan, Appendix 2 for 
copies of surveys, interviews and focus group prompts  

 
5.      Reporting and Publishing the Findings 

 

        5.1    The findings from the consultations will be collated into a themed report 
and used were appropriate to inform the service specification.   

 
 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 
 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report (LD 27/6/2022) and has no comments to 
make. 

 

Page 100

Agenda Item 10



3 

 

7. Recommendations 
 
  7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  

a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 
consultation on the young peoples and families substance use 
service. 

  
  b)  Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above consultation. 
 

 

 

APPENDICES: 
 
Appendix 1 – Consultation Plan 
 
Appendix 2 – 
2.1 – Partner Survey 
2.2 – Young People Focus Group Prompts 
2.3 – Schools Survey 
2.4 – Families Telephone Interviews 
2.5 – Families Survey 
2.6 - Young People Telephone Interviews 
2.7 - Young People Survey 
2.8 – Staff Survey 
 
Appendix 3 – Interim EIA 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 101

Agenda Item 10



Item 10 
 

Appendix 1 

CONSULTATION PLAN 
‘Recommission of the young people and family substance use-service’ and the 

consultation and engagement of young people, families, service staff and 
partners. 

 

STAKEHOLDER GROUP 
 

METHODOLOGY 

Commissioned Youth Providers via 
the stakeholder contact list to 
undertake the survey and via the 
Young Advisors to undertake the 
Focus Groups. 

Partner Survey: the survey link will be sent 
to the main contact of each youth provider, 
who will request all staff to complete. 
 
Focus Group: *Young Advisors to hold 3 - 6 
focus groups i.e., one or two in each locality 
(North, Central and South) 
 

Education and Mental Health 
Network (meets once every half-term) 
via sharon.cotterall@seftoncvs.org.uk  
 

Partners Survey 

Education Collaborative Group (is a 
forum that meets monthly, which Trish 
Davis oversees/chairs) via 
tricia.davies@sefton.gov.uk  
 

Partners Survey 

Every Child Matters (ECM) Forum 
(the next Forum will meet outside the 
survey timeline, however the link to 
the survey will be included in the 
monthly newsletter) via 
sharon.cotterall@seftoncvs.org.uk  
 

Partners Survey 

SCVS i.e., Hight Intensity Users (HIU) 
via gina.harvey@seftoncvs.org.uk  
 

Partners Survey 

Early Help Partnership i.e., includes 
below: 

o Health visitors 

o School nurses 

o Camhs Team 

o Probation Service 

 
Communities/young people’s 
services: 

o Housing Options (deals with 

homelessness) 

o Family-Well Being Centres 

o Youth Justice Team (formerly 

YOT) 

Partner Survey 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Partner Survey 

Page 102

Agenda Item 10

mailto:sharon.cotterall@seftoncvs.org.uk
mailto:tricia.davies@sefton.gov.uk
mailto:sharon.cotterall@seftoncvs.org.uk
mailto:gina.harvey@seftoncvs.org.uk


5 

 

o Sefton Youth Service staff  

o Active Sefton    

 

School Heads  
 

School Survey 

Service-Users  

• Families (who have been in or 
who are in the Service), which 
will be facilitated by WAWY. 

 

Telephone Interview  
 
Or 
 
*Family Survey 

Service-Users  

• Young People who have been 
in or who are in the Service, 
which will be facilitated by 
*WAWY 
 
 

Telephone Interview  

Or 

Young Persons Survey 

We Are with You regarding the: 

• Referral pathway 

• Feedback from their clients 

• Stigma 

• What works well? 

• What can be improved? 
 
Who: 

• Via Service Manager *Graham 
McGaw leaves June 2022 but 
the new manager will be in post 
in July 2022) and 

• Staff  

Staff Survey 

Wider-safeguarding partnership  
 

Partner Survey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 103

Agenda Item 10



6 

 

Appendix 2 

 

2.1 Partner Survey  
1. Are you aware of the Sefton Young People & Families Substance Use 

Service (Current provider is We are with You (formerly ‘Addaction’)? 

 
 Yes – to question 2 

 No – to question 7 

 
2. If yes, have you referred clients into this service? If yes, please state if it 

was a Young Person (YP) or Family. 

 
 Yes – YP   

 Yes - Family    

 Both     
  

3. From a client and/or professional feedback on a scale of 1-10 (1 poor -10 

excellent) how would you rate the overall quality of the service? 

 Numbers 1-10  

 
 Box for comments 

 
4. How would you rate the referral process and feedback? 

 Numbers 1-10 (1 poor -10 excellent) 

 
 Box for comments 

 
5. Would you change anything about the service i.e., the way it is delivered 

and are there any gaps in the support offered? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - please detail anything you would like to see 

different. 

 
6. Currently, the service has two office sites i.e. in Southport and Bootle, 

however, most of the delivery is at community venues/home/schools. Do 

you think the delivery model works well? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - please detail any barriers 

 
7. Do you feel there are any barriers that put off young people or families 

being referred to the Service? 

Page 104

Agenda Item 10



7 

 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - please detail any barriers for young people. 

 
 Box for comments - please detail any barriers for families. 

     
8.   Do you think there is a stigma attached to being referred to the service and 
do you have any ideas on how to reduce it? 
 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - please include any detail 

 
9. How do you think we could better promote the service to encourage more 

people to access? 

 
 Box for comments 

 
10. Do you think the service could work more effectively with you and your 

service?   

 
 Box for comments                

                         
11. Finally, are there any other comments you would like to share with us about 

the service?  

 
 Box for comments 

 

Thank you for completing the survey 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 105

Agenda Item 10



8 

 

2.2 Young People Focus Group prompts 

1. Can you tell us have you heard of the Young People & 

Families Substance Use Service, ‘We Are with You’? 

 
2. Can you tell us if you know what they offer / or what do you 

think they offer young people? 

  
3. Can you tell us if you needed help/support for substance use 

(Drugs and/or Alcohol) where would you look for 

information? 

 
4. Can you tell us do you know who you would ask for advice 

about where to go / what to do? 

 
5. Can you tell us what kind of help would you want from a 

service e.g., information such as leaflets on-line or hard 

copy, 121 chat, in a group with other young people, family 

group or other? 

 
6. Can you tell us if you wanted to have a 1 to 1 face to face 

chat, where and how, would you prefer this to take place? 

i.e., an online chat, zoom remote, in person and if so where, 

home, school, community venue or at the Service base? 

 
7. Can you tell us when would you prefer e.g., weekends, 

evening and/or lunch break in school? 

 
8. Can you tell us how would you like the service to contact 

you? i.e., text message, phone call, letter/appointment card 

or email? 

 
9. Can you think of any barriers/obstacles, which could put 

young people off being referred or attending the Sefton, ‘We 

Are with You’ substance-use service? 

 
10. Can you tell us how you feel the service can better 

promote itself about what they offer and how could this be 

done? 

 

Page 106

Agenda Item 10



9 

 

11. Can you tell us if you feel there is a stigma to accessing 

substance misuse support in Sefton? (by stigma we mean 

a person being labelled or seen in a negative way) and 

how could we make the service more appealing to young 

people? 

 
12. Please feel free to detail any further feedback you would 

like to report to us: 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 107

Agenda Item 10



10 

 

2.3 School Survey  
1. Are you aware of the Sefton Young People (YP) & Families Substance Use 

Service (the current provider is, ‘We are with You’ but formerly 

Addaction)? 

 Yes  

 No (please go to Q7) 

 
2. If yes, please state which of the services you have accessed? 

 Assemblies   

 YP workshops  

 Staff training 

 Client referral for individual support         

 Other (please state) 

 
 Box for comments  

  
3. From a client and/or professional view, feedback on a scale of 1-10 (1 poor 

-10 excellent) how would you rate the overall quality of the service? 

 Numbers 1-10 (1 poor -10 excellent) 

 
 Box for comments 

 
4. How would you rate the engagement/referral process and feedback? 

 Numbers 1-10 (1 poor -10 excellent) 

 
 Box for comments 

 
5. Would you change anything about the service, what is offered and the way 

it is delivered e.g., are there any gaps? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please detail anything you would like to see 

different. 

 
6. Currently, the service has two office sites i.e.., in Southport and Bootle but 

the 

majority of delivery is at community venues/home/schools. Do you think the 
delivery model works well? 
 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments  

 
 

Page 108

Agenda Item 10



11 

 

7. From your experience, do you feel there are any barriers that put young 

people off being referred to the Service? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments  

 
8.   Do you think there is a stigma attached for young people being referred to 
the service and do you have any ideas on how to reduce it? 
 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments  

 
9. How do you think we could better promote the service to encourage more 

schools/young people to access? 

 
 Box for Comments 

 
10.  Do you think the service could work more effectively with you and your 

school?   

 
 Box for comments 

                                       
11. Finally, are there any other comments you would like to share with us about 

the service?  

 
 Box for comments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 109

Agenda Item 10



Item 10 
 

 

2.4 Telephone Interview Guide: Families  
Introduction 

Thank you for agreeing to take part in this telephone call today. Any views or comments that you choose to 
share about your experience in the service will be anonymous and will help to inform improvements in 
this service for the future.  
 

Topic – Service Access  
 

Prompts Notes 

1a. How did arrive at the service? 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
1b. Why did you access the service i.e., 
who in the family was the primary 
client/person with substance use 
issue? 
 
 

• Substance-use service 
(Ambition Sefton/CGL) 

• Social Care/Early Help  

• Self-referral i.e., you made 
the enquiry 

• Criminal Justice System 

• Other health professional 
referral 

• Other (who)? 
 
 

• Parent or Child and please 
tell us what was the issue? 
 
 

 
 
 

 

P
age 110

A
genda Item

 10



13 

 

1c. When first spoken to about 
accessing the service, either by 
somebody referring you or the person 
you spoke to on the phone, what did 
you think of the initial contact / 
communication? 
 
 
 
 
1d. Do you feel there are any barriers 
that put people off being referred to the 
Service? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Was the information clear 
and make you feel like it 
would be something that 
could help you? 
 
 
 
 

 
 

• Location of service?  

• Professional calling to home 
address? 

• The location where you were 
asked to meet? 

• Stigma? 

• Opening Times? 

Topic – Assessment  
 

Prompts Notes 

P
age 111

A
genda Item

 10



14 

 

2a. What was your experience at your 
first appointment and the initial 
assessment like?  

 
 
 
 
 

• Did you have to wait longer 
than you expected to be 
assessed? 

 

• In your opinion, do the 
processes and support in 
place at the start of attending 
the service support you well? 

 

• Could it have been 
improved?  

 
 
 

 

Topic – Interventions and Activities Prompts 
 

Notes 

3a. Did the interventions and support 
you receive meet with your family 
needs and requirements? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Was there a positive 
relationship with key worker? 

 

• Were the activities and 
interventions helpful? 

 
 

• Was the length of programme 
ok? 

 

 

P
age 112

A
genda Item

 10



15 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
3b. What do you feel currently works 
well in the service you accessed? 
 
 
 
 
3c. Would you change anything about 
the service, and the way it is delivered?  
 
 
 
3d. Did you as a family complete the 
programme? 
 
 
 
 
 

 

• Would you have liked the 
service to refer you to any 
other support? 

 
 

• Are staff generally available 
to offer support when you 
need it? 

 
 

• Are there any gap’s things 
you feel are missing for 
supporting the family needs? 

 
 
 
If yes, did it help you, in what 
ways? 
 

• Would you have liked to have 
been referred for further 
support? 

• How was the exit managed 
by the service, did you get 
follow up? 

P
age 113

A
genda Item

 10



16 

 

 
If no, why was that? 
 
 
 
 
 

4a. Would you recommend the service 
to other families? 

If yes, why?  
 
 
 
 
 
If No, why? 
 
 

 

Topic – Awareness of the Service Offer Prompts Notes 
 

5a. How do you feel the service could 
encourage more families/people who 
need the support to attend the service?  
 
 

• E.g., improved promotion in 
the community? 

 

• How and where this could be 
done? 

 
 
 

 

P
age 114

A
genda Item

 10



17 

 

 

Topic – Other Information 
 

Prompts Notes 
 

6a. Is there anything else that you 
would like to share with us to improve 
the service? 

Observations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 115

A
genda Item

 10



Item 10 
 

2.5 Family Service Users - Survey  
1. How did you arrive at service?  

 Self-referral 

 Community Adult Substance Use Service referral  

 Social Care referral 

 Criminal Justice System 

 Other health professional service referral (please state name of the 

service/provider) 

 Other, please state: …………………………………………………. 

 
2. Who in the family had an issue with Drugs or Alcohol? 

 Adult 

 Child 

 
3. When you were first spoken to about accessing the service, either by 

somebody referring you or the person you spoke to on the phone - was the 

information given clear and made you feel like it would be something that could 

help you? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments – Please state how it could have been improved? 

 
4. In your opinion, do the processes and support in place at the beginning of 

attending the service work well? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - It could have been improved by. 

 
5. Did the interventions and support you receive meet with your family needs and 

requirements? 

 
 Box for comments - Please provide relevant details. 

 
6. Would you change anything about the service and the way it is delivered? Are 

there any other things you would have found helpful? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please detail anything you would like to see 

different. 

 
 

Page 116

Agenda Item 10



19 

 

7. Do you feel there are any barriers that put families off being referred or 

attending the ‘We Are with You’, Substance-Use Service? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please detail any barriers. 

 
8. Can you tell us, how you feel the service can encourage more families who 

need support to attend the service? 

 
 Box for comments - Please provide relevant details. 

 
9. Do you feel there is a stigma to accessing substance use support in Sefton? 

(We are keen to hear your thoughts around any ways in which we can reduce 

stigma and make the service more appealing to our residents). 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please share your thoughts on reducing stigma. 

 
10.  Did you as a family complete the programme? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please provide relevant details. 

 
11.   Would you recommend the service to other families? 

 
 Box for comments 

 
12.   Please detail any further feedback below: 

 
 Box for comments 

 
Thank you for completing the survey. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 117

Agenda Item 10



20 

 

 

Page 118

Agenda Item 10



Item 10 
 

 

2.6 Telephone Interview Guide: Young People  
Introduction 

Thank you for agreeing to take part in this telephone call today. Any views or comments that you choose to 
share about your experience in the service will be anonymous and will help to inform improvements in this 

service for the future. 

Topic – Service Access  
 

Prompts Notes 

1a. How did you arrive at the 
service? 
 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
1b. Why did you access the 
service, what did you need support 
with? 
 
1c. When first spoken to about 
accessing the service, either by 
somebody referring you or the 

• School 

• Social Care/Early Help  

• Self-referral  

• Parents 

• Criminal Justice system 

• Other health professional 
referral 

• Other  
 
 

• Drugs, alcohol, related school 
absence, trouble with police? 

 
 

Was the information clear and did it 
make you feel like it would be 
something that could help you? 

• See above prompts 

 

P
age 119

A
genda Item

 10



22 

 

person you spoke to on the phone 
– What did you think? 
 
 
 
1d. Do you feel there are any 
barriers that put young people off 
being referred to the Service? 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

• Location of service?  

• The location where you were 
asked to meet? 

• Stigma? 

• Opening Times? 
 
 
 

Topic – Assessment  
 

Prompts Notes 

2a. Tell me about your experience 
at your first appointment and the 
initial assessment like?  

 
 
 
 
 

• Did you have to wait longer 
than you expected to be 
assessed? 

 

• In your opinion, do the 
processes and support in 
place at the start of attending 
the service support you well? 

 

• Could it have been 
improved?  

 

 

P
age 120

A
genda Item

 10



23 

 

 

Topic – Interventions and Activities Prompts 
 

Notes 

3a. Did the interventions and 
support you receive meet with your 
needs and requirements? 
 
 
 
3b. What do you feel currently 
works well in the service you 
accessed? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3c. Would you change anything 
about the service, and the way it is 
delivered?  
 
 
 
 
 

• Relationship with key worker? 
 
 
 
 
 

• Activities and interventions 
were they helpful. Which 
ones? 

 

• Was the length of the 
programme ok? 

 
 
 
 

• Such as the ‘way it is 
delivered’ i.e., do you prefer 
either, 1 to 1 or Group 
support? 

 
 

 

P
age 121

A
genda Item

 10



24 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
3d. Did you complete the 
programme? 

• Would you have liked the 
Service to refer you to any 
other support? 

 
 

• Are staff generally available 
to offer support when you 
need it? 

 
 

• Are there any gap’s things 
you feel are missing for 
supporting young people’s 
needs? 

 
 
If yes, did it help you and in what 
ways? 

• Would you have liked to have 
been referred for further 
support? 

• How was the exit managed 
by the service, did you get 
follow up? 

 
If no, why was that? 

P
age 122

A
genda Item

 10



25 

 

4a. Would you recommend the 
service to other Young People? 

If yes, why? 
 
 
 
If no, why? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Topic – Awareness of the Service 
Offer 

Prompts Notes 
 

5a. How do you feel the service 
could encourage more young 
people who need support to attend 
the service?  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

• Promotion in the community / 
school? 

• How and where this could be 
done? 

 
 

 P
age 123

A
genda Item

 10



26 

 

Topic – Other Information 
 

Prompts Notes 
 

6a. Is there any other information 
that you would like to share with 
us to improve the service? 
 
 
 
 

Observations 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 
 
 

P
age 124

A
genda Item

 10



Item 10 
 

2.7 Young People’s Service Users - Survey  
1 Can you tell us how arrived at the service?  

 School-referral 

 Self-referral  

 Social Care referral 

 Youth Justice Team / Criminal Justice System 

 Other health professional service referral (please state name of the 

service/provider):  …………………………………………………. 

 Other, please state: …………………………………………………. 

 
2 When you first heard about the service, can you tell us if you were given a 

clear understanding/picture what was on offer, and did you feel like it would be 

something that could help you? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments – Please state how it could have been improved? 

 
3 Can you tell us, if the information and support at the beginning, when you first 

attended the service worked well for you? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - It could have been improved by? 

 
4 Can you tell us what works well in the service and how it has helped you? For 

example, you could consider any activities or sessions you attended. 

 
 Box for comments -Please provide relevant details. 

 
5 Do you think we could change anything about the service and the way it is 

delivered? Are there any things that are missing in the service for supporting 

people with a substance misuse issue? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please detail anything you would like to see 

different. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 125

Agenda Item 10



28 

 

6 Do you feel there are any barriers that put young people off being referred or 

attending the ‘We Are with You’, service? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please detail any barriers. 

 
7 What do you think we could we do to tell other young people about our 

service?  

 
 Box for comments - Please provide relevant details. 

 
8 Do you feel there is a stigma (by stigma we mean a person being labelled 

or seen in a negative way) for young people getting substance-use support in 

Sefton? (We are keen to hear your thoughts around any ways in which we can 

reduce any sort of ‘labelling’ and make the service more appealing to young 

people)? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please share your thoughts on reducing stigma. 

 
9 Currently, the service operates from two offices and delivers the sessions in 

community settings such as schools and youth centres, homes for individuals 

and families. Do you think this works well?  Would you like to see other 

alternatives? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box for comments - Please provide relevant details. 

 
10  Please give us any other comments you think could help: 

 
 Box for comments 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 126

Agenda Item 10



29 

 

 
2.8 Service Provider Staff Survey Questions 

 
1.  What do you feel currently works well in the service? (Please refer 

separately to Young People and Families in your response): 

 

• Young People Box needed  

 

• Families Box needed  

 
2. Would you change anything about the service, and the way it is delivered? 

For example, are there any gap’s things you feel are missing for supporting 

Young People or Families with substance use issues? 

 
 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box needed 

 
3. Do you feel there are any barriers that put young people off being referred 

to the ‘We Are with You Service’? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box needed  

 
4. Do you feel there are any barriers that put family’s off being referred to the 

‘We Are with You Service’?   

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box needed  

 
5. How do you think the service can better promote itself in the community to 

encourage self-referrals and how could this be done? 

 
 Box needed  

 
 

6. The service generates referrals from partner agencies. Do you have any 

suggestions on how we can increase the number of referrals through these 

channels?  

 
 Box needed  

Page 127

Agenda Item 10



30 

 

              
7. We are keen to hear your thoughts about any ways in which we can reduce 

stigma and make the services appealing to our residents. Do you feel there 

is a stigma to accessing Young People’s or Family substance misuse 

support in Sefton? 

 Yes 

 No 

 
 Box needed  

 
8. Currently, the service has two bases, in Southport and Bootle. We would be 

keen to hear your thoughts on the pros and cons of these locations and on 

the delivery model i.e., seeing people in community settings? 

 
 Box needed  

 
9. The service delivers an offer to schools. Do you have any ideas as to how 

we can improve engagement or expand what we deliver in schools? 

 
 Box needed  

 
10.   Please detail any further feedback you would like to report to us. 

 
 Box needed - Please provide relevant details. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 128

Agenda Item 10



31 

 

Appendix 3 

 

Interim Equality Analysis Report -  
  

Details of proposal:  
 
Recommission of Families and Young Person’s Substance-Use Service & 
Consultation  
 

Ramifications of Proposal:  
 
The consultation may reveal gaps in service provision or barriers to access. 
 
The consultation may raise expectations on future service delivery that may not 
be possible to meet. 
 

Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally 
affected in comparison to others? 
 
 
The Young People families and Substance Use Service is a borough wide 
service and is available to all Young People and Families in Sefton who require 
support. 
 
See below table on pages 6 for protected characteristics profile. 
 

Overview (why the consultation is taking place) 
 
The current extension to the 5-year contract for the Young People & Families 
Substance Use Service expires on the 31st March 2022. A Cabinet report 
seeking approval for the recommissioning of the service during 2022/23 has 
been submitted for the June 2022 Cabinet meeting.  
 
This EIA is connected to the recommission of the service. Commissioners wish 
to carry out consultation with service users and partners to help shape the new 
service specification.  
  
 

Background  
  

                  Public Health will be undertaking a commissioning process which involves 
stakeholder engagement. This is not a new service, the findings from the 
consultation and engagement undertaken are intended to inform any 
modifications required to the service specification. As part of this process, it is 
intended to consult with service users, in order to ascertain how we may 
improve the service provided, also to engage with other partners to understand 

Page 129

Agenda Item 10



32 

 

better the referral pathways, what works well and any gaps in the service 
provision. 
                    

Summary of the Aims and Objectives: 

Aims of the Consultation  
 
The purpose of the consultation is to: 
 
 We aim to ascertain the perceptions of current service users in relation to their 
experience with this service.  
Also, to review key parts of the referral pathway by engaging with partners. 
From this we will ascertain if there are any positive improvements that can be 
made to the service prior to the re-procurement.  

 

 
 

Objectives of the Consultation  
 

What is hoped to be achieved by undertaking the consultation? 
 

• To ensure that service users and service providers are involved and 
can inform modifications to the service specification. 

• To ensure that any new service provision meets the needs of local 
residents and enhances their recovery.  

• To ensure that partners are involved and can inform any 
modifications to the existing service specification. 

 

Who will be affected by the Consultation? 
 
1. Staff: current service provider staff i.e., We Are with You,  
 
 
2. Service users: 

• Current and previous service users will be contacted to participate in the 
consultation be either by survey or telephone interview. 

 
3. Other Young People: 
  

• To better understand what support young people needs and to 
ascertain their understanding of the current service offer via focus 
groups. 

 
4, Partners  
 

• To understand how referral pathways work, ascertain their 
understanding of the service offer and how the service can link in better 
to wider support across the borough.  

 

Page 130

Agenda Item 10



33 

 

 
 

What are the arrangements in place to review the evidence?  
 
The Public Health Team will review and collate the survey data (quantitative & 
qualitative) post the consultation, during August 2022. 
 
Data monitoring will be continuous throughout the contract period. 
 
Data from the National Drugs Treatment Monitoring System will inform any 
changes to the service. 
 
Data from the service and contract review meetings will inform any changes to 
the service.  
 

Why have we chosen to consult with the chosen groups? 
 

• Experience of the substance-use services i.e., service users 

• Professional expertise in delivering substance use services  

• Wider young people’s insight into substance use services  

• Partners to understand referral pathways and the service offer. 
 

Identified Impacts of the Consultation current and previous service users 
i.e., Families and Young People 
 
We are working with the current service provider to identify the most 
appropriate methodology to use with current and past service users. 

Who is the lead department and who else is involved? i.e., stakeholders / 
other departments/ organisations. 
 
The lead department carrying out the service recommission and consultation is 
Sefton Public Health, with the support of the Early Help commissioner and the 
current service providers: 
 

• We Are with You 
 
Partners and stakeholders who are also expected to support the 
consultation i.e., dissemination of the survey and include: 
 

• Commissioned Youth Providers 

• Community/Young People Services 

• Early Help 

• Education 

• CVS 

• Safeguarding 

• Young Advisors 
 

Page 131

Agenda Item 10



34 

 

Sefton Young Advisors who will hold the Focus Groups in informal settings, 
with young people who are non-service users. 
 

Potential barriers to engage service users and people in the consultation 
 
It is well documented that stigma is often associated with substance use and 
can therefore become a barrier to people seeking help, as people may feel they 
will become unfairly discriminated by the wider community.  
 
Similarly, the same can be applied to consultation as service users (past and 
present) may not want to share their experience with others in fear of stigma 
and ‘labelling’. 
 
Language used within young people’s methodologies will be important to 
ensure it is accessible to this cohort. 
 
A range of partners will be invited to participate in the consultation survey. The 
response rate will be determined by their capacity and willingness to 
participate.  
 
Mitigation 
 
To encourage participation and appropriate representation and inclusivity, a 
range of consultation methodology will be adopted and will include focus 
groups, telephone interviews and surveys.  
 
The reluctance of some people to participate, has been considered and 
sensitivity towards the associated stigma attached with substance use has 
been considered and there will be an option to complete an anonymous online 
survey, rather than to participate in a focus group/telephone interview. 
 
All proposed young people consultation documents have been reviewed by 
young people’s lead at cvs to ensure they are young people friendly. 
 
We have identified key contacts within partner organisations to support the 
dissemination of the survey to appropriate contacts. 
 

Why is the consultation important? 
 
The Families and Young Person’s Substance-use consultation is 
important to: 
 

• Shape future substance use services for young people and families 

• To understand better any barriers to access and completion  

• Ensure there is a transition if needed from one service to another and to 
create a clear pathway for referral.  

• We need to understand and continually keep up to date with developing 
trends within Sefton.  

Page 132

Agenda Item 10



35 

 

• To listen to people to ensure the recommissioned service delivers 
effective provision in response to changing needs. 

 

Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will be met? 
 
The Equality Act 2010 requires that those subject to the Equality Duty must, in 
the exercise of their functions, have due regard to the need to: 

1. Eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment and victimisation and 

other conduct prohibited by the Act. 

2. Advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 

3. Foster good relations between people who share a protected 

characteristic and those who do not. 

The Act explains that having due regard for advancing equality involves: 

• Removing or minimising disadvantages suffered by people due to their 

protected characteristics. 

• Taking steps to meet the needs of people from protected groups where 

these are different from the needs of other people. 

• Encouraging people from protected groups to participate in public life or in 
other activities where their participation is disproportionately low. 

 

The service is available to all Young People & Families within Borough that 

need support with substance use issues. There is continue monitoring of the 

service via contract review meeting which includes any complaints received. 

 

There is no evidence/complaints from the existing service reports of 

discrimination. Any issues raised via the consultation will be considered 

within the new service specification. 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & Council? 
 
 
The following actions are proposed: 
 

• To undertake the consultation over a two-week period, commencing in July 
2022  

 

• To review and collate the survey data (quantitative & qualitative) post the 
consultation, during August 2022. This will be done by the Public Health 
Team. 

 

Page 133

Agenda Item 10



36 

 

• To review the EIA, post the consultation taking place and to amend 
accordingly. 
 

• To as appropriate take account of feedback when developing the service 
specification  
 

• To review the EIA should further changes to service delivery be required. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 134

Agenda Item 10



Item 10 
 

 

Protected Characteristics and the Identification of Potential Issues/Barriers 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Tick which 
applies 

Tick which 
applies 

Reasons for the positive impact or potential negative impact, *although PH 
will identify negative impacts, it may not be realistic to negate these due to a 
lack of resources. Positive 

Impact 
Potential 
Negative 
Impact 

Yes No Yes No 

Age  ✓  ✓ The Consultation is broad and will involve families and young people (YP), involved 
in the service. 
The wider consultation will invite schools and community partners to participate.  
Public Health (PH) have the support of Sefton Young Advisors to consult with YP in 
informal youth settings, which enables the consultation delivery to involve a wider-
YP audience. 
The consultation should provide an opportunity for young people and families to 
provide important information regarding the existing service, but also how to shape 
future service provision. 
The service specification will take account of both young people and family’s 
feedback where appropriate. 
The service will be available to all Young People and Families within Sefton who 
require substance use support. 
 

Mitigation:   

• Ensure that the needs of both cohorts are considered in service design and 
delivery. We aim to offer different interventions that support both individual 
young people and families.   

Disability  ✓  ✓ There may be barriers in terms of disabled people engaging in the consultation.  
The consultation exercise is available in a variety of formats and should therefore be 
inclusive: 

• Telephone Interview 

P
age 135

A
genda Item

 10



38 

 

Protected Characteristics and the Identification of Potential Issues/Barriers 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Tick which 
applies 

Tick which 
applies 

Reasons for the positive impact or potential negative impact, *although PH 
will identify negative impacts, it may not be realistic to negate these due to a 
lack of resources. Positive 

Impact 
Potential 
Negative 
Impact 

Yes No Yes No 

• Focus Group 

• Survey  
 
The service is community based and the service model provides for individuals and 
families to receive support in a variety of community settings including their home. 
 
Mitigation:  

• Ensure venues used are accessible to all i.e. ground floor consultation 
rooms. 

• Where appropriate the service will deliver in a community setting suitable to 
the client’s needs.  

• Differentiation of materials such as easy read versions for people with low 
levels of literacy.  

 
 
 

Gender 
Reassignment/ 
Transgender 

 ✓  ✓ All service users should be respected without discrimination in the 
service. Understanding of any additional health/service needs will be assessed. 
   
 Mitigation:  

• Monitor responses in relation to complaints and compliments 
• Ensure the service policies are compliant.  

 

P
age 136

A
genda Item

 10



39 

 

Protected Characteristics and the Identification of Potential Issues/Barriers 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Tick which 
applies 

Tick which 
applies 

Reasons for the positive impact or potential negative impact, *although PH 
will identify negative impacts, it may not be realistic to negate these due to a 
lack of resources. Positive 

Impact 
Potential 
Negative 
Impact 

Yes No Yes No 

Marriage and 
Civil Partnership 
 

 ✓  ✓ There service is accessible to all Sefton residents without discrimination. 
 
 Mitigation:  
No evidence to suggest a negative impact. 

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

 ✓  ✓ The consultation may reveal gaps in service provision for women and partners 
accessing substance use services during pregnancy. 
  Mitigation: 
Understanding of any additional health/service needs to be identified for appropriate 
referral  
 

• Monitor responses in relation to complaints and compliments 

• Ensure the service policies are compliant.  
 

Race  ✓  ✓ Due to the changing demographics of Sefton in some areas/wards, any data and 
information can become quickly outdated and may not be relevant to some sections 
of the community. There may be some sections of the community e.g., asylum 
seekers who are not willing to discuss substance use or access support.  
Awareness is needed of any language barriers to accessing the service and lifestyle 
information to support service planning.   
  
Mitigation:  

• Monitor substance use population data for Sefton.  
• Ensure information can be communicated effectively where English is not first 
language. 

P
age 137

A
genda Item

 10



40 

 

Protected Characteristics and the Identification of Potential Issues/Barriers 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Tick which 
applies 

Tick which 
applies 

Reasons for the positive impact or potential negative impact, *although PH 
will identify negative impacts, it may not be realistic to negate these due to a 
lack of resources. Positive 

Impact 
Potential 
Negative 
Impact 

Yes No Yes No 

 
 

Religion or 
Belief 

 ✓  ✓ There is a potential reluctance to access treatment services according to religion or 
beliefs.   
 
Religion or beliefs respected without discrimination in the service.   
 
 Mitigation:  

• Monitor responses against substance misuse population data where religion 
is stated for Sefton to identify changes in client profile. 
• Ensure all policies are compliant 
 

Sex  ✓  ✓ The service is available to all Sefton Residents. Health needs can differ, and risks 
and vulnerabilities of service users may be different. 
 
  Mitigation:  

• Monitor uptake by sex utilising service data to ensure the service remains 
relevant.  

•  Ensure policies are compliant  
  

Sexual 
Orientation 

 ✓  ✓ All service users to be respected without discrimination in the service.  
Understanding of any additional health/service needs 
   
 Mitigation:  

P
age 138

A
genda Item

 10



41 

 

Protected Characteristics and the Identification of Potential Issues/Barriers 

Protected 
Characteristic 

Tick which 
applies 

Tick which 
applies 

Reasons for the positive impact or potential negative impact, *although PH 
will identify negative impacts, it may not be realistic to negate these due to a 
lack of resources. Positive 

Impact 
Potential 
Negative 
Impact 

Yes No Yes No 

• Monitor responses in relation to complaints and compliments 
• Ensure policies are compliant.  
 

 

 

 P
age 139

A
genda Item

 10



T
his page is intentionally left blank



  

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 15 July 2022  
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

–Climate Change Community Engagement Consultation   
 
Report of:  Julia Thorpe – Project Officer, Climate and Environment  
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed with regard to the Climate Change Community 
Engagement Consultation. 

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Current Climate Change Engagement  
 

3.1 The Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan set out a 
commitment to work with communities and partners on the issue of 
climate change. The Action Plan sets out that we will take local 
action by -  
• Ensuring all information on our climate emergency is available in 

an easy read format and is accessible to all our residents.  
• Establishing and engage with an expert panel and a diverse 

citizens panel (including youth).  
• Working with partners (Schools, New Directions, Businesses etc) 

to adopt low carbon & adaptation measures.  
• Engaging our communities to raise awareness of the Council’s 

commitments and encourage appropriate behaviour change.  

3.2 There is political will to involve the community with the work the 
Council are doing in this area and to show leadership. It is also 
hoped that engagement will prompt action on climate change across 
the borough (to reduce borough emissions), with communities 
developing ownership and understanding of the climate emergency. 

 
3.3  To date, we have listened to the views of Sefton residents and 

businesses on the topic of climate change in a number of ways. The 
COVID-19 pandemic prevented meeting in person with large groups 
of people, so instead, last year; 

Page 141

Agenda Item 11



• We hosted several climate themed events with residents, schools 
and businesses in Sefton during the two weeks of COP26. 

• We helped Sefton CVS with their Climate Change focused 
Annual Conference for community groups.  

• We held a number of consultations on topics where there is a 
direct link to climate change – for example, the Council’s Flood 
Risk Management Plan on Your Sefton, Your Say.  

• We worked with the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority on 
their ‘Net Zero Carbon Engagement 2021’online consultation.  

 
3.4 Despite this, community engagement is an area where we are aware 

we need to improve upon. Therefore, the proposed consultation 
builds on the work we have done so far and gives communities the 
opportunity to have a direct say in how they want to be involved in 
Sefton’s climate change response going forward.   

  
 
4.    The Consultation 
 

4.1 We propose to run a climate change consultation this summer. 
Running from 25 July 2022 to 30 September 2022.  

 
4.2  The consultation will be focused on all stakeholders across Sefton, but 

in particularly residents and young residents.  We have existing 
channels of communication with schools, businesses and community 
groups, but less so with residents.  

 
4.3 The consultation will be high level asking residents what they want 

from the Council in terms of climate engagement. Then asking 
questions about a citizens panel (or similar group), options and what 
the panel could do. See Appendix 1 for draft questions.  

 
4.4   The consultation will be primarily on-line using the Your Sefton, Your 

Say platform. In addition, we will hold three in-person drop-in events to 
support residents who do not have access to the internet, who would 
like some support in completing the consultation or who would like 
more of an in-depth discussion of the issue. The drop-in sessions will 
be held at the sites below. More details about the drop-in sessions are 
set out in Appendix 2.  

 
 

 Consultation Event 
North Borough  
 

The Atkinson  

Central Borough 
 

Waterloo Community 
Centre  

South Borough Bootle Library  
 

Page 142

Agenda Item 11

https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/green-sefton/local-flood-risk-management-strategy-consultation/
https://yourseftonyoursay.sefton.gov.uk/green-sefton/local-flood-risk-management-strategy-consultation/


   
4.5   The outcome of the consultation will be to produce a Climate Change 

Community Engagement Plan, guided by the responses.  The plan will 
set out how we will engage with residents over the next phase of the 
Climate Change Action Plan. In addition, this consultation is also 
another step in a dialogue with residents who will hopefully engage 
with the climate change issue and take their own action – bringing 
behaviour change to an individual level.  

 
    4.6 We have shared out plans with Sefton CVS and SYMBOL. 

Contributions by both will help ensure we get as wide a response rate 
as possible.  

   
  The draft questions are currently being reviewed to incorporate view of 

the Young Advisors who are helping to shape the questions so that 
they are engaging for the younger audience.  

 
4.7  A Communication Plan has been produced for the consultation 

(Appendix 3) and sets out our approach, key messages etc. The 
branding of the project will use the new Climate Emergency Branding 
(red and blue climate stripes) for consistency with our Annual Report 
and documents.  

 
Below is a list of channels we will use to communicate - 
 

Internal External  
Dedicated Cabinet  
Member(s) briefing 

 
One Council Brief 

 
Intranet 

 
Yammer 

 
Dwayne’s Blog 

 
Dwayne’s Teams Hour 

 
 

Social Media  
 

Media liaison proactive 
and reactive 

 
Consultation Events 

 
Sefton Council website 

www.sefton.gov.uk   
 

My Sefton news 
www.mysefton.co.uk  

 
Your Sefton, Your Say 

website  
 

School – Big Green 
Envelope  

 
Young Advisor Promotion 

 
Posters 

 

Page 143

Agenda Item 11

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/
http://www.mysefton.co.uk/


SYMBOL 
Schools Get Talking  

 
Sefton CVS  

 
4.8     The consultation will be managed and run internally using existing 

staff and budgets. However, the resultant Climate Change 
Community Engagement Plan may have further implications on 
resources – for example, should the decision be made to establish 
and run a citizens panel.  

 
4.9 The consultation plans have been discussed with Sefton’s VCF and 

Equality Officer and an Equality Impact Assessment complete 
(Appendix 4).  

 
5.      Reporting and Publishing the Findings 
 

5.1 The responses will be collated and presented to the Climate 
Emergency Member Reference Group on 22 November 2022. A 
Climate Change Community Engagement Plan will then be produced 
setting out how the Council will engage with the community over the 
next Phase of the climate change action plan. The plan will be 
published on the Your Sefton, Your Say page once approved by the 
Climate Emergency Member Reference Group.  

 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 
 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report (LD 27/6/2022) and has no comments to 
make. 

 
7. Recommendations 
 
 
 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Climate Change Community Engagement Consultation  
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation 

Page 144

Agenda Item 11



 
Climate Change Community 

Engagement Consultation 

 

 

Sefton Council are asking all parts 

of our community for their views 

on how we tackle climate change 

together.  

 

You can access a handy guide to 

the terms we use (highlighted in 

yellow) like ‘net zero carbon’ in 

the Fact Bank at the end of the 

document.  

 

 

Privacy Policy  

 

Your answers will not tell us who 

you are, this will be confidential. 

Read our Privacy Policy Statement 

here (easy read) for more 

information about this.  

 

 

Q1 Did you know Sefton Council 

has set a target to be net zero 

carbon by 2030?   

o Yes  

o No  

o Unsure  

o Comment….  

 

Page 145

Agenda Item 11



 

Q2  Are you aware of how you 

can reduce the amount of carbon 

you create, also known as your 

carbon footprint? 

o Yes  

o No  

o Unsure  

o Comment….  

 

 

Q3   Would you like the Council to 

provide you with more information 

on how to save carbon?  

o Yes  

o No  

o Unsure  

o Comment….  

 

 

Q4   In future we expect more 

extreme weather events such as 

storms and heatwaves.  Will this 

change in climate will impact 

you? 

o Yes  

o No  

o Unsure  

o Comment….  

 

 

Q5 Would you like the Council to 

provide you with more information 

on the impact of climate change 

and how you can be prepared?  

o Yes  

o No  

o Unsure  

 

Page 146

Agenda Item 11



 

Q6    What type of information 

would you want to receive via 

social media? (Choose up to 5) 

- How to calculate your own 

carbon impacts 

- What the Council is doing 

- How to save energy at home 

- Green jobs 

- Climate and health suggestions 

- Nature and biodiversity 

information 

- The coast (habitat and sea 

defences) 

- Transport information & 

suggestions 

- Current consultations which 

may impact our climate 

- Funding available  

 

 

Q7   Would you like to be involved 

with the Council’s climate change 

work in the future?  

 

o No  

o Yes – access 

information online 

o Yes – access 

information via a 

newsletter  

o Yes – take an active 

role in the Council’s 

plans  

o Other…  

 

Page 147

Agenda Item 11



 Creation of a Climate Change 

Community Engagement Group  

 

Q8 Do you think that Sefton 

Council should set up a group to 

regularly focus on climate change 

issues?  

o Yes - If your answer is 

yes, please answer 

questions 9 and 10 

below 

o No – please go to the 

‘Some Questions 

About You’ section 

o Unsure  

o Comment … 

 

 

Q9   What do you think the group 

should do? (Select up to 2)  

o Provide views on Council 

policies and plans.   

o Help share climate 

messages.  

o Be ‘green champions’ 

and show others how to 

act.  

o Review the actions of 

groups across Sefton and 

provide comments.  

o Be involved in acting 

across Sefton  

o Other/comments… 

 

  

Page 148

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

Q10    What topics should the 

group cover? (choose up to 5) 

o Renewable energy and 

Heating 

o Energy and Fuel Poverty 

o The Built Environment 

and infrastructure  

o Transport- including 

cycling, walking and 

public transport  

o Agriculture and Food 

o Waste (household and 

business rubbish) 

o Water 

o Planning and Land Use 

o Commercial and 

Industrial  

o Ecological Emergency 

and Biodiversity 

o Food insecurity 

o Improving job skills, 

education and retraining 

people into green 

industries 

o Clean air and reducing 

pollution 

o Flood risk and recovery 

from floods 

o Quality of public space, 

green space  

o Other……. 

 

Page 149

Agenda Item 11



 

Q11    Please provide any 

additional views/comments you 

would like the Council to consider 

in the box below. 

 

  

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

Some Questions About You 

 

These questions are optional, you 

do not have to answer them. 

 

Filling in this form will help us 

make sure we are reaching 

everyone in Sefton. 

 

All this information is private. We 

bring together the answers. 

 

1. How old are you? 

 

o Under 18 

o 18-29  

o 30-39 

o 40-49  

o 50-59  

o 60-69 

o 70-79  

 

Page 150

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

o 80-84  

o 85+ 

o Prefer not to say 

 

2. Are you  

o Male 

o Female  

o Prefer not to say 

 

3. People are planning to, 

started to or have changed 

their sex are protected by 

the Equalities Law Act. Are 

you planning to, started to 

or have changed your sex? 

This is called gender 

reassignment. 

 

o Yes 

o No  

o Prefer not to say 

 

3.1 If you answered Yes to 

question 3. Do you 

currently live as the sex 

you were given when you 

were born? 

 

o Yes 

o No  

o Prefer not to say 

3.2 If you do not live as the 

sex    you were given at 

birth, are you? 

o Transgender 

Page 151

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

o Non-binary 

o Identify differently  

o Prefer not to say 

 

4. How would you describe 

your sexual orientation? 

o Heterosexual/Straight 

o Gay 

o Lesbian 

o Bisexual 

o I identify differently 

o Prefer not to say 

 

5. Disability - Do you have any 

of the following? 

 

o Physical Impairment 

o Visual Impairment 

o Learning difficulty 

o Hearing impairment/ 

deaf 

o Learning disability 

o Long-term illness that 

affects you daily life 

o Autism / Asperger’s 

o Dementia 

o Mental Health 

condition 

o Prefer not to say 

 

If you have Cancer, diabetes or 

HIV this is seen as a disability 

under the Equalities Law. 

Or you have selected any of the 

boxes in question 5. 

Page 152

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

6. Do you think of yourself as 

disabled? 

o Yes 

o No  

o Prefer not to say 

 

7. What is your religion or 

belief? 

o No religion or belief 

o Christian 

o Hindu 

o Muslim 

o Jewish 

o Sikh 

o Other 

o Prefer not to say 

 

8. Race and ethnicity - do you 

identify as 

o Prefer not to say 

o Asian or Asian British 

o Indian 

o Bangladeshi 

o Pakistani 

o Black 

o Chinese 

o Other Asian 

background 

o Black or Black British 

o African 

o Caribbean 

o British 

o Asian 

Page 153

Agenda Item 11



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

o Other Black 

background 

o Mixed Ethnic 

background 

o White and Black 

Caribbean 

o White and Black 

African 

o White and Asian 

o Other mixed ethnic 

background 

o White 

o Welsh 

o Irish 

o Scottish 

o English 

o Northern Irish 

o British 

o Other white 

background 

o Other 

o Gypsy/ Irish 

Traveller 

o Roma 

o Polish 

o Latvian 

o Portuguese 

 

 

 

Thank you for filling in this form. 

 

This information will not be able 

to 

tell us who you are. 

Page 154

Agenda Item 11



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

But it will help us to understand if 

we are missing people out. 

 

However, if you want to be kept 

informed about the Council’s 

Climate Change Community 

Engagement Plan, please leave 

your email address in the box 

below.   

 

What happens next? 

 

The consultation will close on 30 

September 2022.     

We will then report the results to 

our councillors (people who 

make decisions) We will gather 

all the feedback we receive 

from this consultation to produce 

a Climate Change Community 

Engagement Plan. We will also 

publish a summary of the results 

on Your Sefton Your Say.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contact email address -  

Page 155

Agenda Item 11



 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Fact Bank  

 

Built Environment and 

infrastructure 

The environment where people 

live and work  

 

 

Carbon 

Carbon (also known as CO2, 

carbon dioxide, or Green House 

Gas) is a gas released when we 

burn fossil fuels such as oil, gas and 

coal. Carbon emissions are the 

major cause of climate change. 

Therefore, efforts are focused on 

reducing it.  

 

 

Carbon footprint 

A carbon footprint is the amount 

of carbon released into the 

atmosphere as a result of the 

activities of a particular individual, 

organisation, or community. 

 

 

Climate change 

Climate change is the warming of 

the planet because of harmful 

materials humans are putting into 

the environment.  Burning fossil 

fuels such as gas, oil and coal are 

warming our planet, this is 

changing our climate.   

Page 156

Agenda Item 11



 

Climate Change is a threat to all 

life on Earth and scientists have 

said urgent action is needed. 

 

In July 2019 Sefton Council agreed 

that there is a climate change 

emergency. We have a plan 

showing what Sefton Council is 

going to do to help climate 

change stop. The report is 

available here (easy read).  

 

Commercial and Industrial  

How to reduce the environmental 

impact of Sefton businesses 

 

Community 

This consultation gives you the 

opportunity to have a say in how 

you want to be involved in 

Sefton’s climate change response.  

We want to hear from as many 

people as possible, from every 

part of our borough.   

Whether you live, work, or socialise 

in Sefton we want to hear from 

you. We will gather all the 

feedback we receive from this 

consultation to produce a Climate 

Change Community Engagement 

Plan. 

 

Page 157

Agenda Item 11



 

Community Engagement Group 

Climate change is not a one-off 

issue, it is ongoing and will not be 

solved quickly. So, the Council are 

thinking about setting up a 

‘climate change community 

engagement group’.  

 

This group could allow people 

who live and work in Sefton to 

work with the Council on climate 

change action across the 

Borough. 

 

Ecological Emergency and 

Biodiversity 

Linking climate change action 

with work to improve biodiversity in 

the Borough 

 

 

Energy and Fuel Poverty 

A household is classed as being in 

energy or fuel poverty when they 

live in an inefficient home and 

spend so much of their income on 

fuel that are the then below the 

poverty line. 

 

Extreme weather events 

In Sefton, scientists think climate 

change will mean we will see 

warmer wetter winters, hotter drier 

summers, and more extreme 

Page 158

Agenda Item 11



weather events such as storms 

and heatwaves. 

 

Food insecurity 

Not having enough food or types 

of food 

 

Green champion 

A Green Champion is a person 

who is passionate about climate 

action in their home lives and who 

encourage climate action almost 

others in their community.  

 

Impact of climate change 

Climate change will impact 

everyone, but particularly those 

most vulnerable, for example, 

heatwaves and storms. 

 

Net zero carbon 

Net Zero Carbon refers to the 

balance between the amount of 

carbon produced and the 

amount removed from the 

atmosphere. We reach net zero 

when the amount we add is no 

more than the amount taken 

away.  

 

 

Renewable energy 

An alternative to using fossil fuels 

such as natural gas, coal and oil is 

to use what is called ‘renewable 

Page 159

Agenda Item 11



energy’. This is energy cannot be 

depleted and comes from things 

like the sun and wind. Some 

examples of renewable energy 

sources are solar energy, wind 

energy, hydropower and 

geothermal energy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 160

Agenda Item 11



Community Engagement Consultation – Plan for the Drop-in Sessions 

This report sets out the plan for the in-person consultation events for the Climate 
Change Community Engagement Consultation. As set out in the Communications 
Plan, the consultation will be primarily on-line using the Your Sefton, Your Say 
platform. But in addition, we will hold three in-person drop-in events to support 
residents who do not have access to the internet, who would like some support in 
completing the consultation or who would like more of an in-depth discussion of the 
issue.  

The sessions will be drop-in. Paper copies of the consultation will be provided as 
well as the supporting information (Easy Read version of the Climate Change 
Strategy) will be available for residents to read and fill in on the day. The questions 
and materials will be the same as those online.  

The sessions will be staffed by a Sefton officer working closely on the climate 
change agenda, offering advice, and answering questions where required.  

Where and when?  

Three sites have been chosen, following recommendations from the Climate 
Emergency Member Reference Group. The three sites have been chosen to spread 
across the Borough and the sites have confirmed they are able to host the 
consultation. The exact times and dates are to be confirmed, as we are trying to link 
into other events planned at the venues (such as open days/family fun days) to 
maximise footfall. We expect the sessions to happen late August and for a few hours 
at each location.   

 Site Location  
North Borough  
 

The Atkinson  

Central Borough 
 

Waterloo Community 
Centre  

South Borough Bootle Library  
 

We will make every effort to advertise the drop-in sessions. Posters will be put up at 
key public sites across the Council (for example in leisure centres) and at the 21 
Hub/meet up spaces identified by the Climate Emergency Member Reference 
Group. In addition to online promotion, we hope this will ensure a good turnout.  

The responses gathered will be collated alongside those responses received online.  

 

Page 161

Agenda Item 11



 

 

Climate Change Community Engagement Communications Plan 

June 2022 

 

Background  

The Council’s Climate Change Strategy and Action Plan set out a commitment to work with 

communities and partners on the issue of climate change.  

There is political will to involve the community with the work the Council are doing in this 
area and to show leadership. It is also hoped that engagement will prompt action on climate 
change across the borough (to reduce borough emissions), with communities developing 
ownership and understanding of the climate emergency. 

We have already listened to the view of Sefton residents and businesses on the topic of 
climate change in a number of ways. The COVID-19 pandemic prevented meeting in person 
with large groups of people, so instead, last year: 

▪ We host several climate themed events with residents, schools and businesses in 
Sefton during the two weeks of COP26. 

▪ We teamed up with Sefton CVS with their Climate Change focused Annual 
Conference for community groups.  

▪ We held a number of consultations on topics where there is a direct link to climate 
change – for example, the Council’s Flood Risk Management Plan on Your Sefton, 

Your Say.  
▪ We worked with the Liverpool City Region Combined Authority on their ‘Net Zero 

Carbon Engagement 2022 online consultation.  

Despite this, community engagement is an area where we are aware we need to improve 
upon. Therefore, the proposed consultation builds on the work we have done so far and 
gives communities the opportunity to have a direct say in how they want to be involved in 
Sefton’s climate change response going forward.  

We propose to run a climate change consultation this summer. Running from 25 July 2022 to 
30 September 2022.   

The consultation will be focused on all stakeholders across Sefton, but in particularly 
residents and young residents.  We have existing channels of communication with schools, 
businesses and community groups, but less so with residents.  

The consultation will be high level asking residents what they want from the Council in terms 
of climate engagement. And then asking questions about a citizens panel (or similar group), 
options and what the panel should do.  

The consultation will be on-line using the Your Sefton, Your Say platform. Plus, we will host 
some drop-in events for residents who have no access to the internet or who we particularly 
want to reach. List where and when   

The practical outcome of the consultation will allow us to plan our engagement with residents 
over the next phase of the Climate Change Action Plan. And this is the first step in a 
dialogue with residents who will hopefully engage and take their own action – bring 
behaviour change to an individual level. 

Page 162

Agenda Item 11



 

 

There is a need to have a communications plan to craft a narrative, manage press and 
media interest and promote the consultation to residents.  

 

Aims and Objectives  

The main aim of our communications is to encourage participation in our consultation 

Our objectives are:  

- To clearly communicate our climate emergency strategy and implementation plan 
- To ensure that people who participate in our consultation are informed and engaged 

in the Council’s response 
- To communicate the various methods of participation including online and in-person 

events  
- To encourage all demographics to participate 
- To communicate next steps as a result of the consultation 
- To provide all information in accessible formats including Easy Read  

 

Key Messages  

We are asking residents to contribute to our Climate Emergency plans in the future  

This fulfils a commitment made in the original motion from July 2019 

Participants will be asked what they want from the Council in terms of climate engagement.  

The consultation will also ask questions about a future citizens panel (or similar group), 
options and what that panel should do.  

The consultation is an opportunity to identify community priorities for the Council to shape its 
plans over the next few years.  

We want people to contribute primarily online but there will be opportunities to interact with 
officers and give feedback in person. 

We want to capture the youth voice in particular as they are the generation to inherit climate 
problems in future.  

 

Branding 

Our campaign will not have a brand per se but will fall under the umbrella of previous brands 
of consultation and climate action  

#SustainableSefton #YourSeftonYourSay 

All materials will carry our red and blue branding colours for consistency with our strategies 
and reports. 

 

Channels and Audience 

Our audience is all residents of Sefton, this consultation wants wide participation, particularly 
from younger people with whom we will run direct sessions.  

Page 163

Agenda Item 11



 

 

Below is a list of channels we will use to communicate  

Internal External  

Dedicated Cabinet  Member(s) briefing 
 
One Council Brief 
 
Intranet  
 
Yammer  
 
Dwayne’s Blog  
 
Dwayne’s Teams Hour 
 
 

Social Media  
 
Media liaison proactive and reactive 
 
Consultation Events 
 
Sefton Council website 
www.sefton.gov.uk   
 
My Sefton news www.mysefton.co.uk  
 
Your Sefton, Your Say website  
 
School – Big Green Envelope  
 
Young Advisor Promotion  
 
Posters 
 
SYMBOL  
 
Schools Get Talking 
 
Sefton CVS  

 

Page 164

Agenda Item 11

http://www.sefton.gov.uk/
http://www.mysefton.co.uk/


Interim Equality Analysis Report  - Climate Change 
Community Engagement Consultation   
  
Details of proposal:  
Consultation to run in the summer – focusing on climate change and how 
residents would like to be involved with the Council on this topic going forward.  
 
Ramifications of Proposal:  
The consultation results will help determine the Council’s Climate Change 
Community Engagement Plan.  
 
Are there any protected characteristics that will be disproportionally 
affected in comparison to others?  
 
All Sefton residents, businesses and visitors will be impact by climate change – 
including all those with protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010. This 
will either be directly, for example, feeling the effects of increased flooding or 
heatwaves, or indirectly through changes in Government Policy such as the 
abolition of gas boiler in homes and of petrol/diesel vehicles. But it is arguably the 
most vulnerable who feel the impact more as they are less able to adapt.  
 
However, because climate change is such a vast topic, this consultation has been 
kept very narrow. Meaning that the consultation itself is not focusing on any policy 
changes/decisions. Therefore, the equality impact of the consultation is low.  
 
The impact on protected groups from this specific consultation are set out below 
alongside their mitigation action.  
 
The protected characteristics under the Equality Act 2010 are: 
 

• Age – Climate Change is an emotive topic and the Council have committed to 
engaging young people with this agenda. However, young people tend to be less 
engaged with Council activities than older people. To help boost responses from 
Young People, we have been working with Sefton Young Advisors to help shape 
the questions we ask, guide where we advertise (e.g. Instagram and in schools) 
and encourage young people to engage.  
 

• Disability- The questionnaire will be primarily online, in easy read format. We will 
offer a paper copy to be sent out at request. We will host three drop-in sessions 
across the Borough to allow those who are not able to complete online the chance 
to respond. The drop-in sessions will be advertised extensively online and with 
posters in community centres and hubs. The sessions will be attended by an 
officer working in the climate change field to provide support/discussion of the 
topic.  The drop-in session will be held in fully accessible locations for those with 
mobility issues.  

 

• Gender Reassignment – No Impact Identified  

• Marriage and Civil Partnership– No Impact Identified 

• Race– No Impact Identified 

Page 165

Agenda Item 11



• Religion or Belief– No Impact Identified 

• Sex– No Impact Identified 

• Sexual Orientation– No Impact Identified 

• Pregnancy and Maternity– No Impact Identified 
 
 
Consultation: 
 
        We propose to include the Council’s Diversity Monitoring Form for this 

consultation to help us capture and understand if there are any protected 
groups who have not engaged in the process. If we find there are groups 
underrepresented, we will take steps to rectify this.  

 
       The materials produced will be easy read and easy to access. Paper 

versions will be sent out on request as will translated versions.  
 
        While we primarily want responses online, we will host three drop-in 

sessions in the Borough. We will ensure the venues are fully accessible to 
those with mobility issues and the sessions will be advertised extensively (for 
example, posters up in community centres, leisure centres etc as well as 
online). 

 
        Climate change is a vast topic and can be complex, therefore an 

experienced officer, working on climate change will attend the drop-in events 
to talk through the consultation with individuals on a 1-2-1 basis. The 
questions at the drop-in sessions will be the same as those on-line but there 
will be additional support available should it be needed.  

 
        To help boost responses from Young People, we have been working with 

Sefton Young Advisors to help shape the questions we ask, guide where we 
advertise (e.g. Instagram and in schools) and encourage young people to 
engage.  

     
        When the consultation is complete and the Climate Change Community 

Engagement Plan is developed, this may have more of a direct impact on 
some of the protected groups and at that point we will carry out another 
sperate Equality Impact Assessment. 

 
Is there evidence that the Public Sector Equality Duties will be met? 
 
The Equality Act 2010 requires will be met.  

 
 

What actions will follow if proposal accepted by cabinet & Council? 
 

• Include the Council’s Diversity Monitoring Form 
• Easy read documents 
• Translation copies and printed copies available on request 

Page 166

Agenda Item 11



• In person drop- in sessions being held as well as online (at accessible 
locations) 

• Working directly with Sefton Young Advisors  
 
 

 

Page 167

Agenda Item 11



 

 

Sefton Council 

Climate Change Community 

Engagement Consultation 

Privacy Notice 

 

Sefton Council would like to tell you 

about our Privacy Notice for this 

consultation. 
 

 

 

This Easy Read privacy notice will 

explain what information we 

collect from you, why we collect it 

and how we will keep it safe. 
 

 

The personal information about you 

we collect. 

In this consultation we will collect 

information about 
 

• IP addresses (this is a computer 

code to show what computer 

the information comes from) 

• Email address  

• Equality questions 

IP Address 

195.187.51.205 

Page 168

Agenda Item 11



 What personal information we 

collect. 
 

In this consultation we collect 
 

• IP address 

• Age 

• Sexuality 

• Gender 

• Disability 

• Religion 

• Race or ethnicity 

• Email address to be informed 

about the results of the 

consultation (optional) 
 Why we collect and use this 

information 

 

IP addresses that identify 

computers 
 

• The IP addresses are collected 

to make sure only one 

response per resident is 

received. 

• Once this is checked the IP 

address information is deleted. 

 

Email address  

• If you want us to let you know 

the results of this consultation, 

we will ask you to give your 

email address. 

• This will only be used to send 

you information about this 

consultation. 

 

Page 169

Agenda Item 11



• It will be kept securely on the 

Council’s system and not 

shared with anyone outside 

the Council.  

 

Equalities Questions 

 

These are collected to show what 

groups of people are responding to 

the questionnaire.   

This also lets us know if we need to 

use different ways to contact 

groups of people who are not 

responding.  

 
 

 

How long we keep your information 

 

The IP address will be deleted 

immediately after the checks are 

done. 

 

The email addresses will be deleted 

after we email the response to you.  

 

The equalities information will be 

kept until the information has been 

looked at and a report written. 

  

 

 

 

Page 170

Agenda Item 11



 

How we use the information and 

who we share the information with 
 

The information collected in this 

questionnaire will only be used as 

numbers in the report.   

No information is collected that tells 

us who you are. 

 
 

 Storing the information 

All information is kept safe.   

Sefton Council follows the laws 

around data protection. 

 
 

 

 

The laws 

 

We need to make sure we  

 
 

• Only ask the questions we need 

to in the questionnaire. 

 
 

• Ask equalities questions.  The law 

says we must ask and act on this 

information. 

 

It helps us to know what groups 

of people are responding to the 

questionnaire.   

 

It also helps us to know we are 

not missing groups of people. 

 
 

GDPR 

Page 171

Agenda Item 11



 

Confidential 
 

Your answers will not tell us who you 

are.   

The answers will be collected to 

help us know what people think. 
 

 

Who will we share this information 

with? 
 

Your personal information will not 

be shared with any other 

organisation. 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 

Asking to see your personal 

information 
 

You can ask to see what personal 

information we keep about you.  

Be aware there are some rules 

about why some information 

cannot be shared. 

 
 

You can refuse to answer any 

questions in the questionnaire. 

 
 

If you want to ask to see your 

personal information you can.       

Use the Council website to 

complete a request form. 

 

Or you can call Sefton Council on  

0345 140 0845 

 

 
 

Page 172

Agenda Item 11

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/miscellaneous-pages/privacy-policy.aspx
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/miscellaneous-pages/privacy-policy.aspx


 

 
Contacts 

 

For more information about this 

privacy notice and the consultation 

please contact 
 

Jayne Vincent 

 

Jayne.vincent@sefton.gov.uk 

 

0151 934 3733 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Sefton’s Data Protection Officer 

 
 

Ino.information@sefton.gov.uk 
 

 

0345 140 0845 

 

Page 173

Agenda Item 11

mailto:Ino.information@sefton.gov.uk


 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Sefton’s Climate Change 

Emergency Plan 
 

What Sefton Council are doing about 

Climate Change. 

Page 174

Agenda Item 11



Introduction 

Climate is the weather conditions found in a                  

certain place over a long period of time.  

Climate change describes a change in the                   

normal weather conditions.  Like changes in      

average temperature and how much rain has 

fallen. 

Climate Change is a threat to all life of Earth and 

scientists have said urgent action is needed. 

How humans have lived over the last 200 years, 

has meant changes in our climate have                  

happened faster.  

Climate change is happening now and                 

it is affecting plants, animals and humans. 

 

What's happened So Far 

All over the world countries have said we need 

to act together to stop climate change.    

Scientists say changes need to happen quickly, 

within 12 years if it is to make a difference. 

People have asked for action to happen. 

 

In July 2019 Sefton Council said they agreed that 

there is a climate change emergency. 

Lots of other Council’s have agreed that there is 

a problem. 

This plan is to show what Sefton Council is going 

to do to help climate change stop.   

We are part of the group of people who want 

this to happen.  Page 175

Agenda Item 11



How does it affect Sefton? 

As Sefton is on the coast we will see changes  

happen sooner and more strongly. 

Things like 

• Stronger weather like wind, rain and storms. 

• Hotter and drier summers 

• Warmer and wetter winters 

• More flooding along the coast and rivers 

• The coast line washing away 

We already have been plans made about             

protecting the coast from strong weather, but 

we need to stop climate change making it 

worse. 

What We Want To Do 

Sefton Council wants to make changes to how 

they do their work.  Idea's like - 

• Using less energy and energy that does not 

change the climate. 

• Have many spaces that have lots of trees 

and fields, called green spaces. 

• When our work makes gases that are bad for 

the climate - like Carbon Dioxide, we will do 

something good for the climate, like plant 

more trees. 

These things are better for the area we live in 

and the people who live there.   

This will be a good chance for us all to make           

Sefton a better place to live. 

Page 176

Agenda Item 11



What we need to do it 

The plan has 7 areas we will focus on 

 

C - Carbon Reduction - Carbon Dioxide is a gas 

that is made when something is burnt, like when               

making electricity from coal.  Carbon is not good 

for the climate as it makes it warmer.  We want 

to use less of it.  We want to use clean energy by 

2030.  Like energy that comes from the sun or the 

wind. 
 

L - Leadership - Sefton Council will lead the way 

in the decisions it makes. 
 

I - Innovation - We will do things in a different 

way that will help the climate. 
 

M - Mobilisation - Means we are going to start 

acting now. Our staff and our decisions will      

support our plan to help stop climate change. 
 

A - Adaptation - When the effects of climate 

changes happen, like flooding, we will be ready 

to act.  We will change how we take care of 

green spaces to keep people safe. 
 

T - Transformation - means change, we will 

change how we behave to make sure it protects 

the climate. 
 

E - Engagement - We will ask people what they 

think about our plans. 

Page 177

Agenda Item 11



How are we going to do it 

We need to report how much Carbon Dioxide 

and other harmful gases are made by Sefton 

Council. 
 

There are different measurements  

1. How much harmful Carbon Dioxide is made 

from Council buildings and vehicles.  

2. How much harmful carbon is made when    

using energy, like the electricity we use.   

3. How much carbon is made when the council 

does it’s work.  Like staff travelling around  

Sefton doing their jobs. 
 

What we will do - Our actions 

• We will find out how much Carbon Dioxide 

we make. 

• We will find out what work we are doing now 

that we can do in a different way to reduce 

how much carbon we make. 

• The ‘climate change emergency’ message 

needs action from all organisations and     

people.  We will work together to take action. 

• We will have detailed action plans for 10 

years.  These will list the actions and changes 

we will make. 

• Make decisions and work in a way that does 

not harm the climate.  This sometimes means 

doing something to help the climate             

because we had made Carbon Dioxide. 

• To tell others about climate change - in the 

Council, other organisations and the people 

in Sefton. Page 178

Agenda Item 11



The plans will be for the next 10 years.   

From 2020 to 2030. 

 

 

There are some things we are doing now 

 

 

• Find out how much Carbon Dioxide and     

other harmful gasses we make now 

 

 

• Any projects that are happening will think 

about climate change and reduce how 

much harmful gases we make 

 

 

 

• Work with other organisations in the Liverpool 

City Region like Merseytravel 

 

 

 

• Make and do the action the plan for years                      

2020 - 2023 

 

 

 

• Give the first years report in July 2020 to 

Council leaders. 

 

 

Page 179

Agenda Item 11



 

Community Engagement Group 

Climate change is not a one-off 

issue, it is ongoing and will not be 

solved quickly. So, the Council are 

thinking about setting up a 

‘climate change community 

engagement group’.  

 

This group could allow people 

who live and work in Sefton to 

work with the Council on climate 

change action across the 

Borough. 

 

Ecological Emergency and 

Biodiversity 

Linking climate change action 

with work to improve biodiversity in 

the Borough 

 

 

Energy and Fuel Poverty 

A household is classed as being in 

energy or fuel poverty when they 

live in an inefficient home and 

spend so much of their income on 

fuel that are the then below the 

poverty line. 

 

Extreme weather events 

In Sefton, scientists think climate 

change will mean we will see 

warmer wetter winters, hotter drier 

summers, and more extreme 

Page 180

Agenda Item 11



weather events such as storms 

and heatwaves. 

 

Food insecurity 

Not having enough food or types 

of food 

 

Green champion 

A Green Champion is a person 

who is passionate about climate 

action in their home lives and who 

encourage climate action almost 

others in their community.  

 

Impact of climate change 

Climate change will impact 

everyone, but particularly those 

most vulnerable, for example, 

heatwaves and storms. 

 

Net zero carbon 

Net Zero Carbon refers to the 

balance between the amount of 

carbon produced and the 

amount removed from the 

atmosphere. We reach net zero 

when the amount we add is no 

more than the amount taken 

away.  

 

 

Renewable energy 

An alternative to using fossil fuels 

such as natural gas, coal and oil is 

to use what is called ‘renewable 

Page 181

Agenda Item 11



energy’. This is energy cannot be 

depleted and comes from things 

like the sun and wind. Some 

examples of renewable energy 

sources are solar energy, wind 

energy, hydropower and 

geothermal energy. 

 

 

 

 

Page 182

Agenda Item 11



  

Sefton Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 
 
Date: 19th July 2022 
 
Title: Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity 

– Monitoring & Evaluation of Active Travel Tranche 1 Routes in 
Southport and Bootle   

 
Report of:  Andrew Dunsmore, Sefton Council 
 
 
1. Purpose of the Report 
 
 1.1 To receive information with regard to the consultation plans being 

developed in relation to the Monitoring and Evaluation of the Active 
Travel Routes funded via the Active Travel Fund Tranche 1 in 
Southport and Bootle.  

 
2. Background 
 
 2.1 The main purpose of the Public Engagement and Consultation Panel 

is to coordinate and ensure the quality of public engagement and 
consultation, in accordance with the standards for engagement and 
consultation. 

 
3. Name of Issue you are Consulting On 
 
 3.1 The Department for Transport (DfT) announced the Emergency Active 

Travel Fund in May 2020 and this funding was then delegated into 
three tranches. Tranche 1 supported the immediate installation of 
active travel schemes to encourage walking and cycling. Tranche 1 
schemes were designed to be implemented on a temporary basis with 
the potential to then be developed and further tailored into permanent 
longer-term schemes. 

 
        3.2 Sefton Council submitted two schemes as part of Tranche 1 which 

included the following improvements: 
 
  Bootle Active Travel Tranche 1  
 

o Signing the promotion of Church Gardens as a cycle priority route; 
o Cycle lane introduced on Merton Road; 
o Works undertaken on Merton Road to provide a safer link to the 

existing crossing; 
o Dedicated right turn lane for cyclists onto Pembroke Road from 

Merton Road; 
o Signage for preferred route on Pembroke Road. 

Page 183

Agenda Item 12



Southport Active Travel Tranche 1  
 

o Two one way filters on Queens Road / Park Lane and Queens Road 
/ Manchester Road junction. 

o Suspension of Parking Bays along the full left of Hoghton Street, with 
retention of disabled parking bays.  

o Surface marking along Chapel Street to denote route 
o One way modal filters on Talbot Street 

 
3.3 These schemes have now been in place since 2020, with monitoring 

of use via automatic counters ; however, a full evaluation of their 
impact is now required. Sefton Council has therefore developed a 
DRAFT Monitoring and Evaluation Plan (Appendix A) which will 
assess the success and limitations of the schemes. Part of this will 
include the need to engage with key stakeholders, local businesses, 
residents, and users of the routes employing techniques 
recommended in Department for Transport guidance. This will 
include the use of the recommended user perception survey 
questions which are contained in Appendix B.  

 
3.4 A Draft Equality Impact Assessment has been developed for the 

routes and will be modified to take account of comments back from 
Sefton’s Corporate Equality Group and from groups representing 
Protected Characteristics. The assessment will be further modified 
as the mitigation actioned detailed in the report are progressed. A 
copy of the DRAFT report is provided in Appendix C. 

 

4.    The Consultation 
 

4.1 The main elements of public facing consultation will be around 
businesses, residents and user of the routes, to gain an understanding 
of their perceptions and this forms a key part of the Monitoring and 
Evaluation Plan. This is broken down into residents / business surveys 
and user perception surveys which will delivered in different 
engagement formats. The approach to the perception surveys is in line 
with Department for Transport’s guidance, Active Travel Fund 
Monitoring Guidance 2020 and the Active Travel Fund Public Opinion 
Surveys Good Practice Guide 2021. An example of the main points / 
questions to be asked is contained with the Monitoring and Evaluation 
Plan and these are to be based on the recommended questions in the 
guidance. 

 
4.2 User (perception) surveys will take place in Summer and Autumn 2022 

will be delivered by survey and data collection experts engaged via an 
existing contract to deliver surveys and intelligence gathering. As the 
surveys will be undertaken during Summer, it is likely that summer 
visitors, particularly on the Southport scheme and families on their 

Page 184

Agenda Item 12



school summer break will be captured. The surveys will then be 
repeated in Autumn in order to also capture the commuter /use and 
users from educational establishments such as Hugh Baird College 
(Bootle) and Southport College. 

 
4.3 Business and resident surveys will take place along the routes in both 

Bootle and Southport. The surveys will take the form of a directly 
addressed tailored letter inviting comment. We will also offer a number 
of one-to-one sessions for those who have been engaging with us 
since the implantation of the routes. Fuller details of the consultation 
approach are contained in Appendix A. 

 
5.      Reporting and Publishing the Findings 
 

5.1   The findings of the surveys will be analysed and will form part of the 
wider Monitoring and Evaluation Report to be produced in Autumn 
2022. 
Cabinet and Ward Members will be informed of the full approach and 
will approved the monitoring and evaluation process as is contained 
within the Plan. 

 
6. Legal Department Comments 
 
 6.1 Sefton’s Legal Department has considered the consultation plans 

contained in this report (LD 6/7/2022) and has no comments to make. 
 
7. Recommendations 
 
 
 7.1 The Public Engagement and Consultation Panel is recommended to: 
  
  a) Appraise the public engagement and consultation plan for the 

Emergency Active Travel Tranche 1 schemes. 
 
  b) Request that the officers return to the Panel to provide details of 

their feedback and evaluation resulting from the above 
consultation. 

 
Appendix A – Monitoring and Evaluation Plan  
 
Appendix B – DfT User Perception Surveys 
 
Appendix C – Equalities Impact Assessment (Draft – not included large 
appendices which are available on request) 
 
 

Page 185

Agenda Item 12



 

 

 

Active Travel Monitoring and 
Evaluation Plan 

Active Travel Fund – Tranche 1 

Emergency Active Travel Routes – 
Bootle and Southport 

 

 

 

  

Page 186

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

1  

Table of Contents 
Introduction ........................................................................................................................................... 2 

Scheme Overview ............................................................................................................................................ 2 

Funding ........................................................................................................................................................... 5 

Scope .............................................................................................................................................................. 5 

Monitoring ............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Evaluation .............................................................................................................................................. 6 

Approach to Evaluation .................................................................................................................................... 6 

Logic Map ........................................................................................................................................................ 7 

Research Questions ......................................................................................................................................... 8 

Evaluation and Data Collection Methods .......................................................................................................... 8 

Primary Data Methods ..................................................................................................................................... 9 

Cost of Monitoring and Evaluation ................................................................................................................. 10 

Dissemination of findings ............................................................................................................................... 10 
 

  

Page 187

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

2  

Introduction  
In May 2020 the Department for Transport (DfT) announced the Emergency Active Travel Fund to support 
the Covid-19 recovery in creating waking and cycling routes to help repurpose travel patterns. The DfT 
stated that Active Travel allows people to get around whilst maintaining social distancing and would help 
play an essential role in reducing overcrowding on public transport system. 

The Liverpool City Region Combined Authority (LCRCA) developed ‘a framework for members to accelerate 
walking and cycling measures and to repurpose streets to support the sustainable recovery from COVID-19 
restrictions’. This framework guidance drew on the DfT information, and recommendation of the LCR 
Walking and Cycling Commissioner and the associated good practice being promoted by some local 
authorities; as well as inputs from the Transport Advisory Group (TAG). 

In anticipation of the potential offer of funding Sefton Council Officers identified some principles and 
criteria for the assessment of potential interventions. This determined the process of identifying locations 
and outlined how they would be prioritised via a scoring system.   The scoring system included anticipated 
demand, need, safety and visibility. Two schemes emerged at the top of the scoring system, one in Bootle 
which concentrated on the Stanley Road area and another scheme in Southport focused on creating a 
north – south link through the town. 

LCRCA invited Local Authorities to apply for funding based on the potential schemes developed in 
accordance with the framework guidance.  These were assessed and prioritises across the City Region by 
LCRCA. Following this appraisal process the LCRCA confirmed that the two Sefton priority schemes in 
Bootle and Southport town centre would be included in the list of schemes presented to DfT. 

On 27th May 2020 the LCRCA received confirmation from the DfT of the indicative allocation of £1.974m. A 
proportion of which was given to Sefton Council to develop the two schemes in Bootle and Southport. 

This report focuses solely upon the Tranche 1 schemes (known as ATF1) in Sefton and highlights the 
monitoring and evaluation process by identifying the levels of walking and cycling pre and post-scheme 
implementation.  It is noted that Sefton Council will receive further allocations of funding also for the 
LCRCA via tranche 2 and 3 of the Active Travel Fund. 

Scheme Overview 
The key aims of the two schemes developed for ATF1 by Sefton Council were to provide safer cycling 
routes to education, employment and retail; and alternatives to public transport. The process of 
prioritisation and decision making by LCRCA on the details of the final schemes developed is included in 
the Cabinet Member Report agreed in August 2020, as attached in Appendix A. 

Bootle Emergency Active Travel Route  
The Bootle scheme was developed and refined in conversations with the LCRCA, key stakeholders and 
internal officers and the focus was on linkages with the town centre.   

Page 188

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

3  

The Bootle ATF1 scheme consisted of: 

o signing the promotion of Church Gardens as a cycle priority route; 

o cycle lane introduced on Merton Road; 

o works to be undertaken in Merton Road to provide a safer link to the existing crossing 

o dedicated right turn lane for cyclists onto Pembroke Road from Merton Road 

o signage for preferred route on Pembroke Road 

 

Southport Emergency Active Travel Route 
The Southport ATF1 scheme consisted of route including the following elements, with the intention of 
providing a north to south walking and cycling route through the centre of Southport.  It was 
acknowledged that whilst there is a network of cycle route, which is being further developed by the 
Southport East West Links scheme, there was a lack of routes from north to south:  

o One way filters: Two one way filters on Queens Road / Park Lane and Queens Road / 
Manchester Road junction. 

o Segregated cycle lanes from the junction of Queens Road with Manchester Road for the 
length of Hoghton Street, passing Southport College. Including the suspension of Parking 
Bays along the full left of Hoghton Street, with retention of disabled parking bays.  

o Surface marking along Chapel Street to denote route 

o One way modal filters are Talbot Street 

 

In the original application via the LCRCA for the Bootle and Southport, there were some additional 
elements to those listed above; however following stakeholder consultation and discussions with LCRCA 
these were the tailored down to the above elements. 

The priority schemes being delivered through ATF1 are detailed in Table 1 below and the elements are 
categorised using the DfT guidance as follows: 

• New Cycle / Walking Infrastructure 

• Adaptions to existing infrastructure 

• Traffic restraint 

 

 

 

Page 189

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

4  

Table 1 List of Elements of ATF1 Schemes 
Scheme Name Value Description DfT Scheme Category 

Bootle Emergency 
Active Travel Route – 
Tranche 1 

 Signing the promotion of 
Church Gardens as a 
cycle priority route 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

 Cycle lane introduced 
on Merton Road; 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

 Works to be undertaken 
on Merton Road to 
provide a safer link to 
the existing crossing 

Adaptions to existing 
infrastructure 

 Dedicated right turn 
lane for cyclists onto 
Pembroke Road 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

 Signage for preferred 
route on Pembroke 
Road 

 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

Scheme Name Value Description DfT Scheme Category 

Southport Emergency 
Active Travel Route – 
Tranche 1 

 One way modal filters 
on Queens Road 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

 Suspension of parking 
bays for the full length 
of Hoghton Street 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

 Surface markings on 
Chapel Street to denote 
route 

Adaptions to existing 
infrastructure 

 Modal filters on Talbot 
Street 

New Cycle / Walking 
Infrastructure 

 
  

Page 190

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

5  

Funding  
The funding value of the Emergency Active Travel Fund is £590,457 for the combined Bootle and Southport 
routes. This breaks down into £322,892 for the Bootle route and £267,565 for Southport.  Due to the short 
turnaround between receiving the funding and on the ground implementation, this precluded the 
opportunity for a formal consultation and engagement process.  Therefore the engagement approach was 
based upon the ‘Test and See’ approach, noting that lessons learnt and any feedback received would be 
taken into any further funding opportunities.  The timescales for swift delivery were linked directly to the 
funding received from LCRCA. Key consideration of the funding as set out in the funding letter include: 

• Four weeks to demonstrate works have started and eight weeks to have fully completed; 

• DfT expectation is that the measures are then permanent with any necessary adjustment being 
made; 

• That the scheme should be monitored and evaluated.  

The ATF1 funding was designed to help support pop-up and trial interventions to create an environment 
that is safe for both walking and cycling. During an unprecedented trend and change in travel patterns and 
demands due to the Covid-19 pandemic response, it has allowed for Local Authorities to consider short 
term measures, which could be trialled and potentially made permanent should they show positive 
behaviour changes and increased levels of cycling and walking. 

Building on the ATF1 routes the LCRCA prioritised the Southport North South Cycle route for ATF2 funding.  
As such a public consultation exercise was undertaken in the Summer of 2021 the results of which and next 
steps can be found here.      

Scope  
The overall aim of the ATF Tranche 1 schemes was to increase cycling numbers and provide safer roads for 
all users. Subsequently, connectivity and accessibility to key places such as employment, education and 
retail facilities would be improved. Air quality would be impacted with this uptake in cycling and it would 
contribute to achieving net zero status, reducing congestion, improving health, and improving social 
cohesion and inclusivity.  

This monitoring and evaluation plan sets of the strategy for assessing the ATF1 scheme and describes the 
methods for evaluating how successful it has been in achieving these factors since implementation.  It has 
been prepared in accordance with the Department for Transport Guidance in assessing active schemes  
and the latest guidance on surveying and polling  in relation active travel schemes, including the Active 
Travel Fund Monitoring Guidance 2020 and the Active Travel Fund Public Opinion Surveys Good Practice 
Guide.   

  

Page 191

Agenda Item 12

http://smbc-modgov-03/documents/s107193/Southport%20Walking%20and%20Cycling%20Consultation%20and%20Active%20Travel%20Tranche%202.pdf
http://smbc-modgov-03/documents/s107193/Southport%20Walking%20and%20Cycling%20Consultation%20and%20Active%20Travel%20Tranche%202.pdf


 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

6  

Monitoring  
Monitoring is the collection of data to check progress against targets.  It is the formal reporting of evidence 
that spend, and outputs are successfully delivered, and milestones met.  Monitoring of data also plays a 
key part in the evaluation by tracking changes in outcomes over time.  The metrics recorded for monitoring 
are: 

• The cost of each scheme 

• Number of each intervention built 

• Length or size of each intervention  

 

Evaluation  
Evaluation is the assessment of the project’s effectiveness and efficiency during and after implementation. 
This includes measuring the causal effect of the project (or elements within the project) on planned 
outcomes and impacts, assessing whether the anticipated benefits and value for money have been realised 
and whether any unanticipated impact occurred.  

Approach to Evaluation  
The evaluation will seek to understand the impact of the ATF1 scheme and assess the usage and mode 
shift along with perceptions of safety as appropriate.  The logic map detailed within the DfT Guidance for 
Tranche 2 has been adapted for the evaluation of all active travel projects and programmes by Sefton 
Council, who seek to have a robust approach to evaluation of schemes. 

The DfT guidance definitions are as follows: 

• Outcomes – intermediate effects such as changes in traffic flows  

• Impacts – longer term effects on wider social economic and social outcomes such as contribution to 
economic growth 

  

Page 192

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

7  

Logic Map 
Context  Inputs  Activities  Outputs  Outcomes  Impact 

National  

Transport Decarbonisation Plan / 
Gear Change 

LCRCA 

LTP4 / Short Journeys Strategy / 
Economic Recovery Plan / LCWIP 
/ Climate Action Plan 

Sefton 

Sefton 2030 / Climate Emergency 
Plan / EQIA / Obesity Strategy / 
Childhood Poverty Strategy / 
Public Health Report  

Local area 

Local areas Regeneration Plans 
for Bootle and Southport 

 £590,457 for the 
combined Bootle and 
Southport schemes. 
£322,892 for the Bootle 
scheme and £267,565 for 
Southport. 

Sefton Council staff 
resource 

Framework Consultant 
Support 

Vivacity Sensors / smart 
green dashboard 

 

 Scheme 
development and 
prioritisation  

Ongoing 
consultation 

Ongoing M&E plan 
to prove the case 

Continue to 
develop ambitious 
designs and plans 

 X km of 
walking and 
cycling route 

No of street 
clutter items 
removed 

No of 
improved 
crossing 
points 

No of filters / 
bus gates 

Reduction of 
on-street 
parking stock 

Km of road 
space 
reallocated 

 Enable more people 
to choose active 
travel  

Facilitation of safe 
social distancing 
within public spaces 

To make the case for 
permanent 
segregated solutions 

Make healthier 
habits easier 

 An increase in active 
travel 

Reduced levels of 
congestion 

Improved road 
safety 

More cardiovascular 
activity 

Improved air quality 

Improved public 
health outcomes 

P
age 193

A
genda Item

 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

8  

Research Questions 
There are a number of questions which the Council will seek to understand in order to assist with scheme / 
project evaluation. These research questions are derived based on the logic map and the core aims and 
objectives of the ATF1 schemes. The aim of the evaluation is to provide accountability for the investment 
in the scheme. This will be considered in terms of both impacts and processes.   

Process  

• Was the scheme built as designed? 

• Were there any safety concerns in the existing corridor/ junction? If so, did the cycling 
improvement scheme successfully address the issue? 

Impact Evaluation  

• Who is using the scheme and for what type of journeys? 

• Are they new to cycling/walking? Which modes have they shifted from? 

• Users' attitudes towards the scheme, e.g., quality, appeal, safety 

• Has road safety and traffic congestion improved? 

Evaluation and Data Collection Methods 
The DfT recommend that all schemes under £1m are monitored to determine the impact of the schemes to 
build an evidence base on what works and does not work in order to evidence this in future bids.  The 
guidance advises that this is particularly important for innovative schemes or schemes being implemented 
in a new context which have the potential to be particularly contentious.   

Table 2 Data Collection Methods 
Project or 
programme 

Name  DfT Scheme 
Category 

Evaluation / Data 
collection  

Frequency / 
Timeframes  

ATF T1 Bootle 
Emergency 
Active Travel 
Route 

And 

Southport 
Emergency 
Active Travel 
Route 

New cycling and 
walking infrastructure 

Scheme usage 
levels: 
 
Vivacity sensors to 
record number of 
people walking and 
cycling.  
 
Vivacity sensors: 
Understanding of how 
counts have altered 
since installation 

 

Monthly and 
annual profile to 
show 
seasonality 
changes.  
 
Typical 
weekday and 
weekend 12hr. 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 194

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

9  

Project or 
programme 

Name  DfT Scheme 
Category 

Evaluation / Data 
collection  

Frequency / 
Timeframes  

User perception 
surveys: 
Survey route users to 
provide a snapshot of 
those who travel on 
route 

Local Businesses and 
resident surveys: 
Survey local 
businesses/residents 
to ascertain impacts 
of scheme, noting the 
engagement will be 
with those directly 
along the route.  

Autumn 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
Autumn 2022 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

Primary Data Methods 
To monitor the Tranche 1 schemes, a number of monitoring methods will be conducted to understand how 
the scheme has impacted upon the area. 

Intercept and Business Surveys 
Primary research such as intercept and business surveys will be conducted in line with the latest 
Department for Transport Guidance.  The questionnaire content for the intercept survey will be based 
around the following points.  

• Journey Purpose 

• Origin and destination 

• Factors influencing decision to use route 

• Mode shift / how they would make the journey in the absence of the scheme 

• Perceptions of safety 

• Demographics 

The intercept survey will be undertaken based on flow data from our Vivacity Monitors to capture peak 
walking and cycling flows.  An example of the recommended questions from DFT’s guidance on the 
Opinion Poll Guidance, is included as Appendix A.    

In addition to this, local registered businesses will receive a letter requesting feedback on the scheme.  

Page 195

Agenda Item 12



 
A C T I V E  T R A V E L  M O N I T O R I N G  A N D  E V A L U A T I O N  P L A N  –  
E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  F U N D I N G  T R A N C H E  1   

 

 

1 0  

Traffic Counters 
Vivacity traffic counts are a form of automatic trip counter which uses artificial intelligence to provide real 
time fully classified count.    In order to monitor the schemes successfully, Vivacity sensors will be used 
continuously to monitor the number of people walking and cycling.  Automatic cycle counters, like Vivacity, 
provide a vast amount of data and it is recommended that data is collected for three years after scheme 
implementation. Some seasonality profiling may be possible using the Vivacity sensors Green Dashboard as 
this monitors weather conditions.   

When reporting on the automatic cycle counters it is important to keep a record on the direction of flow, 
movements around a junction and whether cyclists are on the road or on adjacent facilities. Further to this, 
any anomalies in the data will be noted and explanation provided (e.g., covid-19 restrictions lifting) 

There are vivacity sensors installed in the following locations; 

• Merton Road, Bootle 

• Talbot Street, Southport 

• Chapel Street, Southport 

In addition to this, further sensors are due to be added to the Southport ATF1 route in 2 different locations 
– Hoghton Street and Queens Road.   

An independent data verification exercise will be undertaken and results will be reported along with the 
Monitoring and Evaluation Report.    

Cost of Monitoring and Evaluation  
The cost of the scheme / project evaluation will be met via the scheme costs.   

Dissemination of findings 
A Monitoring and Evaluation Report will be prepared for each element of AT1 in Autumn 2022 and this will 
be presented to Cabinet Member for consideration whether the measures are to be retained, removed or 
modified.

Page 196

Agenda Item 12



 

 

 

 

 

Page 197

Agenda Item 12



 

November 2020 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Active Travel Fund Public Opinion 

Surveys 
Good Practice Guidance 
 

Moving Britain Ahead 
 

Page 198

Agenda Item 12



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
The Department for Transport has actively considered the needs of blind and partially 
sighted people in accessing this document. The text will be made available in full on the 
Department’s website. The text may be freely downloaded and translated by individuals or 
organisations for conversion into other accessible formats. If you have other needs in this 
regard please contact the Department.  
 
Department for Transport 
Great Minster House 
33 Horseferry Road 
London SW1P 4DR 
Telephone 0300 330 3000 
Website https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-transport 
General enquiries: https://forms.dft.gov.uk 
 

 
© Crown copyright 2020 
Copyright in the typographical arrangement rests with the Crown. 
 
You may re-use this information (not including logos or third-party material) free of charge 
in any format or medium, under the terms of the Open Government Licence. To view this 
licence, visit http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/   
or write to the Information Policy Team, The National Archives, Kew, London TW9 4DU, or 
e-mail: psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk 
 
Where we have identified any third-party copyright information you will need to obtain 
permission from the copyright holders concerned. 

 

Page 199

Agenda Item 12

https://www.gov.uk/government/organisations/department-for-transport
https://forms.dft.gov.uk/
http://www.nationalarchives.gov.uk/doc/open-government-licence/version/3/
mailto:psi@nationalarchives.gsi.gov.uk


 

3 

Contents 

 Introduction 5 

Background 5 

 Research Design 8 

Scope of the research 8 

Defining the population 8 

Sampling and representativeness 9 

Opportunity for additional research 10 

 Data Collection 11 

Data Collection Methods 11 

Conducting Research during Covid-19 11 

Timings 12 

Research Ethics 13 

Data Protection 13 

 Questionnaire Design 15 

Introduction 15 

Key principles of survey design 15 

Survey length 15 

Survey content and structure 16 

 Reporting and Communicating Findings 19 

Data Analysis 19 

Reporting and Communicating Findings 19 

 Annex A: Key Considerations Checklist 22 

Scoping the design: 22 

Defining the population 22 

Sampling and representativeness 22 

Data collection 23 

Questionnaire design 23 

 Annex B: Useful Resources 24 

 Annex C: Example Questions 26 

Introduction 26 

Page 200

Agenda Item 12



 

4 

Vehicle and Bicycle Access 27 

Mode Use 28 

Perceptions of walking 37 

Perceptions of cycling 39 

Cycle Training 41 

Mode Shift 41 

Perceptions of the Local Area 45 

Congestion, Reallocation of Road Space, Parking, Pollution 51 

Health, Mobility and Disability 56 

Demographics / personal characteristics 61 

Re-contact 63 

 
 

Page 201

Agenda Item 12



 

5 

 Introduction 

Background 

1  
2 One of the conditions of funding for Tranche 2 of the Active Travel Fund is that Local 

Authorities must consult local stakeholders on their proposed plans before 
construction starts.  

3 Effective engagement with communities is key to achieving a scheme that is 
accepted, and should form part of the scheme development process from the start. 
As well as giving communities the opportunity to help shape proposed changes, it 
allows Local Authorities to understand people’s needs and concerns. This means 
potential problems can be identified and dealt with before they become substantial 
obstacles.  

4 There are a range of methods and techniques available to carry out engagement 
activities. At a minimum Local Authorities receiving funding via the Active Travel 
Fund should consult with local residents, local businesses (where they are directly 
impacted by the scheme), emergency services, bus operators, Royal Mail and local 
MPs.Where appropriate Local Authorities must undertake appropriate public opinion 
surveys, for their full programme of schemes or individual elements of it, as part of 
their consultation plans.  

5 Local Authorities are required to publish a two-page summary of the consultation 
activities they will undertake with local people prior to commencing delivery of 
schemes. Before scheme construction commences, they must formally notify the 
Department for Transport (hereafter ‘the department’) that they have: 

6 LAs to supply a letter signed by the Leader of the Council or a senior officer, 
confirming they have: 

• consulted all key local stakeholders 

• obtained broad support for their schemes and made any changes to take account 
of local feedback 

• implemented a clear communications plan to deal with any backlash which draws 
on the results of local opinion surveys 

• discussed plans with local MPs, and provide a summary of MPs’ responses (e.g. 
via a RAG rating) 

7 Letters do not need to show unilateral support, but instead that reasonable levels of 
consultation have been carried out and reasonable adjustments to schemes made in 
response to concerns. 

8 In cases where there are a number of schemes which are part of a wider programme 
(e.g. in combined authority areas), authorities may wish to notify the Department in 
batches, when appropriate schemes are ready for construction. 

Page 202

Agenda Item 12



 

6 

9 Please email letters to: walking.cycling@dft.gov.uk  
10 The department acknowledges that some Local Authorities may have already 

completed their consultation process as part of scheme development. In such 
instances the department does not expect the consultation exercise to be repeated. 
However, Local Authorities should consider whether additional consultation activities 
are required in order to satisfy the conditions set out above and provide sufficient 
reassurance to the department that the views of local stakeholders have been 
captured and acted upon where appropriate. Public opinion surveys are also 
expected to be undertaken after scheme implementation as part of scheme 
monitoring and evaluation activities.    

About this guidance 
11 This document sets out good practice guidance for undertaking public opinion 

surveys. It aims to help Local Authorities to design and deliver surveys that produce 
good quality, reliable evidence that can be used to understand public attitudes and 
behaviour towards proposed interventions, which can be used to inform scheme 
design and delivery. The guidance should also help Local Authorities to understand 
how to interpret and communicate survey results, and to understand the extent to 
which there is support for proposed schemes. 

12 The guidance sets out the key issues that Local Authorities should consider when 
undertaking surveys to understand public attitudes towards proposed interventions 
funded via the Active Travel Fund. It is not intended to be a detailed guide about how 
to design, conduct and analyse social surveys. There is a wealth of readily available 
literature and guidance on this subject, a selection of which is referenced throughout 
and listed in Annex B.   

13 The guidance is comprised of four sections: 

• Research design  

• Data collection  

• Survey questions 

• Reporting and Communicating Findings 
14 Annex A provides a summary of the key considerations set out in this guidance in the 

form of a set of questions. This can be used this as an aide memoire or checklist 
when scoping and designing the research. 

15 Annex B provides a list of freely available, online resources with more detailed 
information about designing and conducting public opinion surveys, research ethics, 
data protection requirements and conducting research during the Covid-19 
pandemic. Many of these are also referenced as footnotes in relevant sections of this 
guidance.  

16 Annex C provides a selection of sample questions, many of which are drawn from 
other public opinion surveys, that could be used when constructing a questionnaire.  

17 Local Authorities are encouraged to enlist the help of internal or external specialists 
with technical expertise in survey design, social research, market research or 
statistics to design and deliver their surveys. When doing so it is important that 
individuals responsible for managing the consultation process act as an intelligent 
customer to ensure they understand the strengths and limitations of the proposed 
approach to data collection and analysis and the implications this has for how they 
can use and communicate the results. Surveys can be funded through authorities’ 

Page 203

Agenda Item 12

mailto:walking.cycling@dft.gov.uk


 

7 

Tranche 2 scheme allocation 
18 Public opinion surveys are expected to be one element of the consultation process. 

Local Authorities should consider which other stakeholders need to be engaged and 
the optimal way to capture their views.  

19 Further advice is also available from other organisations: 

• The Local Government Association website contains a range of resources to 
support the design and delivery of public consultations.1  

• The Cabinet Office has produced short guidance on principles for public 
consultation which may be of use2.   

• The CIHT guide “Involving the Public and Other Stakeholders” provides advice on 
engaging people in scheme development, and is focussed on public realm 
schemes.3 

 
1https://www.local.gov.uk/code-conduct-consultation-2020; https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-
communications-support/resident-communications-4; https://www.local.gov.uk/consultation-check-list 
2https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/691383/Consultation_Principles__1_
.pdf 
3 https://www.ciht.org.uk/media/4464/involving_the_public_and_othe_stakeholders_-_june_2015_11049.pdf  Page 204

Agenda Item 12

https://www.local.gov.uk/code-conduct-consultation-2020
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-communications-support/resident-communications-4
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-communications-support/resident-communications-4
https://www.local.gov.uk/consultation-check-list
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/691383/Consultation_Principles__1_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/691383/Consultation_Principles__1_.pdf
https://www.ciht.org.uk/media/4464/involving_the_public_and_othe_stakeholders_-_june_2015_11049.pdf


 

8 

 Research Design 

Scope of the research 

20 The use of public opinion surveys as part of the consultation process is to help Local 
Authorities to understand the extent to which there is local support for proposed 
schemes and programmes being funded by the Active Travel Fund. These surveys 
could also help Local Authorities understand perceptions of proposed schemes and 
their individual elements, barriers to acceptance of their proposals and what they 
could do to overcome this, and opportunities to optimise scheme design. It is for 
Local Authorities to decide which programmes or elements thereof to consult on via 
this method.  

21 When making this decision, Local Authorities should consider both the value of the 
programme or scheme as well as the potential impact this will have on existing travel 
behaviour. For example, a low-cost scheme that will restrict car access, increase 
journey times or increase congestion in high traffic areas may provoke a strong 
reaction amongst local road users and lend itself to this method. By contrast, it may 
be less important to seek widespread public opinion about a scheme that aims to 
improve existing walking or cycling infrastructure without impinging on current travel 
behaviour even if there is a high cost associated with the intervention.  

22 The department is seeking reassurance from Local Authorities that there is broad 
support for their schemes and, plans are in place to deal with any potential backlash 
arising from those schemes identified as more contentious. Public opinion surveys 
are considered one mechanism by which to do this. It is at the Local Authority’s 
discretion to determine how and whether to use public opinion surveys for this. 

Defining the population 

23 Once a Local Authority has decided which schemes or programmes to seek public 
opinion on and the broad questions that need to be answered, it will need to decide 
whose views should be sought in this way. Local Authorities are encouraged to cast 
the net wide and consider who is likely to be impacted, either positively or negatively, 
by the proposed intervention. This should include residents of the local area in which 
the scheme or programme is located, as well as other individuals or groups who 
regularly travel through the area or may be impacted by changes to transport 
infrastructure, such as local businesses.  

24 When selecting the population of interest, it is important to consider what criteria are 
best used to determine whether individuals should be asked about specific elements 
of a programme and how results will be analysed. For example, if the Active Travel 
Fund is being used to deliver a number of small schemes across a large geographic 
area, Local Authorities should consider whether all survey respondents should be 
asked about all schemes or just those which affect routes within the vicinity in which 
they reside and/or which they regularly use. This will be especially important where 

Page 205

Agenda Item 12



 

9 

one survey is being used to ask about a number of schemes or multiple elements of 
a programme. 

25 Once the population has been defined, where possible, the next step will be to 
determine its demographic composition. Key indicators include: gender, age, 
ethnicity, disability, household income and/or socio-economic status. Other factors 
that could be considered are employment status, household composition, car/van 
access and religion.  

26 Where the target population covers a particular geographic area, census data4 could 
be used to determine the composition of the population. Local Authorities may have 
access to other data sources that could be used for this purpose which may be more 
up to date or provide additional information about their local area. This information 
will enable the Local Authority to devise an appropriate sample for the survey, 
consider appropriate data collection methods and determine the extent to which 
survey respondents are representative of the population. 

Sampling and representativeness 

27 It is not expected that every member of the population will participate in the survey or 
be invited to do so. However, ideally, Local Authorities should be able to make 
inferences about the attitudes and behaviours of the wider population from the results 
of the survey. They should also be able to identify which, if any, groups within the 
population are under or over-represented by survey respondents and consider how 
to account for this in analysis and when interpreting survey results. 

28 Sampling is used to help ensure that individuals invited to participate in the survey 
are likely to be representative of the wider population on key characteristics, and that 
there are sufficient numbers of survey respondents with these characteristics to be 
able to understand their views.  

29 The next stage in the process is to decide how to engage the sample in the survey. 
In an ideal world, where time and money are no object, all members of the population 
should have an equal chance of being invited to take part in the survey and those 
selected should be done so at random. One way of doing this in a defined 
geographic area would be to systematically target households at random, for 
example by sending a copy of the survey to x number of properties within a postcode 
area selected at random. However, it is unlikely that this approach would be feasible 
in the timescales or budget available. 

30 There are many alternative approaches to sampling which can be used to obtain a 
sample that is broadly representative of the population. The appropriate approach will 
depend on a number of factors including time, budget, proposed data collection 
methods and the characteristics of the population.  

31 Technical experts should be able to advise on the strengths and limitations of 
different approaches and recommend the most appropriate to meet the Local 
Authority’s needs. This will include how many respondents will need to take part in 
the survey in order to obtain meaningful results and look at similarities and 
differences in the opinion of different sub-groups within the population. 

32 When designing or commissioning a public opinion survey Local Authorities should 
have a good understanding of the implications of the proposed approach to sampling 
on the representativeness of the survey results and how this will be accounted for 

 
4 https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata Page 206

Agenda Item 12

https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata


 

10 

when collecting, analysing and reporting data and interpreting the results. From the 
outset it is important to know whether survey responses can be generalised to the 
wider population of interest or will merely represent the views of survey respondents 
and provide an indication of wider sentiment. Understanding this will help Local 
Authorities determine how much weight to place on results when taking decisions. 

Opportunity for additional research 

33 Surveys are useful tools by which to understand the prevalence of attitudes and 
behaviours within a population of interest. Within the context of the ATF they will 
enable Local Authorities to identify existing travel behaviour, determine whether a 
proposed intervention is deemed acceptable, and even what trade-offs people are 
willing to make for better cycling and walking infrastructure. However, surveys alone 
may not be sufficient to fully understand public opinion and, in particular, why people 
do or do not support a proposed scheme or programme.  

34 As part of the research design approach Local Authorities should consider whether 
public opinion surveys need to be supplemented by other research such as focus 
groups or one-to-one interviews. These qualitative methods could be deployed either 
before or after a survey is undertaken, depending on what will be more helpful.  

35 Qualitative research could help Local Authorities gain a more detailed and in-depth 
understanding of attitudes towards a new cycling or walking scheme or programme, 
and of barriers to acceptance and use. It can also be used to generate ideas about 
how to improve scheme design and encourage mode shift. 

36 If undertaken before the survey is run, findings from qualitative research can be used 
to inform development of the survey questions. This will help ensure the questions 
and the answer categories provided resonate with respondents.  

37 If conducted afterwards, qualitative research could be used to better understand 
survey results and how barriers to acceptance could be overcome. An efficient way 
to do qualitative research after the survey is to re-contact a selection of survey 
participants and invite them to attend an interview, focus group or workshop. 
However, in order to do so, respondents will need to consent to being re-contacted 
when taking part in the survey and this will need to be built into its design.  

38 Technical experts can advise Local Authorities on whether it will be beneficial to 
undertake qualitative research in addition to the survey, when the optimal time to do 
this is, and how to design the study.  

39 The sample for qualitative research will be much smaller than for the survey and 
does not need to be representative of the target population. The aim will be to get 
good coverage of key groups within the population across the research. 
 

  

Page 207

Agenda Item 12



 

11 

 Data Collection 

Data Collection Methods 

40 Survey data can be collected using a range of methods the most common being 
online, by post, face-to-face and by telephone. Each has benefits and drawbacks and 
may impact on who is able and willing to participate in the survey.  

41 It is also possible to use a combination of data collection methods. Whilst this may 
overcome some of the limitations of different methods, it brings its own challenges as 
the data collected may not be directly comparable due to the different methods 
employed.  

42 The choice of method will depend on a number of factors including the time and 
budget available for the research, the characteristics of the target population, and 
availability of contact information that can be used to recruit respondents.  

43 For example, Local Authorities may have email addresses for subscribers to its 
online newsletter. This could be a quick and efficient way to engage local residents in 
the survey. However, newsletter subscribers may not be representative of the 
population of interest so it may be necessary to find other ways to publicise the 
survey to gain better coverage, for example by asking other local groups to send out 
a survey link to their members. It will also be necessary to consider which groups in 
society may be excluded by an online approach to data collection and how you could 
potentially capture their opinions.  

44 When thinking this through it is likely that trade-offs will need to be made between 
time, cost, quality and coverage. The risks and implications of this should be 
captured and considered when analysing survey results. 

45 Technical experts will be able to advise Local Authorities on the most appropriate 
approach to meet their needs; its strengths and limitations; and the effect this will 
have on the findings and how they should be used. They should also discuss with 
Local Authorities how any weaknesses in the approach can be overcome.  

Conducting Research during Covid-19 

46 When designing and commissioning research, Local Authorities must be mindful of 
current restrictions in place to manage the Covid-19 pandemic. This may limit the 
choice of data collection methods available and/or influence the way in which 
research can be carried out.  

47 Whilst social distancing restrictions are still in place it is advised that no face-to-face 
survey and research activity should take place inside participants’ properties, and 
doorstep recruitment should be avoided. Instead, online, telephone and postal 
methods should be employed where possible.  

48 If face-to-face methods are considered optimal and/or necessary to reach certain 
Page 208

Agenda Item 12



 

12 

groups of the population Local Authorities and their research partners should abide 
by the recent guidance produced by the Market Research Society (MRS)5. This sets 
out guidelines for safe conduct of face-to-face research. The MRS guidance was 
produced in July 2020 and therefore does not account for recent changes in social 
distancing policy which should be consulted. Consideration must be given to whether 
it is appropriate, feasible, ethically and legally sound to conduct research in this way 
when scoping the research design.  

49 Ultimately those conducting or commissioning research should minimise – and avoid 
where possible – any likely annoyance or distress resulting from the research 
process.  

50 Regardless of the chosen data collection method, when planning research, Local 
Authorities should consider the following questions: 

• Is it appropriate and proportionate to engage respondents in research at this 
time? Is it possible to reach a sufficient and/or representative sample? 

• What is the potential impact of the current situation on the target population? 
Some individuals may currently be experiencing very difficult circumstances so it 
may not be appropriate to impose additional burdens on them.  

• Is there a reputational risk to continuing in these circumstances? 

• Are there any risks to the health and well-being of data providers or data 
collectors?  

• Will interviewers require additional training, e.g. if working with individuals in 
distress? 

• What would the impact of stopping data collection part way through (e.g. as a 
result of new restrictions) have on the quality of the research and the decisions it 
is being used to inform? 

Timings 

51 Local Authorities are required to consult local stakeholders and act on their feedback 
prior to commencing construction. The department recognises the challenge that this 
presents to project delivery timings. However, it is important that Local Authorities 
provide stakeholders with sufficient time to respond to any consultation activities 
including public opinion surveys. 

52 The optimal time period to elicit responses will vary by data collection method and 
the required sample size. A minimum of two weeks is recommended for online 
surveys. The timeframe will likely be longer if respondent recruitment and/or research 
takes place face-to-face, by telephone or by post. Technical experts should be able 
to advise on recommended timings depending on the method chosen. 

53 Local Authorities should also build in sufficient time to design and test the survey to 
ensure questions are comprehensible, and to clean and process the data collected 
before commencing analysis and reporting.  

54 It is expected that the entire process – from survey design through to data collection 
and data processing - will take a minimum of four weeks to complete. These timings 
are ambitious and reflect the pace at which consultation needs to take place for the 
ATF rather than standard good practice under usual circumstances where there 

 
5 https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/Viewing-facilities-guidance.pdf Page 209

Agenda Item 12

https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/Viewing-facilities-guidance.pdf


 

13 

would likely be a longer lead time to design and conduct surveys to inform policy 
development and operational delivery.  

55 Local Authorities should also be mindful of the impact of the holiday period and other 
contextual factors which could impact on the level of survey responses that can be 
achieved when planning the research. 

Research Ethics 

56 Those conducting, commissioning or managing social or market research, including 
public opinion surveys, have a responsibility to ensure that research is conducted 
using appropriate methods and that the rights and interests of all those involved in 
the research process are protected.  

57 Local Authorities should ensure that research is conducted in a manner that: 

• ensures valid, informed consent is obtained before individuals participate in 
research; 

• takes reasonable steps to identify and remove barriers to participation; 

• avoids personal and social harm;  

• protects the confidentiality of information about research participants and their 
identities; and 

• protects against distortion and bias in the interpretation of findings. 
58 Further detail on each of the above principles can be found in the Government Social 

Research Ethical Assurance Guidance6. 
59 In the current climate it is even more important that to avoid personal and social 

harm, and to protect the physical, social and psychological wellbeing of research 
subjects at all stages of the research process. Local Authorities and anyone 
conducting surveys on their behalf should endeavour to anticipate and guard against 
any possible harmful consequences of participation in research.  

Data Protection 

60 Conducting public opinion surveys will require the collection and processing of 
personal data. Local Authorities should ensure that the principles, practices and 
processes set out in the General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR) are adhered to. 

61 The GDPR aims to ensure that data about individuals is collected and used fairly and 
responsibly. It sets out 7 key principles for that lie at the heart of data protection7, and 
details of roles and responsibilities of different actors in the process8.  

62 All organisations must specify a lawful basis for processing personal data and be 
upfront about how data will be used. The most likely lawful basis for public opinion 
surveys to support the design and delivery of ATF schemes and programmes will be 
‘public task’. However, Local Authorities are encouraged to undertake an assessment 
to determine the most appropriate basis9. 

 
6 https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/515296/ethics_guidance_tcm6-
5782.pdf 
7 https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/principles/ 
8 https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/ 
9 https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/gdpr-resources/lawful-basis-interactive-guidance-tool/ Page 210

Agenda Item 12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/515296/ethics_guidance_tcm6-5782.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/515296/ethics_guidance_tcm6-5782.pdf
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/principles/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/gdpr-resources/lawful-basis-interactive-guidance-tool/


 

14 

63 Whilst the GDPR is similar in many ways to its predecessor, the Data Protection Act 
(1998) there are some key differences. Local Authorities should be mindful of this 
when consulting resources and guidance on survey design and research produced 
before 2018 that refer to data protection requirements.  

64 Further information about GDPR and the implications for research can be found on 
the Information Commissioner’s Office website10. The UK government has also 
produced a guide to GDPR which may be helpful11. Your organisation’s Data 
Protection Officer should also be able to provide support. 
 

 
10 https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/ 
11https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/711097/guide-to-the-general-data-
protection-regulation-gdpr-1-0.pdf  Page 211

Agenda Item 12

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/711097/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr-1-0.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/711097/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr-1-0.pdf


 

15 

 Questionnaire Design 

Introduction 

65 Given the range of projects and programmes funded by the ATF it is not appropriate 
to apply a uniform approach to questionnaire design. The guidance that follows sets 
out key considerations and principles to aid the process.  

66 A selection of sample questions that Local Authorities can draw on when constructing 
a questionnaire are included in Annex C. These questions have been used in other 
surveys including the department’s National Travel Survey and surveys conducted by 
the Office of National Statistics. These questions are tried and tested thereby 
providing Local Authorities with some confidence that they will be understood by 
respondents and elicit meaningful data. Their use can also enable Local Authorities 
to compare their survey results with data collected via other public surveys. 

67 There are a number of freely available online resources that provide guidance about 
how to design a good survey and develop appropriate survey questions. The MRS 
has produced two guides, one in conjunction with the Local Authorities Research and 
Intelligence Association12. Whilst both are quite old, they still contain relevant advice 
about questionnaire design and how to write good questions. Herefordshire Council 
have also produced detailed guidance on creating a survey13 which may be of use. 

Key principles of survey design 

68 Surveys should be: 

• Engaging and relevant to the respondent. 

• Neutral and independent in tone. Questions should be phrased in a neutral way 
and avoid leading respondents towards a particular response. 

• Well-structured with a logical flow. 

• Easy to answer. Questions should be clear, comprehensible and unambiguous. 
They should deal with a single issue or topic. Respondents should be able to 
select a response that expresses their perspective including ‘don’t know’, ‘prefer 
not to say’ or ‘other’ where appropriate. 

Survey length 

69 To maximise the rate of response to the survey and minimise the burden on 
respondents Local Authorities should aim to keep public opinion surveys as short as 
possible. This will also ensure that only the minimum data required is collected and 

 
12 https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2014-09-01%20Questionnaire%20Design%20Guidelines.pdf; 
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2005%20Surveys%20for%20Consultation.pdf 
13 https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/3720/guidance_note_29_creating_a_questionnaire.pdf Page 212

Agenda Item 12

https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2014-09-01%20Questionnaire%20Design%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2005%20Surveys%20for%20Consultation.pdf
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/3720/guidance_note_29_creating_a_questionnaire.pdf


 

16 

processed as part of this exercise. 
70 Questionnaire length will vary depending on the number and type of schemes being 

assessed and the data collection methods used. However, it is advisable to aim for a 
questionnaire that takes no more than 10-15 minutes to complete, and ideally less. 
 

Survey content and structure 

71 The content and structure of the questionnaire will be dictated by the aims and 
objectives of the research, and the data collection methods employed. The guidance 
provides advice on general good practice for structuring public opinion surveys and 
suggestions for what blocks of questions could be included in a survey exploring 
attitudes towards ATF schemes and programmes. 
Structure 

72 It is generally good practice to structure questionnaires as follows: 

• Start with a brief description detailing the purpose of the survey and how data will 
be used – this will provide useful context for respondents and help to engage 
them in the process, especially if they can see how their participation in the 
survey could make a difference to decision-making. 

• Move from general to more specific lines of questioning – this is particularly 
helpful when introducing new concepts or ideas as it can warm up respondents 
and get them thinking about the broad topic area so they are better placed to 
provide a considered response to new proposals. 

• Group questions on similar topics or themes together – this will help respondents 
to navigate through the survey with ease. It can also prevent duplication by 
helping to identify if the same thing is being asked in different ways, and aid 
prioritisation of topics and questions. 

• Think carefully about the order in which questions are presented – which 
questions may influence responses to other questions – is this something to 
leverage or avoid? Which questions are a priority?  

• Ask about personal information at the end of the survey – doing this too early can 
be off-putting and cause respondents to drop out. The risk here is that 
respondents won’t complete the survey and this data not provided for the full 
sample. 

Question development 
73 When developing survey questions, consider carefully:  

• How many questions can realistically be included in the survey – this will be 
determined by both the desired survey length and resource available. The more 
questions included in the survey, the more burden there will be on respondents 
and the greater chance of drop out. The more data collected, the longer it will take 
to write they survey and analyse the data which could also have cost implications. 
When selecting which questions to include it is helpful to ask, ‘what will I do when 
I have the answer’ and ‘how will it add understanding or aid decision-making’?  

• How many people ideally need to answer a question to obtain meaningful results 
– if there is lots to cover in the survey it may be that some questions can feasibly 

Page 213

Agenda Item 12



 

17 

be shared with certain groups of respondents rather than the whole sample (e.g. 
people who regularly use a particular route) to minimise burden. 

• How many open-ended or free-text questions to include – the analysis of these 
types of questions can be quite time-consuming and burdensome. Where 
possible, create a list of answers respondents can choose from and include an 
‘other, please specify’ category to capture views not reflected in the list. It is 
helpful to draw on existing data and evidence to create the answer categories. 

• How questions that enable respondents to select more than one answer will be 
used and analysed – thinking about this when designing the questionnaire will aid 
with analysis and interpretation later, and help determine the most appropriate 
way to capture multiple choices (e.g. general selection vs. ranking).  

• Which, if any, questions to make mandatory. If this function is used, always 
ensure there is an option that enables respondents to withhold information (e.g. 
‘prefer not to say’) or to express where they don’t have an opinion (e.g. ‘don’t 
know’, ‘not applicable’). 

• How to introduce new concepts, ideas and investment proposals – be sure to do 
this in a neutral way and set out the expected impact of both the final scheme and 
the construction process, both positive and negative. 

Content 
74 Below is a list of topic areas that it may be helpful to include in a survey about ATF 

schemes and programmes. This is not exhaustive and questionnaire design should 
be driven by the aims of the research and how results will be used. It is also worth 
considering whether any of the data being collected can be used to produce a 
baseline for evaluation work. 

75 Where the Active Travel Fund is being used to fund and deliver more than one 
scheme it is recommended that respondents are only asked about schemes that will 
affect routes that they regularly use or which are in close proximity to where they are 
located. As well as ensuring that questionnaire content is relevant to respondents, it 
also enables Local Authorities to collect views on a range of proposed interventions 
within one survey.    

76 Possible topic areas: 

• Relationship to the local area (e.g. resident, business owner, place of work) 

• Current access to a car / van / cycle 

• Current walking and cycling activity (frequency and length of trips) 

• Reasons for cycling and walking when travelling 

• Barriers to greater walking and cycling in general 

• Perceptions of the local area, including: 
─ Access to local amenities 
─ Congestion 
─ Air pollution 
─ Public transport provision 
─ Cycling and walking infrastructure 
─ Journey times to key locations 

Page 214

Agenda Item 12



 

18 

• Current use of routes impacted by ATF schemes / programmes – this can be 
used to determine what follow up questions individual respondents will be asked 

• Questions specific to the route on which the scheme / programme is located: 
─ Frequency of use 
─ Mode use 
─ Types of journeys undertaken (e.g. shopping, commuting, to/from education) 
─ Satisfaction with mode choice available 
─ Perceptions of travelling along the route (e.g. safety, convenience, comfort, 

journey times, reliability) 
─ Current barriers to walking and/or cycling (for those not travelling in this way) 

• Perceptions of the proposed intervention(s) 
─ Overall support for the proposal 
─ Expected future travel behaviour on the route – likelihood of use, mode use 
─ Propensity to walk and/or cycle on the route(s) 
─ Perceptions of travelling along the route as a cyclist and/or pedestrian 
─ General comments about the proposal 
─ Opportunities for improvement 
─ Perceived impact on local businesses 

• Level of support for initiatives to reduce congestion and air pollution in general 

• Demographics / personal information – this should be limited to what is required 
for the purpose of the survey and to answer the key research questions. 
Characteristics that could be included are: 
─ Age 
─ Gender 
─ Household composition 
─ Employment status 
─ Household income 
─ Disability status 

77 Careful consideration should be given as to whether it is necessary to collect data on 
protected characteristics such as race, ethnicity and religion as data protection 
requirements are more stringent. This also applies to details about an individual’s 
health. Further information about which characteristics are considered to be a special 
category under GDPR and the associated data protection requirements can be found 
on the ICO website14. 

78 Annex C contains a selection of sample questions that could be used as part of the 
questionnaire. 

 
14 https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-
processing/special-category-data/ Page 215

Agenda Item 12

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/


 

19 

 Reporting and Communicating Findings 

Data Analysis 

79 Once data collection is complete it is important that data is cleaned and processed 
before it is analysed. This will help to pick up errors in the data, identify where data is 
missing or duplicated, and ensure responses are recorded in a consistent format. 

80 Responses to open-ended questions will need to be reviewed and assigned codes in 
order to understand the prevalence of views amongst the sample. The same will be 
required for answer categories which allowed respondents to write in their own 
answer (e.g. ‘other, please specify’). 

81 The next step is to understand who has responded to the survey. This includes the 
total number of respondents, how this breaks down by sub-group of interest (e.g. 
age, mode use, route use etc.), and how representative the sample is of the wider 
population of interest. This will determine both what analysis can be undertaken and 
how findings should be reported.  

82 It is recommended that data analysis is undertaken by specialists with expertise in 
processing and managing data and a good understanding of statistical principles. 
This will help to ensure that good practice is followed, analysis is appropriate, and 
results are not misleading. 

 

Reporting and Communicating Findings 

83 This section sets out good practice for communicating results from research projects, 
including public opinion surveys. It includes advice about what technical information 
about the study should be shared, and principles of good practice when presenting 
data and reporting findings.  
 
Research design and methods 

84 Good research reports should be transparent and open to scrutiny. This means being 
upfront about how the research and analysis was conducted, and the strengths and 
limitations of the approach used. This enables readers to come to their own 
judgement about the quality and robustness of the research and reliability of the 
findings.  

85 Information that should be provided as standard includes details about:  

• The sample structure – how it was defined, which groups were included, 
representativeness of the population 

• Data collection method(s) used 

Page 216

Agenda Item 12



 

20 

• Timeframe during which data was collected (i.e. fieldwork dates) 

• Number of people invited to participate in the survey 

• Number of people that completed the survey 

• Whether any weights were applied to the data during analysis to make it 
representative of the population 

• Statistical confidence in the results (i.e. confidence intervals, margin of error, 
standard deviation) 

86 Brief details about the sample and methodology should be included in the main body 
of the report. A fuller description can be included as a technical annex. 

87 Judgement should be used when producing summary reports or communicating 
high-level findings publicly to ensure that suitable and sufficient context is provided to 
ensure that results are not misinterpreted.  
 
Report structure 

88 Including an Executive Summary up front with key findings is a helpful way to 
introduce readers to the data and ensure that the most important messages are 
clearly articulated.  

89 Further detailed analysis of particular subject areas should be included in the main 
body of the report. 

90 Technical or supporting information such as detailed description of the methodology, 
copy of the questionnaire and tables can be included in an annex. 
 
Presenting data 

91 Take a consistent approach to presenting data where possible, especially when 
referring to responses to the same question. For example, try to avoid using a 
different denominator to describe the proportion of people agreeing or disagreeing 
with a statement: 

 1 in 2 people agreed, 2 in 5 disagreed and 1 in 10 didn’t know; 
✓ 5 in 10 people agreed, 4 in 10 disagreed and 1 in 10 didn’t know; or 
✓ 50% agreed, 40% disagreed and 10% didn’t know. 

92 Presenting data in a visual way can an aid understanding and increase engagement. 
It can also be an efficient way to communicate differences in opinion about different 
ideas or between different groups.  

93 Visuals should be simple, clear and be easy to understand without additional 
explanation or the need for translation. Titles and labels should be used to explain 
what the visual is depicting, and legends included to denote what different colours or 
icons are being used to represent.  

94 Be discerning about how many visuals are used – not every result needs to be 
supported by a visual. They are best used to present complex information which may 
be difficult to explain via narrative alone, or to highlight key findings.     

95 Where tables, graphs, charts and other aids are used to present or visualise the data 
they should be labelled correctly and include details of how many people responded 
to a given question.  Page 217

Agenda Item 12



 

21 

96 Where analysis of results is broken down by sub-group, details of how many people 
within that sub-group responded to a given question should be included. Footnotes 
can be used to avoid detracting from the findings or disrupting the narrative flow of 
the report. 
 
Interpretation of findings 

97 Research practitioners and commissioners have an ethical responsibility to report 
research findings fairly and honestly.  

98 It is not necessary to present all the analysis undertaken within a narrative report. 
Full data tables can be provided as annex for this purpose or made available on 
request. Not only does this facilitate transparency, it enables the analysis to be 
replicated by someone else, thereby engendering trust in the outputs.  

99 When selecting what data to include in analysis and which findings to highlight in 
reports it is important not to distort the results, for example by only including positive 
responses, using the data to tell a particular story or reporting findings out of context. 

100 For example, if survey respondents were asked a series of questions about 
transport-related issues they face in their area and then presented with an idea for a 
new scheme that will attempt to solve them it is important to reference the way in 
which the idea was put to respondents when presenting the results. This could be 
done explicitly by describing the order of questioning or by presenting the results for 
different questions in the order in which they were presented.  

101 Other common mistakes to avoid include misattributing and exaggerating findings. 
For example, if the sample of respondents who completed the survey was not 
representative of the wider population or recruited in a way that allows survey results 
to be generalised to the wider population, it would be misleading to attribute those 
findings to the population as a whole. In such circumstances, it is appropriate to state 
that ‘90% of people surveyed supported the idea’. It is not appropriate to state that 
‘90% of residents in the local area supported the idea’. 

102 Similarly, if the question asked about the extent to which respondents supported the 
new idea, it would be inappropriate to state that ‘the overwhelming majority 
enthusiastically advocated for the new idea to be taken forward’. 

103 It is generally good practice to utilise the question wording when reporting the results 
to avoid misrepresenting the data and also to ensure that the tone and language 
used remains neutral and unambiguous.  
 

Page 218

Agenda Item 12



 

22 

 Annex A: Key Considerations Checklist 

Scoping the design: 

• What are the aims and objectives of the proposed schemes/programmes being 
funded by the ATF? 

• What is the available budget for this work? 

• When are results required? 

• What evaluation activities are being planned? 

• What role can public opinion surveys play in consultation and evaluation of 
proposed interventions? 

Defining the population 

• Who could be positively or negatively affected by proposed 
schemes/programmes? 

• How many people make up the total population? 

• What are the characteristics of the population?  

• What criteria should be used to classify different sub-groups within the population 
(e.g. gender, age, location etc.)?  

• What, if any, role is there for qualitative research in this project? How and when 
should it be included in the research design? 

Sampling and representativeness 

• How feasible is it to recruit a sample of respondents that are representative of the 
wider population given the time and budget available for this project? 

• How many people overall would need to complete the survey to have a 
representative sample? 

• How many people need to be targeted in each sub-group to be able to report 
findings by that group? What implications does this have on overall sample size? 

• Which sub-groups are likely to be over or under-represented? How can this be 
accounted for in the research design? 

• What different approaches to sampling can be taken? What are the strengths and 
limitations of each? How will this impact the final results and how data can be 
used? 

Page 219

Agenda Item 12



 

23 

Data collection  

• How can the target sample best be engaged in the research? 

• What contact details do we hold about the population / potential respondents?  

• How complete is this information?  

• Which, if any, sub-groups are missing or under-represented in this information? 
How else could they be reached? 

• What implications do current Covid-19 restrictions in place have on choice of data 
collection method(s)? 

• Which data collection method(s) is / are viable given the time, budget and existing 
contact information available for this project? 

• What are the strengths and limitations of the different possible methods or 
approaches to data collection? What are the implications of this on the results and 
how they can be used? 

• Is it necessary to include provision to re-contact survey respondents in the 
survey? For what purpose? What is an appropriate time period for survey 
respondents to be re-contacted? 

• Have all ethical considerations and requirements been considered? Has this been 
recorded? 

• Have all data protection / GDPR requirements been considered and addressed? 
Has this been recorded? 

Questionnaire design 

• What is the optimal length of the questionnaire? 

• What are the maximum number of questions that can be included?    

• What are the key research questions that must be answered through the 
questionnaire? What are the nice-to-haves? 

• How will the answers to the questions be used? How will they add understanding 
and help inform decisions about scheme design and delivery, communications 
and/or future policy development?  

• Have brief details of the aims and purpose of the research been included up front 
to introduce and contextualise the survey? 

• Does the questionnaire have a logical flow that enables respondents to navigate 
through it with ease? 

• Is the tone and content of the questionnaire presented in a neutral way? 

• Are the questions single-minded, comprehensible and easy to answer? 

• Is the inclusion of questions about personal characteristics limited to what is 
required for the purpose of the survey? 

 
Page 220

Agenda Item 12



 

24 

 Annex B: Useful Resources 

Consultation principles 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/691383/Consultation_Principles__1_.pdf  
https://www.local.gov.uk/code-conduct-consultation-2020;  
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-
communications-support/resident-communications-4;  
https://www.local.gov.uk/consultation-check-list 
https://www.ciht.org.uk/media/4464/involving_the_public_and_othe_stakeholders_-
_june_2015_11049.pdf  
 
Data collection methods and questionnaire design 
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2014-09-
01%20Questionnaire%20Design%20Guidelines.pdf;  
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2005%20Surveys%20for%20Consultation.pdf 
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/3720/guidance_note_29_creating_a
_questionnaire.pdf 
http://www.alliance4usefulevidence.org/assets/Using-Research-Evidence-for-
Success-A-Practice-Guide-v6-web.pdf 
https://www.the-sra.org.uk/common/Uploaded%20files/What%20is%20high-
quality%20social%20research.pdf 
https://gss.civilservice.gov.uk/guidances/0-harmonised-principles/#quality-of-life 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/classificationsandstandards 
 
Data sources 
https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata 
https://ukdataservice.ac.uk/ 
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/walking-and-cycling-statistics-england-2019 
[CW0302,CW0303] 
 
Research during Covid-19  
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/Viewing-facilities-guidance.pdf 
https://www.the-
sra.org.uk/common/Uploaded%20files/ethical%20guidelines%202003.pdf Page 221

Agenda Item 12

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/691383/Consultation_Principles__1_.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/691383/Consultation_Principles__1_.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/code-conduct-consultation-2020
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-communications-support/resident-communications-4
https://www.local.gov.uk/our-support/guidance-and-resources/comms-hub-communications-support/resident-communications-4
https://www.local.gov.uk/consultation-check-list
https://www.ciht.org.uk/media/4464/involving_the_public_and_othe_stakeholders_-_june_2015_11049.pdf
https://www.ciht.org.uk/media/4464/involving_the_public_and_othe_stakeholders_-_june_2015_11049.pdf
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2014-09-01%20Questionnaire%20Design%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2014-09-01%20Questionnaire%20Design%20Guidelines.pdf
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/2005%20Surveys%20for%20Consultation.pdf
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/3720/guidance_note_29_creating_a_questionnaire.pdf
https://www.herefordshire.gov.uk/downloads/file/3720/guidance_note_29_creating_a_questionnaire.pdf
http://www.alliance4usefulevidence.org/assets/Using-Research-Evidence-for-Success-A-Practice-Guide-v6-web.pdf
http://www.alliance4usefulevidence.org/assets/Using-Research-Evidence-for-Success-A-Practice-Guide-v6-web.pdf
https://www.the-sra.org.uk/common/Uploaded%20files/What%20is%20high-quality%20social%20research.pdf
https://www.the-sra.org.uk/common/Uploaded%20files/What%20is%20high-quality%20social%20research.pdf
https://gss.civilservice.gov.uk/guidances/0-harmonised-principles/#quality-of-life
https://www.ons.gov.uk/methodology/classificationsandstandards
https://www.ons.gov.uk/census/2011census/2011censusdata
https://ukdataservice.ac.uk/
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/walking-and-cycling-statistics-england-2019
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/Viewing-facilities-guidance.pdf
https://www.the-sra.org.uk/common/Uploaded%20files/ethical%20guidelines%202003.pdf
https://www.the-sra.org.uk/common/Uploaded%20files/ethical%20guidelines%202003.pdf


 

25 

 
Data protection 
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-
data-protection-regulation-gdpr/ 
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-
data-protection-regulation-gdpr/principles/ 
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-
data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/ 
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/gdpr-resources/lawful-basis-interactive-guidance-
tool/ 
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-
data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/ 
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/The%2BGeneral%2BProtectio
n%2BData%2BRegulation%2B%28GDPR%29%2B-
%2BGuidance%2Bfor%2BMembers.pdf 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/711097/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr-1-0.pdf 
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/MRS%20Data%20Protection%20and%20Research%20G
uidance%20(May%202019)%20.pdf 
Research ethics 
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachm
ent_data/file/515296/ethics_guidance_tcm6-5782.pdf 
 

Page 222

Agenda Item 12

https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/principles/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/principles/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/key-definitions/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/gdpr-resources/lawful-basis-interactive-guidance-tool/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/gdpr-resources/lawful-basis-interactive-guidance-tool/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://ico.org.uk/for-organisations/guide-to-data-protection/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr/lawful-basis-for-processing/special-category-data/
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/The%2BGeneral%2BProtection%2BData%2BRegulation%2B%28GDPR%29%2B-%2BGuidance%2Bfor%2BMembers.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/The%2BGeneral%2BProtection%2BData%2BRegulation%2B%28GDPR%29%2B-%2BGuidance%2Bfor%2BMembers.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/The%2BGeneral%2BProtection%2BData%2BRegulation%2B%28GDPR%29%2B-%2BGuidance%2Bfor%2BMembers.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/711097/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr-1-0.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/711097/guide-to-the-general-data-protection-regulation-gdpr-1-0.pdf
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/MRS%20Data%20Protection%20and%20Research%20Guidance%20(May%202019)%20.pdf
https://www.mrs.org.uk/pdf/MRS%20Data%20Protection%20and%20Research%20Guidance%20(May%202019)%20.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/515296/ethics_guidance_tcm6-5782.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/515296/ethics_guidance_tcm6-5782.pdf


 

26 

 Annex C: Example Questions 

Introduction 

A.1 This section contains a sample of questions that have been asked on previous public 
opinion surveys exploring attitudes and behaviour towards active travel and issues 
related to the objectives of the Active Travel Fund.  

A.2 They have been provided as a prompt, to help Local Authorities think about the 
topics and types of questions they may wish to include in their public opinion surveys. 
Should they wish to, Local Authorities can also use some of these questions in their 
own questionnaires. 

A.3 These questions can also be used in public opinion surveys conducted after 
schemes and programmes have been implemented as part of evaluation activities. 
Asking the same questions before and after scheme implementation can help identify 
change over time, and potentially determine the extent to which any change 
observed can be attributed to the intervention.  

A.4 Local Authorities should develop additional, scheme-specific questions for evaluation 
purposes to enable them to understand attitudes and behaviours towards the new 
intervention and to determine the extent to which it has met its objectives. 

A.5 Questions are ordered by theme. Where respondents were presented with a pre-
defined list of categories from which to choose an answer, the answer categories are 
presented below the questions and are individually numbered.  

A.6 Where both alphabetical and numerical lists are presented, the question would have 
either have been presented to respondents as a grid or they would have been asked 
to provide an answer for each option listed under the question.  

A.7 An example question is presented below: 
How safe do you feel walking alone in this area…? 
a. During daytime 
b. After dark 
 
1 Very safe 
2 Fairly safe  
3 A bit unsafe 
4 Very unsafe 
5 Never go out alone during this time 

 
A.8 This would have been presented as: 

Page 223

Agenda Item 12



 

27 

How safe do you feel walking alone in this area… (please select one answer per row) 

 1 Very 
safe 

2 Fairly 
safe 

3 A bit 
unsafe 

4 Very 
unsafe 

5 Never go out 
alone at this time 

During daytime      

After Dark      

Vehicle and Bicycle Access 

Vehicle access (i) 
Do you, or any members of your household, at present own or have continuous use 
of any of the following motor vehicles? (tick all that apply) 
6 Car 
7 Van 
8 Motor bike, scooter or moped 
9 None of the above 
 
Vehicle access (ii) 
How many vehicles does your household own or have continuous use of at present?  
a. Car/van 
b. Motorcycle/moped 
 
1 None 
2 One  
3 Two  
4 Three or more 
 
Bicycle access (i) 
Do you personally own, or have access to a bicycle or electric powered bicycle? 
Please don’t count fixed exercise bikes – we are interested in bicycles or e-bikes that 
you can use outdoors. 
1 Own a bicycle/e-bike 
2 Have access to a bicycle/e-bike owned by someone else 
3 None of these 
 
Bicycle access (ii) 
Do you own, or have access to, a bicycle that is in good enough condition for riding? 
1 Yes 
2 No 

Page 224

Agenda Item 12



 

28 

3 Don’t know 
 
Bicycle access (iii) 
Do you own, or have access to, a bicycle that is in good enough condition for riding? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
3 Don’t know 
 
Bicycle access (iv) 
(Excluding exercise bikes) Do you own or have the use of a bicycle? 
1 Own a bicycle 
2 Have use of a bicycle belonging to someone else in the household 
3 Have use of a bicycle belonging to someone outside the household 
4 Do not have use of a bicycle 
 

Mode Use 

Mode use – frequency key modes (i) 
a. How often nowadays do you usually… 
b. Travel by car or van as a driver 
c. Travel by car or van as a passenger  
d. Travel by local bus 
e. Travel by train 
f. Travel by underground, metro, light rail, tram 
g. Travel by motorcycle, scooter, or moped  
h. Travel by bicycle 
i. Go somewhere on foot at least 15 minutes' walk away 

 
1 Every day or nearly every day 
2 2-5 days a week 
3 Once a week 
4 Less often but at least once a month 
5 Less often than that 
6 Never nowadays 
 
OR 

Page 225

Agenda Item 12



 

29 

1 Every day 
2 More than twice a week, but not every day 
3 Once or twice a week 
4 Once or twice a month 
5 Once or twice a year 
6 Less than once a year 
7 Never 
 
OR 
1 6-7 days a week 
2 3-5 days a week 
3 1-2 days a week 
4 Once a fortnight 
5 Once a month 
6 Several times a year 
7 Once a year 
8 Less often 
9 Never 
10 Don’t know 
 
Mode use – frequency key modes (ii) 
Approximately, how often, if at all, do you use each of the following to get about…? 
a. Walking 
b. Cycle (commuting to from work/school) 
c. Cycle (recreationally on or off-road) 
d. Bus 
e. Car or van 
f. Motorcycle or moped 
g. Taxi or mini-cab 
h. Train (excluding underground or metro services)  
i. Community Transport, e.g. Dial-a-Ride, volunteer car scheme  
j. ‘Demand Responsive Transport’ i.e. flexible bus services  
k. Park & Ride (IN ADDITION TO ANY TICKED ABOVE)  
 
1 Daily 
2 2–3 times a week 

Page 226

Agenda Item 12



 

30 

3 Weekly 
4 Monthly 
5 Less frequent / never 
 
Car use – general 
May I just check, do you yourself drive a car at all these days?  
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
Motor vehicle use 
Have you driven a motor vehicle in the last 12 months? (Motor vehicles include cars, 
vans, motorcycles and all other powered vehicles) 
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
Bicycle – ability to ride (i) 
Can you ride a bicycle? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
3 No - because of a disability or long-standing health problem 
 
Bicycle – ability to ride (ii) 
Do you have any disability or other long-standing health problem that makes it or 
would make it difficult or impossible for you to ride a bicycle? This includes problems 
due to old age. 
1 Yes - impossible 
2 Yes - difficult 
3 No 
4 Don't know 
 
Bicycle use – frequency (i) 
Have you ridden a bicycle during the last 12 months?  
1 Yes 
2 No 
3 Don't know / Can't remember 
 

Page 227

Agenda Item 12



 

31 

Bicycle use – frequency (ii) 
How frequently do you use a bicycle? Please count each single trip as one journey 
and each return trip as two. Only include travel within Great Britain over the last 12 
months 
1 At least once a day 
2 Less than once a day but at least 3 times a week 
3 Once or twice a week 
4 Less than that but more than twice a month 
5 Once or twice a month 
6 Less than that but more than twice a year 
7 Once or twice a year 
8 Less than that or never 
 
Bicycle use – frequency (iv) 
How often do you cycle nowadays?  
Every day 
More than twice a week but not every day 
Once or twice a week 
Once or twice a month 
Once or twice a year 
Less than once a year 
Never 
 
Bicycle use – travel behaviour (i) 
When you cycled in the last 12 months, where did you usually cycle?  
1 Mainly on the road 
2 Mainly on pavements, cycle paths or cycle lanes that were not part of a road 
3 Mainly off the road in parks, open country, or private land 
4 On a variety of different surfaces 
 
Bicycle use – travel behaviour (ii) 
Which one of these best describes the type of route you mainly use when you cycle? 
1 Mainly on roads without cycle lanes 
2 Mainly on cycle lanes on roads 
3 Mainly on cycle tracks away from the road 
4 Mainly on the pavement 
5 Mainly in parks, [Open] country or private land 

Page 228

Agenda Item 12



 

32 

6 An equal mix of two or more of these 
 
Bicycle use – journey purpose 
For what purpose are the journeys you mostly make by bicycle? 
1 To or from work 
2 To or from school, college or adult education 
3 To or from the shops 
4 To accompany children or other people 
5 To or from a leisure/sports activity 
6 Simply for pleasure 
7 As exercise for health reasons, not to anywhere in particular 
8 Other - please specify 
 
Bicycle use – change in frequency 
Thinking back a couple of years, did you make more journeys by bicycle then? Yes 
1 No 
2 Not sure/Can't remember/Don't know 
 
What was the main reason you stopped making some of those journeys by bicycle? 
1 Got a car/learnt to drive 
2 Easier/quicker to go by car 
3 Lack of time/too busy 
4 Too lazy/could not be bothered 
5 Too much traffic 
6 Traffic is too fast 
7 Road safety concerns 
8 Personal security concerns 
9 Poorly maintained road surfaces 
10 Drivers attitudes towards cyclists 
11 Lack of cycle routes 
12 Nowhere safe to store the bicycle at home 
13 Nowhere safe to leave the bicycle at the destination 
14 Bicycle was or could have been stolen 
15 Switched to public transport 
16 Ill-health reasons 
17 Changed jobs/stopped working 

Page 229

Agenda Item 12



 

33 

18 The weather 
19 Other - please specify 
 
Walking – frequency (i) 
How often nowadays do you usually go somewhere on foot at least 15 minutes' walk 
away? 
1 Every day or nearly every day 
2 2-5 days a week 
3 Once a week 
4 Less often but at least once a month 
5 Less often than that 
6 Never nowadays 
 
Walking – frequency (ii) 
How often, nowadays, do you walk to your destination, where the walk takes 15 
minutes or longer? 
1 Every day 
2 More than twice a week, but not every day 
3 Once or twice a week 
4 Once or twice a month 
5 Once or twice a year 
6 Less than once a year 
7 Never 
 
How often do you walk to your destination where the walk takes 15 minutes or 
longer? 
1 Every day 
2 2-5 days a week 
3 About once a week 
4 About once a month 
5 Less than once a month 
6 No longer use this means of travel 
 
Walking – frequency (iii) 
How frequently do you walk anywhere for 20 minutes or more without stopping? 
Please count each single trip as one journey and each return trip as two? (If round 
trip, count as one journey; only include travel within Great Britain, over the last year 
or so)  

Page 230

Agenda Item 12



 

34 

1 3 or more times a week 
2 Once or twice a week 
3 Less than that but more than twice a month 
4 Once or twice a month 
5 Less than that but more than twice a year 
6 Once or twice a year 
7 Less than that or never 
 
Walking – frequency (iv) 
How often, nowadays, do you walk for more than 10 minutes?  
1 Every day 
2 More than twice a week but not every day 
3 Once or twice a week 
4 Once or twice a month 
5 Once or twice a year 
6 Less than once a year 
7 Never 
 
Walking – purpose  
For what purpose are the journeys you mostly make when you walk for more than 10 
minutes? 
1 To or from work 
2 To or from school, college or adult education 
3 To or from the shops 
4 To accompany children or other people 
5 To or from a leisure/sports activity 
6 Simply for pleasure 
7 As exercise for health reasons, not to anywhere in particular 
8 Other - please specify 
 
Walking – travel behaviour 
Which one of these best describes the type of route you mainly use when you walk 
for more than 10 minutes? 
1 Mainly on road - no pavement available 
2 Mainly on the pavement alongside the road 
3 Mainly on footpaths away from the road 
4 Mainly in parks, [Open] country or private land 

Page 231

Agenda Item 12



 

35 

5 An equal mix of two or more of these 
 
Walking – pace 
Which of these describes your usual walking pace?  
1 A slow pace 
2 A steady average pace 
3 A fairly brisk pace 
4 A fast pace - at least 4 mph 
5 Other 
 
Walking – change in frequency 
Thinking back a couple of years, did you make more journeys on foot then? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
3 Not sure/Can't remember/Don't know 
 
What was the main reason you stopped making some of those journeys on foot? 
(free text – codes to assign below) 
1 Got a car/learnt to drive 
2 Easier/quicker to go by car 
3 Lack of time/too busy 
4 Too lazy/could not be bothered 
5 Too much traffic 
6 Traffic is too fast 
7 Road safety concerns 
8 Personal security concerns 
9 Poor condition of pavements 
10 Difficult to cross the roads 
11 Cycle instead 
12 Switched to public transport 
13 Go further afield now 
14 Ill-health reasons 
15 Changed jobs/stopped working 
16 The weather 
17 Other - please specify 
 
Active travel – short journeys 

Page 232

Agenda Item 12



 

36 

In the last 6 months, have you walked, cycled or used public transport for some short 
journeys (up to 5 miles) that you previously would have made by car or van?  
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
Why have you walked, cycled or used public transport for some short journeys that 
you previously would have made by car or van, in the last 6 months? (free text – 
codes to assign below) 
1 To save money 
2 To save petrol 
3 To get more exercise 
4 To help the environment 
5 To help reduce congestion 
6 Because I had increased access to a car or van 
7 Because my access to a car or van was reduced 
8 Because the roads are too congested 
9 Public transport has improved 
10 Public transport has got worse 
11 Other (specify) 
 
Active travel – longer journeys 
In the last 6 months, have you walked, cycled or used public transport for some 
longer journeys (5 miles or longer) that you previously would have made by car or 
van?  
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
Why have you walked, cycled or used public transport for some longer journeys that 
you previously would have made by car or van, in the last 6 months? (free text – 
codes to assign below) 
1 To save money 
2 To save petrol 
3 To get more exercise 
4 To help the environment 
5 To help reduce congestion 
6 Because I had increased access to a car or van 
7 Because my access to a car or van was reduced 
8 Because the roads are too congested 
9 Public transport has improved Page 233

Agenda Item 12



 

37 

10 Public transport has got worse 
11 Other (specify) 
 
Active travel – general 
How often do you personally walk or cycle for short journeys less than 2 or 3 miles? 
1 Always 
2 Very often 
3 Quite often 
4 Not very often 
5 Never 
6 Not applicable, cannot do this 

Perceptions of walking 

Walking safety 
How safe do you feel walking alone in this area…? 
a. During daytime 
b. After dark 
 
1 Very safe 
2 Fairly safe  
3 A bit unsafe 
4 Very unsafe 
5 Never go out alone during this time 
 
Perceptions of walking (i) 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with each of the following statements? 
a. Everyone should be encouraged to walk for more of their short journeys to help 

ease congestion 
b. Everyone should be encouraged to walk for more of their short journeys to help 

the environment 
c. Everyone should be encouraged to walk more to improve their health 
d. Walking is an important form of transport for me 
e. My friends would feel sorry for me if I walked more 
f. My friends would laugh at me if I walked more 
g. Pedestrians should be given more priority in towns and cities, even if this makes 

things more difficult for car users 

Page 234

Agenda Item 12



 

38 

h. More money should be spent on improving facilities for pedestrians in towns and 
cities, even if this means spending less on improvements for car users. 

i. Pedestrianised areas simply inconvenience car users and should be abolished 
 
1 Strongly agree 
2 Tend to agree 
3 Tend to disagree 
4 Strongly disagree 
5 Don't know  
 
Perceptions of walking (ii) 
And to what extent do you agree or disagree with each of the following statements? 
a. I would travel less by car if I had more time to walk instead 
b. I would travel less by car if there were safer walking routes 
c. I would travel less by car if pavements were better maintained 
d. I would walk (more) if it was difficult to find somewhere to park the car 
e. I would walk (more) if car parking was expensive 
f. I would walk (more) if congestion charging were introduced in towns I travel to by 

car 
 
1 Strongly agree 
2 Tend to agree 
3 Tend to disagree 
4 Strongly disagree 
5 Don't know  
 
Perceptions of walking (iii) 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with the following statement? 
a. I feel safe walking in my local streets 
b. I think walking is a good way to lose weight 
c. I think walking is a good way of staying healthy 
d. My local area is a pleasant place to walk 
 
1 Strongly agree 
2 Agree 
3 Neither agree nor disagree 
4 Disagree 

Page 235

Agenda Item 12



 

39 

5 Strongly disagree 
6 Don't know  
 

Perceptions of cycling 

Cycle confidence 
How confident would you say you feel about cycling on the roads?  
1 Very confident 
2 Fairly confident 
3 Not very confident 
4 Not at all confident 
5 Don’t know 
 
Cycle safety 
Please tell me how much you agree or disagree with the following statement… 
It is too dangerous for me to cycle on the roads 
1 Agree strongly 
2 Agree 
3 Neither agree nor disagree 
4 Disagree 
5 Disagree strongly 
6 Don't know 
7 Not applicable 
 
Perceptions of cycling (i) 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with each of the following statements? 
a. Everyone should be encouraged to cycle for more of their short journeys to help 

ease congestion 
b. Everyone should be encouraged to cycle for more of their short journeys to help 

the environment 
c. Everyone should be encouraged to cycle more to improve their health 
d. Cycling is an important form of transport to me 
e. My friends would feel sorry for me if I cycled (more) 
f. My friends would laugh at me if I cycled (more) 
g. The idea of cycling on busy roads frightens me 
h. Cyclists should be given more priority in towns and cities, even if this makes 

things more difficult for car users 
Page 236

Agenda Item 12



 

40 

i. More money should be spent on improving facilities for cyclists in towns and 
cities, even if this means spending less on improvements for car users 

j. Cycle lanes on roads simply reduce space for cars and should be abolished 
 

1 Strongly agree 
2 Tend to agree 
3 Tend to disagree 
4 Strongly disagree 
5 Don't know  
 
Perceptions of cycling (ii) 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with each of the following statements? 
a. I would travel less by car if I had more time to cycle instead 
b. I would travel less by car if there were more cycle lanes on roads 
c. I would travel less by car if there were more cycle tracks away from roads 
d. I would travel less by car if there were more and better sited secure cycle parking 

facilities 
e. I would cycle (more) if it was difficult to find somewhere to park the car 
f. I would cycle (more) if car parking were expensive 
g. I would cycle (more) if congestion charging were introduced in towns I travel to by 

car 
 
1 Strongly agree 
2 Tend to agree 
3 Tend to disagree 
4 Strongly disagree 
5 Don't know 
 
Perceptions of cycling (iii) 
Here are some statements people have made about cycling. For each, please try to 
give your initial feeling rather than thinking about it too much, and say the extent to 
which you or disagree with them: 
a. I’m not the kind of person who rides a bicycle 
b. I (would) feel confident cycling on the roads (e.g. to work/school/the shops) 
c. It’s too dangerous for me to cycle on the roads 
d. I would cycle (more) if there were more dedicated cycle paths  
e. I would cycle (more) if there were more secure places to store bicycles  
f. In general, I would rather cycle than use public transport  

Page 237

Agenda Item 12



 

41 

g. I (would) enjoy cycling as a leisure / holiday activity  
h. I am willing to cycle on the roads (e.g. to work/school/the shops)  
i. I (would) find cycling on the roads stressful 
j. I’m not the kind of person who cycles to work 
k. It would be quicker for me to cycle to work than go by car 
 
1 Definitely agree, 
2 Tend to agree, 
3 Neither agree nor disagree, 
4 Tend to disagree, 
5 Definitely disagree, 
6 Don’t know 
7 Not applicable 

Cycle Training 

Have you ever done any formal cycling proficiency training such as ‘Bikeability’? 
Formal cycling proficiency training is delivered by a recognised trainer and includes 
tuition on the road.  
1 Yes 
2 No 

Mode Shift 

Shift to active travel (i) 
Please tick one box to show how much you agree or disagree with each of these 
statements: 

a. Many of the short journeys I now make by car I could just as easily walk 
b. Many of the journeys of less than two miles that I now make by car I could just as 

easily walk 
c. Many of the short journeys I now make by car I could just as easily go by bus 
d. Many of the journeys of less than two miles that I now make by car I could just as 

easily go by bus  
e. Many of the short journeys I now make by car I could just as easily cycle, if I had a 

bike  
f. Many of the journeys of less than two miles that I now make by car I could just as 

easily cycle, if I had a bike 
g. Cyclists and pedestrians should be given more priority in towns and cities even if 

this makes things more difficult for other road users 
 

Page 238

Agenda Item 12



 

42 

1 Agree strongly 
2 Agree 
3 Neither agree nor disagree 
4 Disagree 
5 Disagree strongly 
6 Not applicable 
7 Can't choose 
 
Shift to active travel (ii) 
Which of the options on this list best describes what you personally think about 
switching to walking or cycling instead of driving for short, regular journeys  
1 I don't really want to do this 
2 I haven't really thought about doing this 
3 I've thought about doing this, but probably won't do it 
4 I'm thinking about doing this 
5 I'm already doing this, but I probably won't manage to keep it up 
6 I'm already doing this and intend to keep it up 
7 I've tried doing this, but I've given up 
8 I haven’t heard of this 
9 Don’t know 
10 Not applicable 
 
Shift from car to walking 
To what extent do you agree or disagree with each of the following statements? 
a. I would travel less by car if I had more time to walk instead 
b. I would travel less by car if there were safer walking routes 
c. I would travel less by car if pavements were better maintained 
d. I would walk (more) if it was difficult to find somewhere to park the car 
e. I would walk (more) if car parking was expensive 
 
1 Strongly agree 
2 Tend to agree 
3 Tend to disagree 
4 Strongly disagree 
5 Don't know 
 

Page 239

Agenda Item 12



 

43 

Shift from car or public transport to active travel 
Do you make any journeys by car to places that are within walking or cycling 
distance?  
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
Do you make any journeys by public transport to places that are within walking or 
cycling distance?  
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
For what purpose are the journeys you make, either by car or by public transport, to 
places that are within walking or cycling distance? 
1 To or from work 
2 To or from school, college or adult education 
3 To or from the shops 
4 To accompany children or other people 
5 To or from a leisure/sports activity 
6 Simply for pleasure 
7 Other - please specify 
 
What, if anything, would encourage you to walk or cycle for some of those journeys? 
(select up to three that are most important / indicate most important) 
Better street lighting 
1 Better maintained pavements 
2 More road crossings 
3 More CCTV cameras 
4 More cycle lanes on roads 
5 More cycle tracks away from roads 
6 Less traffic on the roads 
7 Lower speed limits 
8 Having more time available 
9 No car available 
10 Higher costs of motoring 
11 Higher public transport fares 
12 More traffic congestion 
13 More direct walking routes 
14 Adult cycle training Page 240

Agenda Item 12



 

44 

15 More secure and convenient cycle parking facilities 
16 A cycle mileage allowance for journeys to work or for business 
17 Better driver attitudes towards cyclists 
18 More local shops and other facilities 
19 More publicity about the benefits walking and cycling has on health, the 

environment and 
20 congestion 
21 Other - please specify 
22 Nothing would encourage me to walk or cycle for some of these journeys 
 
What sort of journeys that you make by car each month, if any, do you think you 
would switch to walking or cycling instead? 
1 To or from work 
2 To or from school, college or adult education 
3 To or from the shops 
4 To accompany children or other people 
5 To or from a leisure/sports activity 
6 Simply for pleasure 
7 Other - please specify 
 
What sort of journeys that you make by public transport each month, if any, do you 
think you would switch to walking or cycling instead? 
1 To or from work 
2 To or from school, college or adult education 
3 To or from the shops 
4 To accompany children or other people 
5 To or from a leisure/sports activity 
6 Simply for pleasure 
7 Other - please specify 
 
Actions to reduce impact of climate change 
Please say the extent to which you agree or disagree with the following statements 
about actions that could be taken to help reduce the impact of climate change. 
a. I am willing to use public transport more often instead of travelling by car 
b. Using public transport more often instead of travelling by car is achievable within 

my lifestyle 
c. More of the tax I pay should be used to improve public transport rather than being 

spent on other things 

Page 241

Agenda Item 12



 

45 

d. I am willing to cycle more often instead of travelling by car 
e. Cycling more often instead of travelling by car is achievable within my lifestyle  
f. More of the tax I pay should be used to improve cycling facilities rather than being 

spent on other things  
g. I am willing to walk more often instead of travelling by car 
h. Walking more often instead of travelling by car is achievable within my lifestyle  
 
1 Strongly agree  
2 Tend to agree 
3 Neither agree nor disagree 
4 Tend to disagree 
5 Strongly disagree 
6 Don't know 

Perceptions of the Local Area 

Walking – satisfaction  
On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is very dissatisfied and 10 is very satisfied, how would 
you score the overall quality of the walking conditions in your area? 0..10 
 
Walking – improvement 
Overall, over the past two years do you think walking conditions in your area have... 
1 Improved 
2 Stayed the same 
3 Got worse  
4 Don't know/No opinion 
 
In what way have they improved? (free text – codes to assign below) 
1 Better street lighting 
2 Better maintained pavements 
3 More pavements alongside roads 
4 More footpaths away from roads 
5 More road crossings 
6 More CCTV cameras 
7 Less traffic on the roads 
8 Slower traffics 
9 More direct walking routes 
10 Feels safer now 

Page 242

Agenda Item 12



 

46 

11 Other - please specify 
 
In what ways have they got worse? (free text – codes to assign below) 
1 Street lighting doesn't work/isn't maintained 
2 Condition of pavements has got worse 
3 Fewer pavements alongside roads 
4 Fewer footpaths away from roads 
5 Fewer road crossings 
6 Fewer CCTV cameras 
7 More traffic on roads 
8 Faster traffic 
9 Fewer direct walking routes 
10 Doesn't feel so safe now 
11 Other - please specify 
 
Cycling – satisfaction  
On a scale of 0 to 10, where 0 is very dissatisfied and 10 is very satisfied, how would 
you score the overall quality of the cycling conditions in your area? 
0..10 
 
Cycling - improvement 
Overall, over the past two years do you think cycling conditions in your area have... 
1 Improved 
2 Stayed the same 
3 Got worse over the last two years 
4 Don't know 
 
In what way have they improved? (Ask those who think provision has improved. Free 
text – codes to assign below) 
1 More cycle lanes on roads 
2 More cycle tracks away from roads 
3 More/better sited secure cycle parking facilities 
4 More showers/changing facilities 
5 Less traffic on the roads 
6 Slower traffic 
7 Adult cycling training provided 
8 Get a cycle mileage allowance for journeys to work/for business 

Page 243

Agenda Item 12



 

47 

9 Feels safer now 
10 Drivers attitudes towards cyclists have got better 
11 Other - please specify 
 
In what way have they got worse? (Ask to those who think provision has got worse. 
Free text – codes to assign below) 
1 Fewer cycle tracks away from road 
2 Cycling parking facilities have become less secure 
3 Showers/changing facilities have been withdrawn 
4 More traffic on the roads 
5 Faster traffic 
6 Adult cycle training has been withdrawn 
7 Cycle mileage allowance for work/business journeys has been withdrawn 
8 Doesn't feel so safe now 
9 Driver attitudes towards cyclists have got worse 
10 Other - please specify 
 
Cycling – provision / infrastructure 
How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with each of these locally…? 
a. The number of cycle routes/lanes provided 
b. The location of the cycle routes/lanes provided 
c. Condition of cycle routes/lanes 
d. Cycle crossing facilities at road junctions and traffic signals 
e. Cycle parking 
f. Direction signing for cycle routes/lanes 
g. Cycle route/lane information e.g. maps 
h. Cycle training (e.g. at schools) 
i. Cycle facilities at place of work (e.g. racks, showers etc) 
 
1 Very satisfied 
2 Fairly satisfied 
3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 
4 Fairly dissatisfied 
5 Very dissatisfied 
6 Doesn’t apply / Don’t know 
 

Page 244

Agenda Item 12



 

48 

General (i) 
Thinking about your local area, please tell me how you would rate each of the 
following: 
a. The ease of getting about your local area by car or van 
b. The quality of the air 
c. The level of noise from traffic 
d. The conditions of the pavements 
e. The ease of crossing roads on foot 
f. The provision of cycle lanes/paths 
 
1 Very good 
2 Fairly good 
3 Neither good or poor 
4 Fairly poor 
5 Very poor 
6 Don’t know 
7 Not applicable 

 
General (ii) 
How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with the following in your local area…? 
a. Speed limits being right for local roads and not too high or too low 
b. The effectiveness of speed control measures (e.g. road humps) 
c. The location of speed control measures 
d. Safety of walking 
e. Safety of cycling 
f. Safety of children walking to school 
g. Safety of children cycling to school 
h. Road safety training/education given to children 
i. Road safety training/education given to motorcyclists 
j. Road safety training/education given to young drivers 
 
1 Very satisfied 
2 Fairly satisfied 
3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 
4 Fairly dissatisfied 
5 Very dissatisfied 
6 Doesn’t apply / Don’t know 

Page 245

Agenda Item 12



 

49 

 
General (iii) 
Thinking about the following, to what extent do you think there are too many, too few, 
or do you think there are about the right amount in your local area?  
a. Cycle routes/lanes  
b. Bus stops 
c. Speed control measures (e.g. road humps) 
d. Street lights  
 
1 Far too many 
2 A little too many 
3 About the right amount 
4 A little too few 
5 Far too few 
6 Doesn’t apply/don’t know 
 
General (iv) 
How important, if at all, do you consider each of the following…? 
a. Good pavements & footpaths  
b. Good cycle routes/lanes & facilities  
c. Good local bus services  
d. Good local taxi (or mini-cab) services 
e. Community Transport, e.g. Dial-a-Ride & volunteer car schemes  
f. ‘Demand Responsive Transport’ i.e. flexible bus services  
g. Safe roads 
h. Low levels of traffic & congestion 
i. Low levels of local traffic pollution 
j. Good street lighting  
k. Roads being in good condition 
l. A good Rights of Way network (Rights of Way are routes open to the public – 

such as ‘bridleways’ and footpaths – which are often in the countryside but can 
also be found in towns) 

 
1 Very important 
2 Fairly important 
3 Not very important 
4 Not at all important 

Page 246

Agenda Item 12



 

50 

5 Don’t know 
 
Thinking about roads and transport locally, how satisfied or dissatisfied are you with 
the following…?  
a. Pavements & footpaths  
b. Cycle routes/lanes & facilities 
c. Local bus services 
d. Local taxi (or mini-cab) services 
e. Community Transport, e.g. Dial-a-Ride & volunteer car schemes 
f. ‘Demand Responsive Transport’ i.e. flexible bus services 
g. Safety on roads  
h. Traffic levels & congestion  
i. Levels of local traffic pollution 
j. Street lighting  
k. The condition of roads  
l. The local Rights of Way network  
 
1 Very satisfied 
2 Fairly satisfied 
3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 
4 Fairly dissatisfied 
5 Very dissatisfied 
6 Doesn’t apply / Don’t know 
 
General (v) 
To what extent, if at all, do you think that the following are a problem on… 
a. Your residential street 
b. Your local high street 
 
1 Vehicles going too fast 
2 A lot of lorries 
3 Not enough car parking spaces 
4 Not enough cycle parking spaces 
5 Heavy traffic 
6 Traffic fumes 
7 Traffic noise 
8 Difficulty crossing the road as a pedestrian 

Page 247

Agenda Item 12



 

51 

9 Lack of public space for children to play 
 

Rights of Way and bridleways – satisfaction 
How satisfied or dissatisfied are you with each of these locally…? As a reminder, 
Rights of Way are routes open to the public – such as ‘bridleways’ and footpaths – 
which are often in the countryside but can also be found in towns.  
a. Provision of Rights of Way footpaths e.g. for walking or running  
b. Provision of bridleways for horse riding and/or recreational cycling 
c. Signposting of Rights of Way 
d. Condition of Rights of Way 
e. Ease of use by those with disabilities 
f. Information about Rights of Way routes 
g. Deals with overgrown footpaths and bridleways 
 
1 Very satisfied 
2 Fairly satisfied 
3 Neither satisfied nor dissatisfied 
4 Fairly dissatisfied 
5 Very dissatisfied 
6 Doesn’t apply / Don’t know 
 
Local amenities 
Which of the following most applies to you? Within walking distance of where I live 
there are ... 
1 Many shops and services 
2 Some shops and services 
3 Few shops and services 
4 No shops and services 

Congestion, Reallocation of Road Space, Parking, Pollution  

Congestion – problem (i) 
How serious a problem do you think road congestion is for Great Britain? 
1 A very serious problem 
2 A serious problem 
3 Not a very serious problem 
4 Not a problem at all 
 

Page 248

Agenda Item 12



 

52 

How serious a problem is road congestion for you personally?  
1 A very serious problem 
2 A serious problem 
3 Not a very serious problem 
4 Not a problem at all 
 
Congestion – problem (ii) 
Thinking of your use of roads as a driver, passenger, pedestrian or cyclist, which of 
these is a more serious problem for you as a road user? 
1 Traffic congestion in towns and town centres 
2 Congestion on major roads, such as motorways, outside towns and town centres 
 
Congestion – experience of 
There are a number of events and situations that people say can cause congestion. 
Thinking of the last month, which of the following things do you think have caused 
you yourself to experience congestion? 
1 Overall amount of traffic on the road 
2 Road works 
3 Traffic incidents 
4 Too many traffic lights 
5 Badly phased traffic lights 
6 Bus lanes 
7 Traffic calming measures (speed humps, chicanes, etc) 
8 School run traffic 
9 Other 
10 Not experienced congestion in last month 
 
And, which one of these things that has caused you to experience congestion do you 
find most annoying? (only show items selected in response to previous question). 
1 Overall amount of traffic on the road 
2 Road works 
3 Traffic incidents 
4 Too many traffic lights 
5 Badly phased traffic lights 
6 Bus lanes 
7 Traffic calming measures (speed humps, chicanes, etc) 
8 School run traffic 
9 Other Page 249

Agenda Item 12



 

53 

 
Traffic reduction 
To what extent do you support or oppose the reduction of road traffic in towns and 
cities in England? 
1 Strongly oppose 
2 Tend to oppose 
3 Tend to support 
4 Strongly support 
5 Don’t know 
 
To what extent do you support or oppose the reduction of road traffic in your local 
area / neighbourhood? 
1 Strongly oppose 
2 Tend to oppose 
3 Tend to support 
4 Strongly support 
5 Don’t know 
 
Reallocation of road space 
To what extent do you support or oppose reallocating road space to walking and 
cycling in your local area / neighbourhood? 
1 Strongly oppose 
2 Tend to oppose 
3 Tend to support 
4 Strongly support 
5 Don’t know 

 
Parking restrictions 
The following questions are about the parking restrictions in place on the streets and 
roads in your local area. These include limitations on where, when and who can park 
on the streets. Your local area refers to the area within a 5 minute drive/15 minute 
walk of your home. This excludes car parks. 
Are there parking restrictions in place in your local area? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
Generally, do you think there are too few or too many parking restrictions in your 
local area or is the number of restrictions about right?  

Page 250

Agenda Item 12



 

54 

1 Too many 
2 About right 
3 Too few 
 
Would you say that the parking restrictions that are in place in your local area are 
enforced...? 
1 Too rigidly 
2 Too leniently 
3 In about the right way 
 
How much you agree or disagree with each statement. 
a. The parking restrictions in my area cause problems for me 
b. The parking restrictions in my local area are confusing 
c. Generally the parking restrictions in place are there for a good reason.   
d. Parking restrictions are mostly there to make money 
 
1 Strongly agree 
2 Agree 
3 Neither agree nor disagree 
4 Disagree 
5 Strongly disagree 
 
Why do you think the parking restrictions in your local area are there? (free text – 
code using categories below) 
1 To help keep traffic moving 
2 To ration access to limited number of spaces 
3 To improve the environment for local residents 
4 To improve the environment for pedestrians/cyclists 
5 To make the roads safer/reduce accidents 
6 To allow access for emergency vehicles/delivery vehicles 
7 To provide source of money to local authority 
8 Other (Please specify) 
 
Are there any particular occasions when the availability of parking/parking restrictions 
causes you problems? 
1 Travelling to work 
2 Going shopping 

Page 251

Agenda Item 12



 

55 

3 Taking children to or back from school 
4 For personal business (e.g. going to the bank, the doctors, etc) 
5 Visiting hospital 
6 Leisure/social activities (going to play sport/socialise etc) 
7 Visiting friends or relatives 
8 Outside own home 
9 Other journeys (Please specify) 
10 No problems 
11 Don't know 
 
To what extent, if at all, do you limit how much you travel by car because of the cost 
of parking?  
1 A great deal 
2 To some extent 
3 Not very much 
4 Not at all 
 
Noise / air pollution 
How serious a problem for you is noise from traffic in towns and cities? 
1 A very serious problem 
2 A serious problem 
3 Not a very serious problem 
4 Not a problem at all 
 
How would you rate:  
a. The quality of the air 
b. The level of noise from traffic? 
 
1 Very good 
2 Fairly good 
3 Neither good or poor 
4 Fairly poor 
5 Very poor 

Page 252

Agenda Item 12



 

56 

 
Transport and the environment 
Now thinking about transport and environment issues in general do you think that 
each of the following has improved, stayed about the same or got worse over the last 
two years? 
a. The ease of getting about on foot 
b. The quality of train/metro/underground services 
c. The amount of traffic on major roads and motorways 
d. The quality of local bus services 
e. The quality of the air in your local area 
f. The amount of traffic in your local area 
g. The ease of parking near your home 
h. The ease of parking in the Town you visit most often 
 
1 Improved 
2 Stayed the same 
3 Got worse 
 
General 
To what extent do you agree or disagree that the government should act in local 
neighbourhoods to… 
a. improve air quality 
b. reduce traffic noise 
c. reduce traffic congestion  
d. increase road safety 
 
1 Strongly Disagree 
2 Disagree 
3 Agree 
4 Strongly Agree 
5 Don’t know 

 

Health, Mobility and Disability 

Disability / Health Status (i) 
I want to ask some questions about your health to understand how it might affect 
your travel. 

Page 253

Agenda Item 12



 

57 

How is your health in general? 
1. Very good 
2. Good 
3. Fair 
4. Bad 
5. Very bad 
 
Do you have any physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or expected 
to last for 12 months or more? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
3 Don’t know  
 
If respondent has a physical or mental health conditions or illnesses lasting or 
expected to last for 12 months or more, ask: 
Do any of these conditions or illnesses affect you in any of the following areas? 
1 Vision (for example, blindness or partial sight) 
2 Hearing (for example, deafness or partial hearing) 
3 Mobility (for example, walking short distances or climbing stairs) 
4 Dexterity (for example, lifting or carrying objects, using a keyboard) 
5 Learning or understanding or concentrating 
6 Memory 
7 Mental health 
8 Stamina or breathing or fatigue 
9 Socially or behaviourally (for example, associated with autism, attention deficit 

disorder or Asperger’s syndrome) 
10 Speech 
11 Other (please specify) 
12 None of the above 

 
Disability / Health status (ii) 
Do you consider yourself as having a long-standing mental health condition or 
illness? By 'long-standing' we mean anything that you have experienced over a 
period of at least 12 months or that you are likely experience over a period of at least 
12 months'? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
3 Prefer not to say  

Page 254

Agenda Item 12



 

58 

 
Mobility (i) 
Do you have any long-term illness, health problem or disability which makes it difficult 
for you to walk for more than 10 minutes? 
1 Yes - but can go out on foot or assisted, e.g. wheelchair/walking stick 
2 Yes - cannot walk at all even if assisted 
3 No 
 
Mobility (ii) 
Do you have any physical or cognitive or mental health conditions or other long-
standing illnesses that makes it difficult for you to do any of the following: 
1 Go out on foot unaided 
2 Use local buses 
3 Or get in or out of a car? 
4 No difficulty with any of these (SPONTANEOUS) 
 
Mobility (iii) 
Do you usually manage to go out of doors and walk down the road…?  
1 On your own  
2 Only with help from someone else 
3 Not at all 
 
To do this on your own, do you find it…  
1 Very easy  
2 Fairly easy 
3 Fairly difficult  
4 Very difficult 
 
Although you said you usually manage on your own, does anyone help you to go out 
doors and walk down the road?  
1 Yes  
2 No 
 
Who usually helps you?  
1 Someone in the household,  
2 Someone from outside the household 
 

Page 255

Agenda Item 12



 

59 

Ability to carry out day-to-day activities 
The following questions are about your ability to carry out day-to-day activities. 
Normal day-to-day activities can include: 

• washing and dressing 

• household cleaning 

• cooking 

• shopping for essentials 

• using public or private transport 

• walking a defined distance 

• climbing stairs 

• remembering to pay bills 

• lifting objects from the ground or a work surface in the kitchen 

• moderate manual tasks such as gardening 

• gripping objects such as cutlery 

• hearing and speaking in a noisy room 
 
Does your condition or illness/do any of your conditions or illnesses reduce your 
ability to carry out day-to-day activities?  
1 Yes, a lot 
2 Yes, a little 
3 Not at all 

 
How long has your ability to carry out day-to-day activities been reduced? 
1 Less than six months 
2 Between six months and twelve months 
3 Twelve months or more 
 
Mobility aids (i) 
Do you use a wheelchair or mobility scooter?  
1 Daily 
2 2–3 times a week 
3 Weekly 
4 Monthly 
5 Less frequent / never 
 

Page 256

Agenda Item 12



 

60 

Mobility aids (ii) 
Do you have any of the following aids to walking or getting about, either inside or 
outside your home, including any that you no longer use? 
a. Walking stick  
b. Crutches  
c. Walking frame, tripod, zimmer 
d. Trolley (not shopping)  
e. Wheelchair – manual  
f. Wheelchair – electric  
g. Buggy/scooter  
h. Other 
 
1 Yes – indoor use only 
2 Yes - outdoor use only 
3 Yes - indoor and outdoor use 
4 Yes - aid not in use 
5 No 
 
How many aids to walking do you have? (free text) 
 
When going out do you use (type of mobility aid) …  
1 All the time  
2 Regularly 
3 Occasionally? 
 
Mobility aids / assistance 
Do you have any difficulty going out of doors and walking down the road without 
assistance of any kind? 
1 Yes 
2 No 
 
What type of assistance do you require? 
1 Walking aid 
2 Wheelchair 
3 Assistance from another person  
4 Other  
5 Can't get outside house 

Page 257

Agenda Item 12



 

61 

 
Is this… 
1 A temporary difficulty due to an accident or illness 
2 Likely to be a permanent difficulty 
 
Blue Badge Status 
Does anyone in this household have a blue badge that allows them to park in 
disabled parking spaces? 
1 Yes 
2 No 

Demographics / personal characteristics 

Sex 
Are you…? 
1 Male 
2 Female 
3 Other 
4 Prefer not to say 
 
Age 
16 to 24 
25 to 34 
35 to 44 
45 to 54 
55 to 64 
65 to 74 
75 to 84 
85 and over 
 
Household (i) 
A household refers to one person living alone or a group of people (not necessarily 
related) living at the same address who share cooking facilities and share a living 
room or sitting room or dining area. 
How many are there in your household? (free text) 
 

Page 258

Agenda Item 12



 

62 

Household (ii) 
Including yourself, how many individuals aged 16 or over live in your household? 
Please select one option. 
1 – 8 or more 
 
How many children aged 15 or under live in your household? Please select one 
option. 
 1 – 8 or more 
 
Employment 
Do you...  
1 Work full time 
2 Work part time 
3 Not working/retired/student/other 
 
Local business 
Do you, or anyone in your household, own a local business in the area?  
1 Yes – I am a local business owner 
2 Yes – someone else in my household is a local business owner 
3 No 
 
Household income 
Into which of the following bands does your annual household income fall, before tax 
and other deductions?  
 Per MONTH Per YEAR 
1  £541 or less £6,499 or less 
2  £542 to £791  £6,500 to £9,499 
3  £792 to £1,342 £9,500 to £16,105 
4  £1,343 to £2,083 £16,106 to £24,999 
5  £2,084 to £3,333 £25,000 to £39,999 
6  £3,334 to £4,999 £40,000 to £59,999 
7  £5,000 to £6,249 £60,000 to £74,999 
8  £6,250 and over £75,000 and over 
9  Don’t know Don’t know 

 

Page 259

Agenda Item 12



 

63 

Re-contact 

We might want to follow up with you to ask you to take part in a longer interview. If 
so, somebody from [insert organisation] will be in touch within the next 6 months by 
either email or phone, to arrange an interview with you.  
If you agree, we will ask you for your contact details – name, email and phone 
number – so that we can get in touch. We will keep your contact details securely for a 
maximum of six months and will not use them for any other purpose. Would you be 
willing to be contacted to take part? 
1 Yes, willing to be re-contacted 
2 No, not willing to be re-contacted 
 
 
 

Page 260

Agenda Item 12



 

Draft Equalities Impact Assessment  

Southport & Bootle Emergency 
Active Travel Routes 
 

 

 

 

Page 261

Agenda Item 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

 

Table of Contents 
Section 1: Active Travel Tranche 1 – (Emergency Routes) ........................................................ 1 

Section 2: Summary ...................................................................................................................... 1 

Section 3: Initial Screening ........................................................................................................... 5 

Section 4: Beneficiaries and Objectives ...................................................................................... 6 

Section 5: Community Engagement and Consultation Statement ............................................ 7 

Section 6: Impact of Proposal ....................................................................................................... 8 

Section 7: Evidence ..................................................................................................................... 22 

Section 8: Action Plans – Document Release & Mitigation ...................................................... 25 

Document Control ........................................................................................................................ 27 

Appendix A –LCR Walking & Cycling Index 2021 ..................................................................... 28 

Appendix B – Sefton Young Advisors – Your Streets .............................................................. 29 
 

  

Page 262

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

1 

 

Section 1: Active Travel Tranche 1 – 
(Emergency Routes) 
Title of Assessment:     
Bootle and Southport Emergency Walking and Cycling Routes – Active Travel (Tranche 1) 
Programme 

EIA Lead Officer Name:  
L Davies  

Team 
Strategic Transport Planning and Infrastructure 

Service Area  
Highways and Public Protection 

Date 
08/06/2022 

 

Section 2: Summary 
As a local authority, Sefton Council are required by the Equality Act 2010 to comply with the Public 
Sector Equality Duty. This means we need to carry out an equality analysis, in the form of an 
Equality Impact Assessment  (EQIA) of our proposed highways and transport schemes to ensure 
that proper consideration and due regard is given to the needs of diverse groups in order to: 

• Eliminate discrimination 

• Advance equality of opportunity and access; and 

• Foster good relations between different groups in the community. 
 

This EQIA will help to ensure that equality, diversity, cohesion, and integration are at the heart of 
everything the Council does. The following assessment looks at the likely (or actual) effects of 
policies on people in respect of protected equality characteristics as listed in Section 3 below. This 
assessment includes an initial screening and then a more in depth analysis of the opportunities to 
promote equality within active travel schemes; alongside mitigating negative or adverse impacts 
that can be removed or mitigated. 

Page 263

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

2 

 

This EQIA assesses the Active Travel Tranche 1 programme which includes the following two 
schemes, implemented in 2020 as part of the Governments response to funding for active travel, 
during the peak of the COVID-19 pandemic. 

Southport Walking and Cycling Route. 

• Linking Birkdale to Hesketh Park 
Bootle Walking and Cycling Route.  

• Linking Crosby to Bootle Town Centre  
 

Page 264

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

3 

 

 

Page 265

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

4 

 

  

Page 266

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

5 

 

Section 3: Initial Screening  
Is the proposal likely to impact on the way Sefton Council is showing ‘due regard’ to the three aims of the 
Public Sector Equality Duty? Please indicate the relevant aim as detailed below; 
 

Public Sector Aim  Yes / No 

Eliminating unlawful discrimination, harassment, 
and victimisation 

Yes 

Advancing equality of opportunity  Yes  

Fostering good relations between different groups 
of people 

Yes 

 

Please identify if the project/ scheme is likely to have an impact on any of the following protected 
characteristics? 
 
Protected Characteristic Yes / No 

Age Yes 

Disability Yes 

Gender reassignment  

Marriage and Civil Partnership Yes 

Pregnancy and Maternity Yes 

Race Yes 

Religion or Belief  

Sex Yes 

Sexual Orientation  

 

  

Page 267

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

6 

 

Section 4: Beneficiaries and Objectives  
Who should benefit from the proposals, and how does the proposal fit with Sefton Council’s Vision, Climate 
Emergency Declaration? 
 

Improvements in active travel infrastructure are intended to support more people to choose to 
make more journeys by walking or cycling, replacing trips made by car. This switch from car to 
walking and cycling brings many benefits to residents, visitors, and workers, including reduced 
carbon emissions, improved air quality, reduced congestion and improved health and wellbeing. 
These benefits have positive impacts for Sefton as a Borough helping to address the climate 
emergency and supporting economic activity. 

Particular benefits from any improvement to walking and cycling infrastructure can be felt by 
people who experience disability (including long-term health conditions) and socio-economic 
groups who are excluded from employment or face barriers in accessing services due to the cost 
of transport (walking and cycling are relatively cheaper than public transport or owning/running a 
car). 

The COVID-19 pandemic has brought difficulties for people in travelling safely to and from work, 
shops, and other services due to the necessity of maintaining social distancing on public transport 
and the reduced capacity that accompanies this and affects people with disabilities and long-term 
health conditions.  

The need to maintain social distancing on pavements and footways also affects people with 
mobility difficulties and people pushing prams and pushchairs. Therefore, the proposals should 
benefit many residents in these groups. This proposal allows Sefton Council to meet their Vision 
and Climate Emergency Declaration which includes providing a safe and socially distanced 
method of travel which is inclusive for all. 

The benefits would support the implementation of several regional and local policies, strategies, 
and plans: 

• LCR - Strategy for Growth 

• LCR- Transport Plan 

• Local Journeys Strategy 

• Local Cycling and Walking Infrastructure Plan (LCWIP) 

• Climate Emergency Declaration 

• Vision for Sefton 2030 
 

Page 268

Agenda Item 12



 

 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  
B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

7 

 

Section 5: Community Engagement and 
Consultation Statement  
Detail the consultation and engagement process followed with reference to Public Engagement and 
Consultation Panel.  
 
The walking and cycling routes in Bootle and Southport as show in Section 2, were implemented 
on an emergency basis. Limited time was afforded by the Department of Transport to undertake 
consultation and swift implementation of the schemes were a condition of the funding for both 
routes. The routes were implemented on a test and see basis.  

The following communications plan was executed; 

• Letters were distributed to all properties along the route to advise of the works 

• Information provided to local press in the form of a press release 

• Social media messages 
 

  

Page 269

Agenda Item 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

8 

 

 

Section 6: Impact of Proposal   
Could the proposal have a positive or negative impact on any of the protected characteristics (race, gender, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil 
partnership, age, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, sex, sexual orientation)? Please list in the table below and include actions required to mitigate 
any potential negative impact. 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

Age  The LCR Walking and Cycling Index 2021 (Appendix A) found that barriers to cycling can be far 
more pronounced for some people.  Safety including road safety and personal safety is the 
single largest barrier to cycling.  

Proportion of LCR residents who cycle at least once a week by Age: 

Age 2019 2021 

16-25 12% 20% 

26-35 10% 20% 

36-45 21% 14% 

46-55 17% 16% 

 

P
age 270

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

9 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

56 – 65 11% 16% 

66+ 8% 9% 

 

Barriers to cycling include being concerned about safety. 46% of residents of the LCR feel they 
should cycle more and want improved cycle infrastructure including more cycling track along 
roads which are physically protected from traffic and pedestrians (LCR Bikelife P14) 

School Age Population 

Nationally over three quarters of injury deaths for 10 to 18-year-olds are related to motor traffic, 
and motor traffic injuries are the leading cause of death for children aged 5 to 14 years. – source 
https://ice.org.uk/news-and-insight/the-civil-engineer/june-2021/streets-work-for-children-work-
for-all  

Recent national research by Living Streets found the following: 

1. Over a third (36%) are scared about walking to school because of speeding traffic. 
2. One in five children and young people are concerned about the lack of safe crossing 

points on their journey to school. 

P
age 271

A
genda Item

 12

https://ice.org.uk/news-and-insight/the-civil-engineer/june-2021/streets-work-for-children-work-for-all
https://ice.org.uk/news-and-insight/the-civil-engineer/june-2021/streets-work-for-children-work-for-all
https://ice.org.uk/news-and-insight/the-civil-engineer/june-2021/streets-work-for-children-work-for-all


 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

10 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

3. Many children report being scared of walking to school alone, with nearly one in five 
secondary school pupils worried about being bullied on the walk to school and 39% 
scared by the risk of stranger danger. 

Source; https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/media/1398/breakingdownthebarriers.pdf    

Research undertaken by Sefton Young Advisors asked participants from two Southport High 
Schools to identify issues when walking and cycling to school, the most common answers were, 
busy roads, roundabouts and junctions, suspicious people, not enough cycle lanes, no traffic 
lights in some places, being approached by strangers, dangerous drivers. The finding report is 
contained in Appendix B. 

Holy Trinity CE Primary School located on Manchester Road has a side exit on Hoghton Street 
in Southport which is formed of the Church car park and community center. Parents and carers 
use this entrance and exit as well as Manchester Road. The school has 200 pupils on the roll 
and in 2021, 2 looked after children from a faith background were allocated a place, there were 
no children allocated a place with a social / medical or pastoral need or who were of CE Faith 
and attending Holy Trinity Church in 2021 and 2020. In 2021 the school received 50 applications 
for 30 places.  

Source;  Schools Information Guide 2022 (sefton.gov.uk) 

 

 

P
age 272

A
genda Item

 12

https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/media/1398/breakingdownthebarriers.pdf
https://www.livingstreets.org.uk/media/1398/breakingdownthebarriers.pdf
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/media/4901/sefton-schools-admissions-information-guide-2022-23.pdf


 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

11 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

Further and Higher Education Age Young People 

Hugh Baird College is made up of a number of campuses across South Sefton, two of which 
are located in close proximity to the Bootle Walking and Cycling Route; 

• Balliol Road Campus 

• Health Care Campus   
The college provides learning opportunities for 14 to 19 year old young people and an adult 
learning programme. The college provides education and training for around 4,200 individuals 
across all campuses. 14 high needs learners are based at the main campus in Bootle.  

Source; https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/provider/31/130490  

Southport College is located on Mornington Road just off Hoghton Street. The College offers 
vocational and technical courses to 1,433 learners aged 16 to 18.  

Source; https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50150912  

Other settings for children and young people 

There are a number of other settings near to the route including a number of nurseries, a family 
center, and a youth center.  

P
age 273

A
genda Item

 12

https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/provider/31/130490
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/provider/31/130490
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50150912
https://files.ofsted.gov.uk/v1/file/50150912


 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

12 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

 

POSITIVE IMPACT 

Creating more walking, wheeling and cycling friendly streets which are safer, will benefit people 
from all ages as this will reduce vehicle traffic attributed to the school run / young people 
travelling to college and provide great opportunity for healthier and more active ways to get 
around.  Increasing active travel to school is key to embedding healthy lifestyles into daily life.  

Disability English National Concessionary Travel Pass holders x in Sefton and x in Southport and x in 
Bootle.  – DATA GAP  

In 2018 (the most up to date national data set) there were 13,751 total valid blue badges held by 
organisations and individuals in Sefton.  

The LCR Walking and Cycling Index 2021 found that barriers to cycling can be far more 
pronounced for some people.  Safety including road safety and personal safety is the single 
largest barrier to cycling.  

Proportion of LCR residents who cycle at least once a week who identify has having a disability 
has increased from 7% in 2019 to 15% in 2021.  This is compared to 16% of non-disabled 
residents in 2021 and 15% in 2022.   

NEGATIVE 
IMPACT 

MITIGATION  

M1: SOUTHPORT & BOOTLE 
Undertake a healthy street 
audit of the routes – To identify 
how the health of the streets 
can be improved. 

P
age 274

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

13 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

Wheels for Wellbeing Report; A guide to accessible Cycling  can be found here 
https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/FINAL.pdf This report identifies 
that it is a common myth that Disabled people don’t or can’t cycle.  Research has been 
undertaken in London and 12% of disabled people regularly or occasionally cycle compared to 
17% of non-disabled people.   

Wheels for wellbeing have undertaken a survey of disabled people which can be found here; 
https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/Survey-report-FINAL.pdf  This 
survey identifies the top measures for encouraging more disabled people into cycling as follows 

• Ensuring cycling infrastructure is accessible and meets the needs of disabled cyclists,  

• Introducing subsidies to make non-standard cycles less expensive  

• Introducing legislation that legally recognises cycles as mobility aids 
 

Focus Group with People First indicated that more members would walk and cycle if there were 
more routes and safer routes. The group identified issues around availability and cost of adapted 
bikes as although some representatives in the group cycled many would if they had suitable 
bikes to use.  

https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/fil
e/972438/transport-disability-and-accessibility-statistics-england-2019-to-2020.pdf   

M2: SOUTHPORT A review 
alternative parking locations for 
blue badge holders along 
Hoghton Street.  

M3: SOUTHPORT & BOOTLE 
Development of a Monitoring & 
Evaluation plan in line with DfT 
guidance.  

M4: SOUTHPORT Monitoring 
of Chapel Street shared space 
and consideration in Road 
Safety Audit.  

P
age 275

A
genda Item

 12

https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/FINAL.pdf
https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2019/06/FINAL.pdf
https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/Survey-report-FINAL.pdf
https://wheelsforwellbeing.org.uk/wp-content/uploads/2018/11/Survey-report-FINAL.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/972438/transport-disability-and-accessibility-statistics-england-2019-to-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/972438/transport-disability-and-accessibility-statistics-england-2019-to-2020.pdf
https://assets.publishing.service.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/972438/transport-disability-and-accessibility-statistics-england-2019-to-2020.pdf


 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

14 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

Specific issues identified in relation to this protected characteristic related to the Southport route 
are as follows;   

• Lack of parking for blue badge holders along Hoghton Street generally and within the 
vicinity of Holy Trinity Church 

• Shared use route along Chapel Street 
No disabled parking bays were removed 

The Southport route along Chapel Street includes a shared area for people walking, cycling and 
delivery vehicles. At the time of writing this report there have not been any recorded injury 
accidents along Chapel Street.   

A Road Safety Audit of the Southport Route is due to be undertaken and this assessment will be 
updated based on the findings of this audit.  

No specific issues were highlighted in relation to the Bootle route 

 

POSITIVE IMPACT 

P
age 276

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

15 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

The scheme includes several improvements to the walking environment such as reducing street 
clutter. This would assist visually impaired people, those with restricted mobility and people 
using mobility aids such as wheelchairs or mobility scooters to navigate the space.  

Improving cycling safety by creating safe routes will encourage more disabled people to take up 
cycling.  This is seen across the country where cycles are regularly used as mobility aids.  There 
is also observed behaviors of those wheeling using the route.  

NEGATIVE IMPACT 

The construction of the cycle lanes along Hoghton Street has resulted in cars driving over the 
footway at pedestrian crossing points to access the frontages of their property.  

Kerb side parking has been removed along the sections of road where the cycle lanes are.  

Blue badge holders are now not able to park on Hoghton Street where the pay and display bays 
have been removed, the existing Blue Badge spaces remain.  

Gender 
reassignme
nt 

There are no National Statistics which show whether there are differences in levels of active 
travel between different groups in society related to gender identify and gender reassignment. 
The Office of National Statistics is recommending that new questions on gender identity should 
be added to the 2021 Census, which would begin to fill this gap. 

 

P
age 277

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

16 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

Similarly, Sport England Active Lives and Sustrans Bike Life surveys do not include questions 
about gender identity. 

Marriage 
and Civil 
Partnership 

DATA GAP - Lone parents in Bootle and Southport 

POSITIVE IMPACT 

Providing great transport opportunity to access childcare, education and work by creating greater 
opportunities for independent active travel in older younger people. Providing greater opportunity 
to exercise as part of everyday life by walking and cycling.  

 

Pregnancy 
and 
Maternity 

DATA GAP - % number of residents in Bootle and Southport with children under 1?  

POSITIVE IMPACT 

The schemes include many improvements to the walking environment 

• Creating clear and unobstructed footways making it easier to push a pram or carry babies 
/ infants   

 

P
age 278

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

17 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

• Adding new and improved crossing points 
 

Race Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups are less likely to hold a driving licence (in England 
between 2014-18 52% of Black ethnic group, 62% of Asian ethnic group, 59% of Mixed ethnic 
group held a driving license in comparison to 76% of white ethnic group) (Government Website: 
Drivers License Holders)   

Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic groups are also less likely to have access to a car or van. 
Between 2014/18 in England 41% of Black ethnic group, 21% of Asian ethnic group, 31% of 
Mixed Ethnic Group had no access to car/van in comparison to only 17% of White ethnic group 
(Government Website: Car or Van Ownership). 

In LCR, 37.3% of residents who categorise themselves as being of mixed/multiple ethnic groups, 
26.0% of Asian/Asian British residents 49.7% of Black residents, and 45.2% of residents in other 
ethnic groups all live in a household with no car (Census Data 2011 Nomis Web). The equivalent 
figure for white LCR residents is 26.2%.  

In the LCR 18% of people from ethnic minority groups cycle at least once per week, which has 
increased from 10% in 2019, this is compared to 16% of white people in 2021, and 13% in 2019. 
45% of people from ethnic minority groups think cycling safety in their local area is good 
compared to just 15% in 2019 compared with 38% of white people in 2021 and 28% in 2019.  

 

P
age 279

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

18 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

POSITIVE IMPACT 

Providing new and upgraded walking and cycling routes allows more people to be connected to 
employment, shops and other services.  

 

Religion or 
belief 

Sport England’s Active Lives surveys now include questions about people’s religious beliefs. 
Across the country people of all religions tend to be less active than the population as a whole, 
while people of no religion tend to be more active. But as less than one third of all respondents 
answered the question about their religion, and the survey covers all forms of activity, not just 
active travel (cycling and walking), we cannot use this data to determine whether belonging to a 
particular religion is linked with higher or lower levels of cycling in Liverpool City Region and 
Sefton. 

 

Sex Women generally have lower access to cars than men.  

• Across England and Wales Men are more likely to hold a full driving license, 80% males 
and 71% females.  

• 21% of female residents live in a household without a car, compared with 18% of males. 
(NTS) 

 

P
age 280

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

19 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

• For disabled people, whose day-to-day activity is ‘limited a lot’ this raised to 43% of 
women (34% men) (NTS) 

• When looking at main drivers – 2/3 of adult men are main drivers, but only half of adult 
women are main drivers. (NTS) 

Looking at trips generally, women take more walking trips then men across all age categories 
accept in the 70+ category.  Men generally take more cycling trips than women across all age 
categories. (NTS) 

Women generally take more local bus journeys then men across all age categories except in the 
0–16-year-old.  Women generally take less surface rail trips then men.   

The LCR Walking and Cycling Index 2021 found that barriers to cycling can be far more 
pronounced for some people. Safety including road safety and personal safety is the single 
largest barrier to cycling. Proportion of LCR residents who cycle at least once a week by sex is 
as follows 10% of women and 22% of Men and. The proportion of residents who think cycle 
safety in their local area is good by gender is 36% of women and 41% men.  

Summary 

• Women are less likely to have access to a car, more likely to walk more and take local 
bus journeys.  

• Women are less likely to cycle then men and cycle safety needs improving.  

P
age 281

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

20 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

 

DATA GAP - Do we have local data for the above 

Census 2001, LC3405EW – Long term health problem or disability by car or van. 

National Travel Survey 2002-19 

 

Positive Impact 

Creating safe family friendly cycle lanes creates conditions that would encourage more women 
to cycle.  This is experienced elsewhere across the Country.   

Creating easier to cross side roads and main roads, reducing pavement clutter would create a 
much-improved environment for people walking.   

Sexual 
orientation 

The LCR Walking and Cycling Index 2021 found that barriers to cycling can be far more 
pronounced for some people. Safety including road safety and personal safety is the single 
largest barrier to cycling.  

 

P
age 282

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

21 

 

Which groups 
of people 
could be 
affected 

Potential positive or negative impact Action required to mitigate any 
negative impact 

Proportion of LCR residents who cycle at least once a week by sexual orientation is as follows 
14% of LGBTQ+ residents’ cycle at least once per week compared with 17% of heterosexual 
people.   

 

Positive Impact 

Creating safe and welcoming spaces linking to key destinations would encourage more people 
from an LGBTQ+ background to travel actively.  The main barriers to walking and cycling remain 
road safety and personal safety.   

P
age 283

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

22 

 

Section 7: Evidence  
What research / data / information have you used in support of this process? Add detail about links to evidence or provide actual summary. Remember that 
your evidence is important. 
  

Protected 
Characteristics  

Title/ Source Date Data Gaps Actions to fill the data gap 

Age  Information regarding school intake and allocation 
basis  

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/media/4901/sefton-
schools-admissions-information-guide-2022-
23.pdf   

08/06/2022 Socio economic group of the 
pupils is not available   

Ask data intelligence unit if 
this is available by area.  

Age Merseytravel Over 60’s pass 08/06/2022  Data requested for Sefton and 
Southport 

ongoing 

Age Pupils attending educational settings along both 
routes  

https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/   

23/06/22 Breaking down data further and 
any possible mode share 
information 

Educational settings to be 
contracted to request further 
data.   

Disability Blue badge data – Sefton wide  - 
https://www.gov.uk/government/statistics/blue-
badge-scheme-statistics-2018 

05/08/2021 Southport data required Data requested from Blue 
Badge Department 

P
age 284

A
genda Item

 12

https://www.sefton.gov.uk/media/4901/sefton-schools-admissions-information-guide-2022-23.pdf
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/media/4901/sefton-schools-admissions-information-guide-2022-23.pdf
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/media/4901/sefton-schools-admissions-information-guide-2022-23.pdf
https://www.sefton.gov.uk/media/4901/sefton-schools-admissions-information-guide-2022-23.pdf
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/
https://reports.ofsted.gov.uk/


 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

23 

 

 English National Concessionary Travel Pass – 
disability as defined in the Transport Act 2000 

05/08/2021 Local and national data not 
readily available – seek 
assistance from Merseytravel.   

Data requested from 
Merseytravel. 

Gender reassignment There are currently no national or local data 
around transport and gender reassignment 

  Look to include this within 
future surveys / data 
gathering.   

Marriage and Civil 
Partnership 

  Need to explore further any 
data sets relating to loan 
parents in Southport 

Request assistance from 
Data Intelligence Unit  

Pregnancy and 
Maternity 

  Need to explore any data 
relating to expectant mothers 
and those with babies of under 
school age 

Look to include this within 
future surveys / data 
gathering – especially 
around school streets.   

Race No local data available  Need to explore any data sets 
which may not be readily 
available – may result in 
national statistics being used.   

Seek advice from LCRCA and 
internal Data Intelligence 
Unit.   

Religion or belief No local data available    Include religion and belief on 
all Equalities Questions 
moving forward.   

Sex Census 2001 

LC3405EW – Long term health problem or 
disability by car or van. 

 Need to explore any data we 
can extract relating to sex on 
local data sets we hold.  

 

P
age 285

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

24 

 

National Travel Survey  Factsheet 2018.  
2002-19 

Sexual orientation   There are currently no national 
or local data around transport 
and sexual orientation 

 

  

P
age 286

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

25 

 

Section 8: Action Plans – Document Release & Mitigation 
The (Draft – Approved) EIA is to be sent to groups representing protected characterises and feedback welcomed.  Once feedback has been received from the 
groups representing the protected characteristics, the EIA will be finalised.  The final document will then be sent to all groups as the final EIA.  
 

D O C U M E N T  R E L E A S E  A C T I O N  P L A N  

Action  Date Who  Progress 

Circulate to Equalities Lead  LD   

Circulate draft EIA to Corporate 
Equality Group 

 LD  

 

  

P
age 287

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

26 

 

 

M I T I G A T I O N  A C T I O N  P L A N  

 Mitigation Date Who  Progress 

M1 SOUTHPORT & BOOTLE Undertake a healthy street audit of the routes 
– To identify how the health of the streets can be improved. 

09/06/2022 LD/DG Not started – will follow the Healthy Streets Audit 
tool https://www.healthystreets.com/   

M2 SOUTHPORT A review alternative parking locations for blue badge 
holders along Hoghton Street.  

09/06/2022 AD/LD Ongoing 

M3 SOUTHPORT & BOOTLE Development of a Monitoring & Evaluation 
plan in line with DfT guidance.  

09/06/2022 LD/DG Monitoring and Evaluation Plan drafted 

M4 SOUTHPORT Monitoring of Chapel Street shared space   09/06/2022  Ongoing 

  

P
age 288

A
genda Item

 12

https://www.healthystreets.com/
https://www.healthystreets.com/


 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B O O T L E  E M E R G E N C Y  A C T I V E  
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

27 

 

Document Control  
I S S U E  /  A M E N D M E N T  R E C O R D  

Version  Date of issue Reason for Issue  

1  Internal approval for Paul McCann for Comment / Internal release to Corporate Equality Group 

2  Release to groups representing protected characteristics 

Release on Sefton Council Website 

 

D O C U M E N T  O W N E R S H I P   

Role Name / Title 

Author L Davies, Transport Planner 

Reviewer D Gutteridge, Transport Planner 

Release Authority A Dunsmore  

Team Leader – Strategic Transport Planning and 
Investment  

 

P
age 289

A
genda Item

 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B    
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

28 

 

Appendix A –LCR Walking & Cycling Index 
2021 
  

Page 290

Agenda Item 12



 
D R A F T  E Q U A L I T I E S  I M P A C T  A S S E S S M E N T  –  S O U T H P O R T  &  B    
T R A V E L  R O U T E S  

 

29 

 

Appendix B – Sefton Young Advisors – Your 
Streets 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 291

Agenda Item 12



This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Meeting held on Friday 27th May 2022
	6 Sefton Economic Strategy 2022 - 2023
	Item 6 - Sefton Economic Strategy Consultation Report
	Item 6 - Appendix A Sefton Economic Strategy Consultation Summary Slide Deck
	Item 6 - Appendix B Sefton Economic Strategy questionnaire 2022.final draft
	The categories of this information that we collect, process, hold and share include:
	Why we collect and use this information
	Storing this information

	The lawful basis upon which we use this data:

	Item 6 - Appendix C Sefton Economic Strategy Easy Read questionnaire 2022.final draft
	Item 6 - Appendix D Sefton Economic Strategy Interim EIA

	8 0-19 Commissioning Service Feedback and Evaluation Report
	Item 8 - Feedback and Evaluation report 0 - 19 service
	Item 8 - Appendix 1 - 0-19 YP consultation report

	9 Feedback and Evaluation Report - Adult Substance Use services
	10 Re commission of young people and family's substance use service.
	11 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Climate Emergency Engagement Plan
	Item 11 - Climate Change Community Engagement Report
	Item 11 Appendix 1 - Draft Climate Change Customer Engagement Consultation Questions
	Item 11 - Appendix 2 - Plan for in person events
	Item 11 Appendix 3 - Climate Consultation Communications Plan
	Item 11 - Appendix 4 - Climate Change Community Engagement EIA_
	Item 11- Appendix 5 - Privacy policy easy read
	Item 11 - Appendix 6 climate-change-strategy-easy-read
	(highlights) Draft Climate Change Customer Engagement Consultation Questions 

	12 Proposal to undertake Public Engagement and Consultation Activity - Monitoring & Evaluation of Active Travel Tranche 1 Routes in Southport and Bootle
	Item 12 -Consultation Report Active Travel Route in Southport and Bootle 
	Item 12 - Appendix A Monitoring and Evaluation Plan
	Scheme Overview
	Bootle Emergency Active Travel Route
	Southport Emergency Active Travel Route
	Table 1 List of Elements of ATF1 Schemes

	Funding
	Scope
	Monitoring
	Evaluation
	Approach to Evaluation
	Logic Map
	Research Questions
	Evaluation and Data Collection Methods
	Table 2 Data Collection Methods

	Primary Data Methods
	Intercept and Business Surveys
	Traffic Counters

	Cost of Monitoring and Evaluation
	Dissemination of findings


	Item 12 - Appendix B Active Travel Fund Public Opinion Surveys Guidance
	Item 12 Appendix C interim EIA for Active Travel 1 routes
	Title of Assessment:
	EIA Lead Officer Name:
	Team
	Service Area
	Date
	Section 2: Summary
	Section 3: Initial Screening
	Is the proposal likely to impact on the way Sefton Council is showing ‘due regard’ to the three aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty? Please indicate the relevant aim as detailed below;
	Please identify if the project/ scheme is likely to have an impact on any of the following protected characteristics?

	Section 4: Beneficiaries and Objectives
	Who should benefit from the proposals, and how does the proposal fit with Sefton Council’s Vision, Climate Emergency Declaration?

	Section 5: Community Engagement and Consultation Statement
	Detail the consultation and engagement process followed with reference to Public Engagement and Consultation Panel.

	Section 6: Impact of Proposal
	Could the proposal have a positive or negative impact on any of the protected characteristics (race, gender, disability, gender reassignment, marriage and civil partnership, age, pregnancy and maternity, religion and belief, sex, sexual orientation)? ...

	Section 7: Evidence
	What research / data / information have you used in support of this process? Add detail about links to evidence or provide actual summary. Remember that your evidence is important.

	Section 8: Action Plans – Document Release & Mitigation
	The (Draft – Approved) EIA is to be sent to groups representing protected characterises and feedback welcomed.  Once feedback has been received from the groups representing the protected characteristics, the EIA will be finalised.  The final document ...

	Document Control
	Appendix A –LCR Walking & Cycling Index 2021
	Appendix B – Sefton Young Advisors – Your Streets





